The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklin WIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING*

FRANKLIN CITY HALL — COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA**

TUESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2021 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

p—

Citizen Comment Period.

2. Mayoral Announcements:

(a) A Proclamation in Recognition of Mark A. Dandrea

(b) Presentation on the unique Natural Resource features at the Conservancy for
Healing and Heritage (Irene Yank, Franklin High School Senior in
Environmental Studies).

© Letter of Appreciation from the Conservancy for Healing and Heritage for
contribution of mulch for the Conservancy’s Lake and Nature Trails.

Approval of Minutes:
1. Approval of Amended Minutes of the Regular Common Council Meeting of July 20,
2021.
2. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Common Council Meeting of August 3, 2021.
D. Hearings.

Organizational Business: The following Mayoral appointments have been submitted for Council

confirmation:

1. Jack Takerian, 8605 River Terrace Dr., Ald. Dist. 4 — Board of Water Commissioners for
a 5-year term expiring 09/30/2025.

2. Matt Cool, 8820 S. 68th St., Ald. Dist. | — Community Development Authority for a
4-year term expiring 08/30/2025.

3. Jeffrey E. Kuderski, 8135 W. High St., Ald. Dist. 1 — Tourism Commission for a 1-year

term expiring on 12/31/2021.
Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Consent Agenda:
(a) Request to Schedule a Special Common Council Meeting on August 26, 2021, at
3:00 p.m. for a Roundtable Workshop for Unified Development Ordinance
Discussion with Houseal Lavigne Associates.



Common Council Meeting Agenda

August 17,2021

Page 2

10.

11.

(b) A Resolution to Submit a 2022 Grant Application Request from the Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources Urban Forestry Grant Program and Unspecified
Amounts for Yet-To-Be-Determined Catastrophic Storm Events.

(c) Authorization for the Department of Public Works to Purchase a Multi-Use
Municipal Snow Removal Vehicle (Used).

(d) A Resolution Engaging Milliman, Inc. to Perform Actuarial Study on the City of
Franklin Other Post Employment Benefit Plan for 2021 and 2022.

(e) Establish 2021 Trick or Treat Observance.

(f) Temporary Street Closure Request on S. Legend Drive in Conjunction with the
August 20, 2021 City of Franklin sponsored Franklin Outdoor Movie Night.

Concept Review for a Single-Family Residential Subdivision with 115 Lots to be Located
West of the Franklin Savanna Natural Area (Properties Bearing Tax Key Nos. 892-9999-
002, 937-9999-004, and 938-9999-011) (Approximate Area of West Meadowview Drive
and South 112th Street) (Bear Development, LLC, Applicant).

Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Landscape Bufferyard Easement for
and as Part of the Approval of a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map, Being a Redivision of Lot
2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8546 Being a Redivision of Outlot 1, Block 11 of the Plat
of Franklin Business Park Addition No. 1 (MLG Development, Inc.) (Generally East of
the Intersection of West Oakwood Park Drive and South 52nd Street in the City of
Franklin Business Park).

Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Conservation Easement for and as
Part of the Approval of a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map, Being a Redivision of Lot 2 of
Certified Survey Map No. 8546 Being a Redivision of Outlot 1, Block 11 of the Plat of
Franklin Business Park Addition No. 1 (MLG Development, Inc.) (Generally East of the
Intersection of West Oakwood Park Drive and South 52nd Street in the City of Franklin
Business Park).

Vandewalle and Associates, Inc. Support for Parkland Acquisition Services Common
Council Input Session on Draft Study.

Standards, Findings and Decision of the City of Franklin Common Council Upon the
Application of Veridian Homes, LL.C, Applicant; VH PVR LLC, Owner, for a Special
Exception to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordinance.

A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Final Plat for Pleasant View Reserve
Subdivision (At 7475 and 7501 South 49th Street) (Veridian Homes, LLC, Applicant; VH
PVR LLC, Owner).

A Resolution to Execute a Subdivision Development Agreement with VH PVR LLC For
the Development of Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision Phase 1 Located at South 51st
Street and West Marquette Avenue.

A Resolution to Authorize Acceptance of Storm Water Facilities Maintenance Agreement
from VH PVR LLC for the Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision at South 51st Street and
West Marquette Avenue.

Request to Formally Adopt the Name “Corporate Park™ for the Development Area Within
Tax Incremental District No. 8 (TID 8) Currently Known as “Area D”, Roughly Bound
by W. Oakwood Road, S. 27th Street, W. South County Line Road, and S. 42nd Street.
Verbal Report on Economic Development.



Common Council Meeting Agenda

August 17,2021

Page 3

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Emergency Repair/Replacement of 54-Inch Culvert Near 7677 S. 68th Street.
An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance No. 2020-2453, An Ordinance Adopting the 2021
Annual Budget for the General Fund to Transfer $38,000 of Information Services Non-
Personnel Costs to Personnel Costs.
Authorization to Hire a Full-Time “Desktop and User Support Administrator” to Replace
the Current On-Premise Information Technology (IT) Support Contractor at City Hall.
Consideration of a Resolution Adopting the City of Franklin Code of Conduct for Elected
and Appointed Officials and the Rules of the Common Council.
An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance No. 2020-2453, An Ordinance Adopting the 2021
Annual Budgets for the General Fund to Provide Additional $10,000 of Appropriations
for Tax Refunds on Assessment Challenges.
Recommendations from the Committee of the Whole meeting of August 16, 2021:
(a) Wholesale Public Water Supply to Franklin 2024.
(b) Kueny Architects, LLC, Status Update Concerning the Department of Public
Works and Fire Needs Assessment Services Project.
(c) Discussion of an Awareness Campaign Contract with Hausch Design Agency and
Platypus Advertising and Design for a Franklin Private Property Infiltration and
Inflow (PPII) Policy/Program.

Sam’s Real Estate Business Trust v. City of Franklin, Milwaukee County Circuit Court,
Case No. 2020CV006103 and Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust v City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County Circuit Court, Case No. 2020CV006148. The Common Council may
enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for
the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the
body with respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Resolution No. 2020-7680, A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute A Tax
Incremental District No. 8 Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin, JHB
Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Spec and/or Commercial Buildings Mixed Use
Development at the south side of West Elm Road in the approximately South 3500 Street
block area to the west, to be bounded on the north by West Elm Road to be extended to
the west, and South Hickory Street on the east, and to straddle South Birch Street and
West Aspen Way, all to be developed; and Development Agreement for JHB Properties,
LLLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Spec and/or Commercial Buildings Mixed Use
Development (Public Improvements). The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis, Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for market competition and bargaining reasons, to
deliberate and consider terms relating to a Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development
Agreement Between the City of Franklin, JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC,
Spec and/or Commercial Buildings Mixed Use Development and a Development
Agreement for JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Spec and/or Commercial
Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public Improvements), and the investing of public
funds and governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such development,
including the terms and provisions of the development agreements for the development
of property located on the south side of West Elm Road in the approximately 3500 block
area were West Elm Road to be extended to the west, consisting of approximately 79.79



Common Council Meeting Agenda

August 17,2021
Page 4

20.

acres, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Notice of Claim submitted by Attorney John D. Gatzke, on behalf of his client, Gerald
Cutty, for damages sustained when involved in an auto accident on February 5, 2021, that
they are alleging was caused by the driver’s view being obstructed by a high snow bank
in the median on South 51st Street. The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85(1)(e) and 19.85(g), to consider a Notice of Claim submitted
by Attorney John D. Gatzke, on behalf of his client, Gerald Cutty, for damages sustained
when involved in an auto accident on February 5, 2021, that they are alleging was caused
by the driver’s view being obstructed by a high snow bank in the median on South 51st
Street, and may reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits.

L. Bills.

Miscellaneous Licenses - License Committee Meeting of August 17, 2021.

Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

*Notice 18 given that a majority of the Economic Development Commission may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda
ttem over which the Economic Development Commusston has decision-making responsibility This may constitute a meeting of the Economic
Development Commussion, per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even though the Economic Development Commuission will not
take formal action at this meeting

**Supporting documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are available at City Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services
For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:
August 19 Plan Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.
August 25 Special Common Council Meeting  6:30 p.m.
September 6 City Hall Closed for Labor Day
September 7 Common Council Meeting 6:30 p.m.
September 9 Plan Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.
September 21 Common Council Meeting 6:30 p.m.

September 23 Plan Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.









810 AJUBAISSUOIBYI@UESNS U0 T/ /¥ 0TS ¥T 18 308y UBSNS 1DBIIO0)D

Tm— Z9V HAARION L¢ H3ld TUNGILYDNAGA ey ADEUD
‘puejiom ade 301 ‘punj-e-J0-auU0 e Ul Sutuses|

22U3143dX3 [|IM OYM SIUBPNIS/SIONISIA JOJ 3dUBIIUXS |eUOIIRINPI
3yl soueyus 03 paudisap Ajjeay1nads sy Alunwiwod ayl Jo uisq
-|lam pue yijeay syl s1oedwi 31 03 UOLHIBUUOD N0 MOY Pue aunleu
W0J) UIB3| ‘DH|P|IM PUE JSIEM JONUOUW [|IM A3y  $3DUS1IS [RlUSW
-UOJIAUS SB YINs $303lgns ApNis 01 Su1as [eJN1BU B Ul SDAISSWSUL

asJawwl ued Ayl asaym sauniioddo diy piau swuapnis Alepuodas
pue AJeluswa|d 5194J0 OS|e ¥23(Q UONBAISSH (/4314 [euoneanps Byt

o ahs crwihs) N GaRnsD
T ety ae 1 TSRO

$21d 01 jeIUBWUOIIAUD puE Buldg
-[|]aM 13 y3jeay uo pasndoj swesdosd uoddns 01 pasied spuny ssh os|e
(1M A “ATaoe A3y B 3q |[Im $38e |[e JO SIUapNnIs 404 S3JusIBdXD Bul
-ules| 1841 $a103ds puig pue jdas ‘Ysy SNOLIBA 9AISSGO 01 dUBYD
3Y1 SIUBPNIS PUR SIOUSIA 3PIACID [|IM 3| pUB|1Sa10) SuipunoIns
pue aye| |eroe|8 pay-8unids 3yl JO SMBIA SUIXR|aJ4 puR BUBIIS Ul a)e]
01 Allun1i0ddo 3y1 SIOLSIA MO[{B |[IM }03p UOHBAISSFO pue Jald Byl

¥99Q uoneasasqQ/iaid jeuoneonp3 ays Suntoddns
Agq uopesNpa [BJUBWUOIIAUS IUBAPY













Blank Page



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
JULY 6, 2021

CONSENT AGENDA  G.1.

RES. 2021-7750
GRAEF-USA
REDUCTION $15.000
S. 116TH TRAIL

RES. 2021-7751
LYNCH & ASSOC.
REDUCTION $58,000
2020 MARQUETTE
AVE.

ORD. 2021-2470
PUBLIC AND
PRIVATE
OWNERSHIP OF
WATER/SEWER

CDBG
PROGRAM

C.1.

CORRECTED G.l1.d.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

JULY 20, 2021
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on July 20,
2021 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance:
Alderman Mark Dandrea, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman Kristen
Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shart Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber and
Alderman John R. Nelson. Also present were Dir. of Administration
Peggy Steeno, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A.
Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:30 p.m. and closed at
6:43 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council Meeting of July 6, 2021 as presented at this meeting.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the following Consent
Agenda items:

(a) Adopt Resolution No. 2021-7750, A RESOLUTION TO
EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO GRAEF-USA, INC
FOR A REDUCTION OF $15,000 AS PART OF THE
S. 116TH STREET TRAIL PROJECT;

(b) Adopt Resolution No. 2021-7751, A RESOLUTION TO
EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO LYNCH &
ASSOCIATES, ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, LLC FOR
A REDUCTION OF $58,000 AS PART OF THE 2020
MARQUETTE AVENUE ROAD PROJECT;

(c) Adopt Ordinance No. 2021-2470, AN ORDINANCE TO
AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE FOR
DEFINED PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROPERTY OWNERS’
OWNERSHIP DISTINCTION OF PUBLIC WATER AND
SEWER SERVICES UTILITIES INFRASTRUCTURE;

(d) Authorization for the Director of Administration to submit
Letters of Support for the Eras Senior Network, Inc. Faith in
Action Milwaukee County Program for $5,000 and Oak Creek
Salvation Army-Homelessness Program for $3,000; to submit a



Common Council Meeting

July 20, 2021
Page 2

DONATIONS MAY
AND JUNE 2021

ORD. 2021-2471
UNIFORM
CONTROLLED
SUBSTANCE ACT

ORD. 2021-2472
POLICE VIDEO
RECORDING
SYSTEM

ADDITIONAL
STORAGE FOR IN-
SQUAD VIDEO
SYSTEM

FIRE DEPT.
WIRELESS DATA
ASSISTANT
LICENSES

RES. 2021-7752
PEDESTRIAN

ACCESS W. FOREST

G.2.

G.3.

G4.

G.S.

G6

project application for Senior Health-Related Educational
Programming for $5,000; and to submit a project application
for a Franklin Home Repair Grant Program that would be
administered directly through Milwaukee County, for the
remaining portion of the City’s Community Development
Block Grant Program annual allocation by the deadline of
August 25, 2021; and

(e) Accept donations for May and June, 2021, as provided in the
packet for this meeting.

Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-2471, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO
PROHIBIT THE MANUFACTURE, DISTRIBUTION, DISPENSING
AND POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES AND
RELATED OFFENSES AS SET FORTH IN WIS. STAT. CH. 961
UNIFORM CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-2472, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-2453, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE $58,000 OF
APPROPRIATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL STORAGE FOR A
POLICE VIDEO RECORDING SYSTEM USING SAVINGS ON
THE NEXTGEN 9-1-1 PROJECT. Seconded by Alderwoman
Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve the purchase of storage costs for
the WatchGuard In-Squad Video Recording System, and to approve
use of uncommitted funds from the 2021 Capital Budgeted NextGen
9-1-1 project to purchase the storage. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve the Fire Department special
purchase of a Pro-Phoenix WDA Site License at a cost of $3,990 using
existing Fire Department grant funding. Seconded by Alderwoman
Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No 2021-7752, A
RESOLUTION FOR INCLUSION OF PEDESTRIAN ACCESS FOR
WEST FOREST HOME AVENUE (CTH 00) IN A 2023



Common Council Meeting
July 20, 2021
Page 3

HOME ROAD
RECONDITIONING
PROJECT

RES. 2021-7753 G.10.

GRAEF-USA INC. TO
DESIGN A PORTION
OF RYAN CREEK
TRAIL

PROCEDURE FOR G.7.
FILLING FIRST
ALDERMANIC

VACANCY

RES. 2021-7754 G.8.
2 LOT CSM

12000 W. LOOMIS

RD. AND 12204 W.
LOOMIS RD.

RES. 2021-7755 G.9.
REIMBURSE VEIT &

CO. INC. AND

STARK PAVEMENT

FOR PORTION OF

RYAN CREEK TRAIL

MILWAUKEE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(MCDOT) ROAD RECONDITIONING PROJECT. Seconded by
Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7753, A
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE GRAEF-USA INC. TO DESIGN A
PORTION OF RYAN CREEK TRAIL THROUGH THE RYAN
MEADOWS SUBDIVISION (WEST CHICORY STREET TO
SOUTH 112TH STREET) FOR $50,000 and authorize this trail project
to be publicly bid in 2021. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to accept letters from residents interested
in filling the First District Aldermanic position created by the
resignation of Alderman Dandrea (effective July 21, 2021), and that the
deadline for filling letters of intent with the Director of Clerk
Services/City Clerk be 5:00 p.m. on August 19, 2021, with interested
residents listed for presentations at the Common Council meeting of
August 25, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll
call, Alderman Nelson, Alderman Barber, Alderwoman Wilhelm, and
Alderman Mayer voted Aye; Alderwoman Hanneman voted No; and
Alderman Dandrea Abstained. Motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7754, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING A PART OF THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 AND NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST
1/4 OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST,
CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT,
LLC, APPLICANT (BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER))
(AT 12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD AND 12204 WEST LOOMIS
ROAD). Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7755, A
RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2021-7743 AND TO
REIMBURSE VEIT & COMPANY, INC. AND STARK PAVEMENT
CORPORATION TO CONSTRUCT A PORTION OF THE RYAN
CREEK TRAIL IN THE RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION FOR
$69,662.50. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.


























































































REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
APPROVAL
i COUNCIL ACTION 08/17/2021
REPORTS & Establish 2021 Trick or Treat TTEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS G.1.(e)

The Council may wish to establish the 2021 Trick or Treat observance at this time for notification.

In 2020, Trick or Treat was held on Saturday, October 31, from 4-7pm. It is recommended that
Sunday, October 31 from 4-7pm be established for 2021.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to establish Sunday, October 31, 2021, from 4-7pm for the Halloween Trick of Treat
observance in the City of Franklin.

CLERKDEPT


















































































































































































































































































































APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
; COUNCIL ACTION DATE
08/17/21
A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY
REPORTS & APPROVING A FINAL PLAT ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION
(AT 7475 AND 7501 SOUTH 49TH STREET) G.7.
(VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC, APPLICANT;
VH PVR LLC, OWNER)

At the August 5, 2021 meeting of the Plan Commission, the Commission adopted a
motion to recommend approval of a resolution conditionally approving a Final Plat for
Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision (at 7475 South 49th Street and 7501 South 49th
Street) (Veridian Homes, LL.C, Applicant; VH PVR LLC, Owner).

This plat is a combination of two previously approved preliminary subdivision plats,
the “Pleasant View Estates” subdivision, and the “Oak Ridge” subdivision. These
previous plats were reviewed extensively. The applicant received approval of a
Preliminary Plat on March 16, 2021 via Resolution No. 2021-7716. Several conditions
of this approval remain outstanding, or still apply to this Final Plat approval and are
carried over into the recommended conditions in the draft resolution. These include the
requirement that the application receive a Natural Resource Special Exception for
wetland and related buffer and setback impacts; that appropriate easements be provided;
that Lot 2 does not allow access to S. 51st Street; and completion of other requirements
of the UDO or conditions of the preliminary approval.

The dimensions of the lots 12, 22, 25, 27, and Outlot 1 have changed slightly from the
Preliminary Plat. Lots 41, 40, 39 have also been reconfigured slightly as a group. All
lots still meet the requirements of the R-6 district standards.

[f the Common Council has approved the related Natural Resource Special Exception
for this development, that condition (No. 9) can be deleted. Revised information about
the area of the wetland for site intensity calculations has been provided and is under
review by the Planning Department.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Resolution 2021- , conditionally approving a Final Plat
for Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision (at 7475 South 49th Street and 7501 South 49th
Street) (Veridian Homes, LL.C, Applicant; VH PVR LLC, Owner).

Department of City Development: MX






VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

Page 2

made by the applicant, and that all minor technical deficiencies within the Final Plat
be rectified, all prior to the recording of the Final Plat.

That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDQO), both such provisions being applicable to the
development and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to
time, as such Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

. Pursuant to §236.13(1) and (2), Stats., pertaining to conditions of plat approval and

the provision of public improvements reasonably necessary, respectively, and §15-
8.0101 and §15-2.0303 of the Unified Development Ordinance, pertaining to required
improvements and the financial security to be provided therefore as conditions of plat
approval, the required improvements prescribed in the Unified Development
Ordinance for land divisions are required as a condition of the approval of the Final
Plat for Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision; a Subdivision Development Agreement
(“Subdivider’s Agreement”), as may be approved by the Common Council upon the
recommendation of the City Engineer and as secured by a letter of credit in form as
approved by the City Attorney, shall provide for the furnishing, construction and
installation of the required improvements and such other matters as set forth therein,
and shall be entered into and executed by Veridian Homes, LLI.C; VH PVR LLC,
owner prior to the recording of the Final Plat.

Each and any easement shown on the Final Plat shall be the subject of separate
written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the City of
Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form and
content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or designee to
further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to the approval
of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Final Plat.

. That any and all submissions, reviews and approvals, for any and all matters required

to be submitted, reviewed and/or approved within the final plat application process as
specified within the Unified Development Ordinance, which may not have been
submitted, reviewed and/or approved as of the date of adoption of this Resolution, if
any, including for matters of utility easements, a declaration of deed restrictions and
protective covenants, conservation easements, other public purpose easements,
stormwater management agreements, and homeowners’ association legal instruments,
shall be so submitted, reviewed and/or approved, prior to the recording of the Final
Plat.



VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

Page 3

6.

10.

11.

12.

Veridian Homes, LLC; VH PVR LLC, owner, successors and assigns and any
developer of the Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot single-family residential
subdivision development shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin,
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Pleasant View Reserve 53
lot and 2 outlot single-family residential subdivision development, within 30 days of
invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Veridian Homes, LL.C; VH PVR
LLC, owner and the Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot single-family
residential subdivision development project for the property located at 7475 and 7501
South 49th Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws,
statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to
be developed and as presented for this approval.

The Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot single-family residential subdivision
development project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the terms and
provisions of this Resolution.

The applicant must obtain A Natural Resource Special Exception for impacts to
protected natural resources prior to recording the Final Plat.

Written conservation easements shall be submitted as part of the Final Plat
Application for Common Council review and approval, and recording with the
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Office at the time of recording the Final Plat.

All wetland buffers and all wetland setbacks shall be included within a Conservation
Easement. Those setbacks and buffers not within an Outlot shall have conservation
signage to delineate the area(s) as protected and unbuildable. The plat “Conservation
Easement Restrictions” shall be depicted on the face of the plat, for Department of
City Development review and approval prior to recording of the Final Plat.

A draft of the declaration of deed restrictions, protective covenants, and the legal
instruments and rules for any proposed Wisconsin non-profit membership corporation
(homeowners association) whereby the subdivider intends to regulate land uses in the
proposed subdivision and otherwise protect the proposed development shall be
submitted to the City as part of the Final Plat for review and approval solely as to
form and as such may pertain to existing city rules and regulations.



VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

Page 4

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Any proposed subdivision monument sign(s) shall be subject to review and approval
by the Plan Commission and issuance of a Sign Permit from the Inspection
Department.

The Final Plat shall be in full compliance with all pertinent City of Franklin Design
Standards and Construction Specifications.

The pedestrian trail shall be 10° wide, paved, and installed simultaneously with the
construction of 49th Court. The connection to point to Pleasant View Park must align
with the future park trail.

The applicant shall make any necessary technical corrections to the Final Plat as may
be required by the City of Franklin Engineering Department, prior to recording of the
final plat (UDO §15-7.0602.J.).

Improvements including streets and utilities must be installed prior to recording of the
Final Plat (UDO §15-2.0303.A). Alternatively, the applicant may enter into a
Subdivider’s (“Developer’s”) agreement with the City of Franklin, and provide a
letter of credit for improvements (UDO §15-2.0303.B).

The applicant shall revise site intensity calculations to reflect the total wetland area of
Wetland 1, or provide documentation of the amount listed in site intensity
calculations, for Department of City Development review and approval prior to
recording of the Final Plat.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Final Plat of Pleasant View Reserve

Subdivision, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and without any
further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above conditions
is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this Resolution.

within

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,

and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a final plat, the City Clerk is hereby directed to obtain the
recording of the Final Plat of Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision with the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this

day of , 2021.




VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE

SUBDIVISION
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-
Page 5

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of ,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
AYES NOES ABSENT















development meets specifications regarding density and “site intensity” or the amount of land
that will be built upon versus the amount which will be dedicated to greenspace either on private
lots or within shared “outlots”. The proposed development will include the completion of
Marquette Avenue between 49™ and 51 streets, and the improvement of South 50" Street to
connect with Marquette Avenue. 49™ Street and 50 Street will extend southward from the
proposed Marquette Avenue and terminate in cul-de-sacs. The proposed subdivision will be
served by municipal water and public sanitary sewer.

Outlot 1 will contain stormwater detention to serve the subdivision and road improvements, and
outlot 2 will contain additional stormwater management facilities, natural resource features
including wetlands, and a public trail connecting to Pleasant View Park to the east. The applicant
proposes a 10° wide trail within a 20° wide access point extending from the 50th Street cul-de-
sac between lots 36 and 37, southward along the west edge of the property, then turning eastward
across a wetland, to connect to the existing Pleasant View Park. The trail access is included as
part of outlot 2. The current site plan for improvements to Pleasant View Park includes a
connecting trail. The trail is designed so as to be able to accommodate emergency vehicle access
to the park, should the need for an alternate route arise.

The applicant received approval of a Preliminary Plat on March 16, 2021 via Resolution No.
2021-7716, attached here for reference. Several conditions of this approval remain outstanding,
or still apply to this Final Plat approval and are carried over into the recommended conditions in
the draft resolution. These include the requirement that the application receive a Natural
Resource Special Exception for wetland and related buffer and setback impacts; that appropriate
easements be provided; that Lot 2 does not allow access to S. 51 Street; and completion of other
requirements of the UDO or conditions of the preliminary approval.

The dimensions of the lots 12, 22, 25, 27, and Outlot 1 have changed slightly from the
Preliminary Plat. Lots 41, 40, 39 have also been reconfigured slightly as a group. All lots still
meet the requirements of the R-6 district standards.

Pedestrian Amenities, Roads, and Trail:

The preliminary plat depicted sidewalks and trail facilities to serve this future neighborhood as
well as the previously described roads. Staff notes that Improvements including streets and
utilities must be installed prior to recording of the Final Plat (§15-2.0303.A). Alternatively, the
applicant may enter into a Subdivider’s (“Developer’s™) agreement with the City of Franklin, and
provide a letter of credit for improvements (§15-2.0303.B).

Stormwater Management and other Engineering approvals and required improvements:
Stormwater ponds are proposed within both outlots. A Stormwater Management Plan and other
materials were submitted to the Engineering Department for review, and will require final
Engineering Department approval as part of the review of the Final Plat Application.

Section 15-8.0100 of the UDO sets forth the required improvements for all land divisions. The
applicant has provided the Engineering Department with designs; their technical review and
approval must be completed prior to recording of the final plat.



Previous NRSE

A Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) has been provided for the development, which
contain wetlands, and areas of trees which do not rise to the standard to be considered
woodlands. Wetland delineations were completed for both properties by assured delineators.
The delineation and field investigation of the former Oak Ridge subdivision, the norther parcel
(Tax Key No. 759 9981 010), is dated October 31, 2017. It was completed by Thompson and
Associates Wetland Services, LLC. A new wetland delineation and field investigation survey
was completed on September 25, 2020 on the Pleasant view Estates parcel by Evergreen
Consultants, LLC.

On April 16, 2019, a previous developer received a Natural Resources Special Exception for
impacts to two wetlands, and related setback and buffer on the northern parcel. These wetlands
are identified as wetlands “A” and “B” in the delineation report. A mitigation plan for these
impacts was required as a condition of that approval. The relevant WI DNR permits expired in
2020 without completion of mitigation. The current applicants have obtained both Army Corps
and WI DNR exemption. Under Wisconsin State Statute §281.36 (2019) which was enacted after
the NRSE approval for wetlands A and B, the City of Franklin cannot enforce local natural
resource protection standards on these wetlands, including requiring mitigation.

NATURAL RESOURCE SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUEST

The proposed trail crosses a wetland, identified as Wetland 1, and the resulting impacts require
this Natural Resource Special Exception request. Pursuant to Section 15-10 0208 of the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDOQ), all requests for a Natural Resource Special Exception shall be
provided to the Environmental Commission for its review and recommendation. The Commission’s
review and recommendation is also attached here as an exhibit

The requested for a Natural Resource Special Exception is for property bearing Tax Key No. 788 9981
003, the southern of the two parcels which are part of this future subdivision. The property contains
wetlands and areas of trees which do not meet the standard to be considered woodlands

The NRSE request 1s to allow for impacts to wetland, wetland buffer, and setback of Wetland 1 in the
future outlot 2 of this subdivision Impacts are precipitated by the installation of the trail, and related
grading. Wetland 1 is 165,499 square feet (4.49 acres) Specifically, the exception is requested for
impacts to:

e 1,431 square feet of wetland arca
e 1,817 square feet of wetland buffer area

e The applicant must provide information about the quantity of impact to setback area outside the
buffer.

The applicant proposes to install a culvert to connect the two portions of the wetland and maintain the
hydrology or flow of water between them There is a waterway which flows through this area which
was deemed non-navigable by the W1 Department of Natural Resources on September 7, 2016 (DNR
File No INF-SE-41-03710). Natural Resource Protection Standards related to shoreland therefore do
not apply. The Alderwoman of the District inquired as to whether a pond exists within the wetland.
The WI DNR defines a pond as “a waterbody containing water year-round and smaller than 10 acres
in size ” Application materials including wetland delineations do not identify a pond or other water



bodies in the area, and the WI DNR Surface Water Data Viewer also does not identify a pond in this
location.

The applicant received the necessary US Army Corps of Engineer (USACE) permits to allow for
wetland impacts on July 27, 2021 (File No. 2016-00342-AJK) and Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources (DNR) permits on July 28, 2021 (File No GP-SE-2021-41-02210).

Conservation easements are required for all natural resources to be protected, including mitigation
areas. Condition 9 of the Pleasant View Reserve Preliminary Plat approval Resolution No. 2021-7716
requires that all wetland buffers and all wetland setbacks shall be included within a Conservation
Easement (§15-4.0102.1) Those setbacks and buffers not within an Outlot shall have conservation
signage to delineate the area(s) as protected and unbuildable. The applicant has submitted draft
easements which are currently under review.

Staff notes that the total wetland area described in the Site Intensity calculations provided - 3.76 acres
or 163,785.6 square feet - differs from the area identified in the Evergreen Consultants, LLC
delineation finding of that wetland of 165,499 square feet (4.49 acres). Site intensity calculations
must be clarified.

The applicant has provided the attached Natural Resource Special Exception Application,
Questionnaire, Project Description, and associated information Staff would note

The wetland delineations were prepared by Assured Delineators.

e Required permits from other units of government have been obtained

e Conservation easements materials for existing natural resources to be preserved must be approved
e The applicant 1s proposing mitigation to take place on the property

Natural Resource Mitigation

Mitigation is proposed within the site, by expanding existing wetland and buffer areas §15-4 0103B.4
and §15-4.0103B 5 require that wetland setback and buffer impacts be mitigated by creation of new,
high-quality areas of setback and buffer in the amount of 1.5 times the area of impact Mitigation areas
must be protected by a conservation easement, along with existing natural resources

The applicant will provide mitigation for these impacts, adjacent to the western edge of Wetland 1,
located between the wetland and a future stormwater detention pond. Mitigation will consist of
s Creation of 2,147 square feet of wetland,
s Creation of 2,726 square feet of wetland buffer, and
¢ Restoration of the setback areas disturbed or created by construction of this project 1s required,
by re-establishing native grasses

Staff notes that proposed mitigation includes reuse of existing soils. §15-4 0103 B 5 requires “soils of
equal or greater quality ” Given that the current soil conditions of the area are described by delineations
as degraded, reuse of existing soils may create maintenance challenges for establishing new plantings.
Staff therefore recommends that Plan Commission require financial sureties for mitigation, as
permitted by §15-4 0103.D



Natural Resource Protection Plan

A number of technical corrections to the Natural Resource Protection Plan must be made, including
addition of a table with consolidated information about all natural resources and degree of impact, and
corrections to site intensity calculations, as required by §15-7 0201 §15-4 0102, and §15-7.0201.1, etc.

Environmental Commission Recommendation

At the July 28, 2021 meeting of the Environmental Commission, the Commission recommended
approval of the NRSE request. At that meeting, the Commission recommended that financial sureties
for the maintenance of mitigation areas be required by Plan Commission, and that the maintenance be
provided for 5 years. A condition relating to required permits form the Army Corps of Engineers and
WI DNR was deleted Recommended conditions of approval are also incorporated into the draft
Standards, Findings, and Decision of the Common Council

CONCLUSION

Per Section 15-10 0208 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the applicant has the burden
of proof to present evidence sufficient to support a Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)
request The applicant has presented evidence for the request by answering the questions and
addressing the statements that are part of the Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)
application. The applicant’s responses to the application’s questions and statements are provided for
your review.

Also attached is a copy of the draft “City of Franklin Environmental Commission” review and
recommendation which must be forwarded to the Common Council. The questions and statements
on this document correspond with the Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) application
questions and statements that the applicant has answered and addressed

Environmental Commission recommendations are also contamed in the decisions section of the
attached draft Standards, Findings and Decision of the City of Franklin document Staff recommends
approval of the NRSE request, subject to the proposed conditions

City Development Staff further recommends approval of the Final Plat for the Pleasant View Reserve
Subdivision, subject to the conditions as noted in the attached draft resolution.






VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

Page 2

made by the applicant, and that all minor technical deficiencies within the Final Plat
be rectified, all prior to the recording of the Final Plat.

That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

. Pursuant to §236.13(1) and (2), Stats., pertaining to conditions of plat approval and

the provision of public improvements reasonably necessary, respectively, and §15-
8.0101 and §15-2.0303 of the Unified Development Ordinance, pertaining to required
improvements and the financial security to be provided therefore as conditions of plat
approval, the required improvements prescribed in the Unified Development
Ordinance for land divisions are required as a condition of the approval of the Final
Plat for Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision; a Subdivision Development Agreement
(“‘Subdivider’s Agreement”), as may be approved by the Common Council upon the
recommendation of the City Engineer and as secured by a letter of credit in form as
approved by the City Attorney, shall provide for the furnishing, construction and
installation of the required improvements and such other matters as set forth therein,
and shall be entered into and executed by Veridian Homes, LLC prior to the recording
of the Final Plat.

Each and any easement shown on the Final Plat shall be the subject of separate
written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the City of
Frankhin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form and
content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or designee to
further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to the approval
of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Final Plat.

That any and all submissions, reviews and approvals, for any and all matters required
to be submitted, reviewed and/or approved within the final plat application process as
specified within the Unified Development Ordinance, which may not have been
submitted, reviewed and/or approved as of the date of adoption of this Resolution, if
any, including for matters of utility easements, a declaration of deed restrictions and
protective covenants, conservation easements, other public purpose easements,
stormwater management agreements, and homeowners’ association legal instruments,

shall be so submitted, reviewed and/or approved, prior to the recording of the Final
Plat.



VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

Page 3

6.

10.

11.

12.

Veridian Homes, LLC, successors and assigns and any developer of the Pleasant
View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot single-family residential subdivision development
shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance,
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults
to the City of Franklin, for the Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot single-
family residential subdivision development, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Veridian Homes, LLC and the
Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot single-family residential subdivision
development project for the property located at 7475 and 7501 South 49th Street: (1)
being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes,
orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits,
licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as
presented for this approval.

. The Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot single-family residential subdivision

development project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the terms and
provisions of this Resolution.

The applicant must obtain A Natural Resource Special Exception for impacts to
protected natural resources prior to recording the Final Plat.

Written conservation easements shall be submitted as part of the Final Plat
Application for Common Council review and approval, and recording with the
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Office at the time of recording the Final Plat.

All wetland buffers and all wetland setbacks shall be included within a Conservation
Easement. Those setbacks and buffers not within an Outlot shall have conservation
signage to delineate the area(s) as protected and unbuildable. The plat “Conservation
Easement Restrictions” shall be depicted on the face of the plat, for Department of
City Development review and approval prior to recording of the Final Plat.

A draft of the declaration of deed restrictions, protective covenants, and the legal
instruments and rules for any proposed Wisconsin non-profit membership corporation
(homeowners association) whereby the subdivider intends to regulate land uses in the
proposed subdivision and otherwise protect the proposed development shall be
submitted to the City as part of the Final Plat for review and approval solely as to
form and as such may pertain to existing city rules and regulations.



VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

Page 4

13. Any proposed subdivision monument sign(s) shall be subject to review and approval
by the Plan Commission and issuance of a Sign Permit from the Inspection
Department.

14. The Final Plat shall be in full compliance with all pertinent City of Franklin Design
Standards and Construction Specifications.

15. The pedestrian trail shall be 10° wide, paved, and installed simultaneously with the
construction of 49th Court. The connection to point to Pleasant View Park must align
with the future park trail.

16. The applicant shall make any necessary technical corrections to the Final Plat as may
be required by the City of Franklin Engineering Department, prior to recording of the
final plat (§15-7.0602.1.).

17. Improvements including streets and utilities must be installed prior to recording of the
Final Plat (§15-2.0303.A). Alternatively, the applicant may enter into a Subdivider’s
(“Developer’s”) agreement with the City of Franklin, and provide a letter of credit for
improvements (§15-2.0303.B).

18. The applicant shall revise site intensity calculations to reflect the total wetland area of
Wetland 1, or provide documentation of the amount listed in site intensity
calculations, for Department of City Development review and approval prior to
recording of the Final Plat.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Final Plat of Pleasant View Reserve
Subdivision, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and without any
further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above conditions
is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this Resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recording of a final plat, the City Clerk is hereby directed to obtain the
recording of the Final Plat of Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision with the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2021.




VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC - FINAL PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
SUBDIVISION

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

Page 5

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of , 2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
AYES NOES ABSENT









Draft 8/5/21

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the Application of Veridian Homes,
LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Veridian Homes, LLC, applicant, having filed an application dated
May 28, 2021, for a Special Exception pursuant to Section 15-9.0110 of the City of
Franklin Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to the granting of Special
Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland, Wetland
Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or Enhancements to a
Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said application being annexed hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated July 28, 2021 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated August 5, 2021 being annexed
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is located at 7501 South 49th Street, zoned R-6 Suburban Single-Family
Residence District, and such property is more particularly described upon Exhibit D
annexed hereto and incorporated herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: “The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant.”

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated May 28, 2021, by Veridian Homes,



LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance, the
proceedings heretofore had and the recitals and matters incorporated as set forth
above, recognizing the applicant as having the burden of proof to present evidence
sufficient to support the following findings and that such findings be made by not less
than four members of the Common Council in order to grant such Special Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather,

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: , or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant’s use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives:

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant of a Special Exception as requested will be consistent
with the existing character of the neighborhood, and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: , and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: . and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this finding only applying to an application to improve or enhance a
natural resource feature)

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks:




2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district:

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant:

4. Aesthetics:

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property:

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Residential

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjoining
property is perceived

9. Natural features of the property:

10. Environmental impacts:

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report of is incorporated herein

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.0110C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement:  The Plan Commission recommendation and the FEnvironmental
Commission recommendation address these factors and are incorporated herein

Decision
Upon the above findings and all of the files and proceedings heretofore had
upon the subject application, the Common Council hereby grants a Special Exception

for such relief as is described within Exhibit C, upon the conditions

1) that the natural resource features and mitigation areas upon the properties to
be developed be protected by a perpetual comservation easement to be



2)

3)

4)

J)
6)

7)

8)

approved by the Common Council prior to any development within the areas
for which the Special Exception is granted prior to the issuance of any
Occupancy Permits,

that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s) from all other
applicable governmental agencies prior to any development within the areas
for which the Special Exception 1s granted,

that all development within the areas for which the Special Exception is
granted shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural
Resource Protection Plan and all other applicable plans for Veridian Homes,
LLC, applicant, and all other applicable provisions of the Unified
Development Ordinance,

that the applicant obtain approval by Common Council of conservation
easements for areas of preserved natural resources (§15- 40103 B 1 d, §15-
70201 H) and mitigation areas (§15- 40103B1.d) RES 2021-7716
Condition 8 further requires that easements will be submitted for recording in
conjunction with the Final Plat application.

All wetland buffers and all wetland setbacks shall be included within
Conservation Easement

The applicant shall revise site intensity calculations to reflect the total wetland
area of Wetland 1, or provide documentation of the amount listed in site
intensity calculations

The applicant shall make all necessary technical corrections to the Natural
Resource Protection Plan, subject to the approval of the Department of City
Development

The applicant shall provide financial sureties for a 5 year mitigation plan, per
$15-4 0103 D

The duration of this grant of Special Exception is permanent

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of

Franklin this day of , 2021.
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of ,2021.
APPROVED:
ATTEST: Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



City of Franklin Environmental Commission

TO: Common Council
DATE: July 28, 2021
RE: Special Exception application review and recommendation

APPLICATION: Veridian Homes, LLL.C, Applicant, dated: May 28, 2021
(7501 South 49th Street)

I. §15-9.0110 of the Unified Development Ordinance Special Exception to
Natural Resource Feature Provisions Application information:

1. Unified Development Ordinance Section(s) from which Special Exception is
requested:

2. Nature of the Special Exception requested (description of resources,
encroachment, distances and dimensions):

3. Applicant’s reason for request:
4. Applicant’s reason why request appropriate for Special Exception:

II. Environmental Commission review of the §15-9.0110C.4.f. Natural Resource
Feature impacts to functional values:

1. Diversity of flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered species:

2. Storm and flood water storage:
3. Hydrologic functions:

4. Water quality protection including filtration and storage of sediments,
nutrients or toxic substances:

5. Shoreline protection against erosion:

6. Habitat for aquatic organisms:



7. Habitat for wildlife:

8. Human use functional value:

9. Groundwater recharge/discharge protection:

10. Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value:

11. State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or species of
special concern:

12. Existence within a Shoreland:
13. Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or within an

Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission from time to time:

III. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.d. factors and

1.

recommendations as to findings thereon:

That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application
to improve or enhance a natural resource feature):

That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicants and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: , OF

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicants’ use of the property
and that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives:

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood:
, and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: , and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: , and



d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable
water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-
existence with the development (¢this finding only applying to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature):

IV. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c.
factors and recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative placement

of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks:

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying to
the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district:

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue; disability
of an occupant:

4. Aesthetics:

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:
6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property:

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area:

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property:

9. Natural features of the property:
10. Environmental impacts:

V. Environmental Commission Recommendation:

The Environmental Commission has reviewed the subject Application pursuant to

§15-10.0208B. of the Unified Development Ordinance and makes the following
recommendation:

1. The recommendations set forth in Sections IIl. and IV. Above are incorporated
herein.

2. The Environmental Commission recommends approval of the Application
upon the aforesaid recommendations for the reasons set forth therein.



3. The Environmental Commission recommends that should the Common
Council approve the Application, that such approval be subject to the
following conditions:

a.

Approval by Common Council of conservation easements for areas of
preserved natural resources (§15- 4.0103.B.1.d, §15-7.0201.H) and
mitigation areas (§15- 4.0103.B.1.d). RES 2021-7716 Condition 8
further requires that easements will be submitted for recording in
conjunction with the Final Plat application.

. All wetland buffers and all wetland setbacks shall be included within

Conservation Easement.

The applicant shall revise site intensity calculations to reflect the total
wetland area of Wetland 1, or provide documentation of the amount
listed in site intensity calculations.

. The applicant shall make all necessary technical corrections to the

Natural Resource Protection Plan, subject to the approval of the
Department of City Development.

The applicant shall provide financial sureties for a 5 year mitigation
plan, per §15-4.0103.D.

The above review and recommendation was passed and adopted at a regular meeting
of the Environmental Commission of the City of Franklin on the day of

,2021.

Dated this day of ,2021.

Attest:

Linda Horn, Chairman

Jamie Groark, Vice-Chairman



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-7716

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION
(AT 7475 SOUTH 49TH STREET AND 7501 SOUTH 49TH STREET)
(VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for approval
of a preliminary plat for Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision, such plat being a redivision of part
of Parcel 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 6949 recorded in the Milwaukee County Register of
Deeds office as Document No. 8064321 and part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4, and
part of the Northwest 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 11, all being a part
of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and part of the Northwést 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 21 Easts €ity of Franklin, Milwaukee
County, Wisconsin, more specifically, of the properties lo 7475 South 49th Street and
i 788-9981-003, Veridian

ha ing’ FEvi Sved such application and Plan
Eh)) c1l§ha¥_ g determined that such proposed
law upon certain conditions.

2 ', by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklm Wisconsi iminary Plat of Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision, as
submitted by Veridian es, LLC, as'described above, be and the same is hereby approved,

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by

Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and made by
the applicant.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9. of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified Development
Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development and building
permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such Code and
Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Veridian Homes, LLC, successors and assigns and any developer of the Pleasant View
Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot subdivision development shall pay to the City of Franklin the
amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City
of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Pleasant View



VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC — PRELIMINARY PLAT
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-7716

Page 2

10.

11.

Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot subdivision development, within 30 days of invoice for same.
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19. of the Municipal Code, the
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Veridian Homes, LLC and the
Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot subdivision development project for the
properties located at 7475 South 49th Street and 7501 South 49th Street: (i) being in
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the
like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this
approval.

The Pleasant View Reserve 53 lot and 2 outlot subdivisigh development project shall be

developed in substantial compliance with the terms and avisions of this Resolution.

The applicant must obtain A Natural Resource Spe&akExce

n for impacts to protected
natural resources prior to recording the Final Plat, S

pacts be attributable to
e alternatives analysis

All utility easements shall be locate
where necessary, and shown on the*fa"?e*ﬁf‘;he )

§

for Common Co

and recording with the Milwaukee County
Register of Deed

ing the Final Plat.

ind setbacks shall be included within a Conservation
backs andzbuffers not within an Outlot shall have conservation
signage to delineate® protected and unbuildable. The setbacks of lots 26, 32,
33, 34, and 35 will be ed to reflect UDO standards for development of wetland
setbacks (§15-4.0102.1). The plat “Conservation Easement Restrictions” shall be depicted
on the face of the plat, for Department of City Development review and approval prior to
submittal of the Final Plat.

Dffice at the tig

All wetland buffers and all we
Easement. Those<

All necessary approval(s) from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and/or
United States Army Corps of Engineers shall be submitted to the City as part of the Final
Plat Application.

A draft of the declaration of deed restrictions, protective covenants, and the legal
instruments and rules for any proposed Wisconsin non-profit membership corporation
(homeowners association) whereby the subdivider intends to regulate land uses in the
proposed subdivision and otherwise protect the proposed development shall be submitted
to the City as part of the Final Plat for review and approval solely as to form and as such
may pertain to existing city rules and regulations.



VERIDIAN HOMES, LLC — PRELIMINARY PLAT
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-7716

Page 3

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Any proposed subdivision monument sign(s) shall be subject to review and approval by
the Plan Commission and issuance of a Sign Permit from the Inspection Department.

The Final Plat shall be in full compliance with all pertinent City of Franklin Design
Standards and Construction Specifications.

The pedestrian trail shall be 10’ wide, paved, and installed simultaneously with the
construction of 49th Court. The connection to point to Pleasant View Park must align
with the future park trail.

All necessary approvals and required documentation shall be obtained and provided to
the City of Franklin to confirm dedication and construction of the remaining right-of-way
associated with S. SOth Street, including a complete sidewalk extending to the north edge
of the development, prior to submittal of the Final Plat. 5

The applicant shall provide as part of the final plat, a sidewalk along the street for S. 50th
Court, as required by §15-8.0107, §15-5.0103, and Tab e)\7.5 of the Comprehensive

P i::-

Master Plan. Sidewalks are not requxred in the bulb'of h sac.

] constructlon of jz:remammg nght-of-way
associated with Marquette Avenue, connéctin g to the %xmtmg ASchool sidewalk, prior to
submittal of the Final Plat, ,

%

Passed and adop cda at\geﬂgéuléageetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 16th day of March, 202 T
APPRQVED:
phen K. /Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES 6 NOES 0 ABSENT 0



City of Franklin Department of City Development

Date: July 16, 2021

To:

Matt Cudney, Verdian Homes

From: Department of City Development

RE:

Pleasant View Reserve Final Plat — Staff Comments

Department comments are as follows for the Final Plat submitted by Matt Cudney,
Verdian Homes and date stamped by the City of Franklin on June 17, 2021.

Prior Approvals

This final plat has previously obtained preliminary plat approval from the City of
Franklin, via Resolution No. 2021-7716. A copy of that resolution is attached, all
conditions of approval must be resolved. In particular, please note that the following
outstanding conditions of approval:

1.

Condition No. 6: the applicant must obtain a Natural Resource Special Exception for
impacts to protected natural resources. The NRSE request application is currently
under review and scheduled concurrently with the final plat application.

Condition No. 8: Written conservation easements shall be submitted as part of the
Final Plat Application for Common Council review and approval, and recording with
the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Office at the time of recording the Final
Plat. Please submit the required easements for staff review.

Condition No. 9: All wetland buffers and all wetland setbacks shall be included
within a Conservation Easement. Those setbacks and buffers not within an Outlot
shall have conservation signage to delineate the area(s) as protected and unbuildable...
The plat “Conservation Easement Restrictions” shall be depicted on the face of the
plat, for Department of City Development review and approval prior to submittal of
the Final Plat. Please revise the Final Plat to depict the easement as including the
wetland setback, not just the buffer.

Condition No. 10: All necessary approval(s) from the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources and/or United States Army Corps of Engineers shall be submitted
to the City as part of the Final Plat Application. Staff is aware of the DNR permitting
process currently underway; this must be resolved prior to recording of the Final Plat.
Condition No. 14: The pedestrian trail shall be 10’ wide, paved, and installed
simultaneously with the construction of 49th Court. The connection to point to
Pleasant View Park must align with the future park trail. Please verify that the
connection point will align with the planned park trail.

Condition No. 18: Please revise Lot 2 to reflect that access will be from Marquette
Avenue.



Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Requirements

Design Standards

10.

11.

12.

Zoning for the proposed plat is R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District. All
proposed lots meet the lot size and building setback requirements of the zoning
district (§15-3.0207).

Staft notes the dimensions of the lots 12, 22, 25, 27, and Outlot 1 have changed
slightly from the Preliminary Plat. Lots 41, 40, 39 have also been reconfigured
slightly as a group. All lots still meet the requirements of the R-6 district standards.
§15-5.0106.E requires a minimum lot depth of 110°. All lots except Lot 2 meet this
requirement.

S.51% St. is classified by the Comprehensive Master Plan as a Minor Arterial Street.
§15-5.0108.B requires a setback from minor arterial streets of 40 feet. Please revise
the shown setbacks of lots on 51% St. to reflect the required setback.

Lot 2 does not allow access to S. 51st Street. The frontage on Marquette Avenue is
therefore the front yard, and lot setbacks must be revised to depict the required 30’
setback on Marquette Avenue, (§15-3.0207) and the required 40’ setback on 51st
Street (§15-5.0108.B). Lot depth must also conform to the 110’ requirement of §15-
5.0106.E.

Note that the Final Plat must conform to the standards of Section 15-8.0100, subject
to the approval of the Engineering Department. See also comments regarding required
improvements below.

General Plat Data

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Please show all utility easements, including WE Energies easements, per the
standards of §15-7.0602.D. Condition No. 9 of the preliminary plat approval further
requires that all utility easements “shall be... shown on the face of the plat.” Please
revise the plat to show all easements.

Any lands dedicated to future public use must be shown on the plat per §15-7.0602.D.
Please clarify if the trail will be dedicated to public use, and if so, depict it
accordingly on the plat.

Please include water elevation of any water features including wetlands, the date of
the survey and approximate high and low water elevations (§15-7.0602.H).

Note that Plan Commission can require that additional restrictions relating to access
control etc. be shown on the Final Plat (§15-7.0602.F).

Note that additional information may also be required by the City Planner, Plan
Commission, City Engineer, or Common Council (§15-7.0602.1 and J).

Required Improvements for Land Divisions

18.

Section 15-8.0100 of the UDO sets forth the required improvements for all land
divisions. Closely review and incorporate that information onto the Plat, or



associated plans, as appropriate. Additional information about these requirements,
and any questions about them, can be directed to the Engineering Department.

19. Note that improvements including streets and utilities must be installed prior to
recording of the Final Plat (§15-2.0303.A). Alternatively, the applicant may enter into
a Subdivider’s (“Developer’s”) agreement with the City of Franklin, and provide a
letter of credit for improvements (§15-2.0303.B).

Declaration of Deed Restrictions, Protective Covenants, Conservation Easements,
and Homeowner’s Association

20. Please submit a copy of the final draft of declaration of deed restrictions and
protective covenants whereby the Subdivider intends to regulate land use in the
proposed Subdivision and otherwise protect the proposed development (§15-
7.0603.A), as reviewed by the City Attorney.

21. Please submit the final draft of the legal instruments and rules for any proposed
Wisconsin non-profit membership corporation (homeowners’ association), for the
purpose of demonstrating its existence, when the Subdivider proposes the property
within the Subdivision would be either owned or maintained by such an organization
of property owners, as required by §15-7.0603.C. This document is also subject to
review by the City Attorney (§15-7.0603.D).

Staff Recommendations
Plat

22. Staff suggests noting the front yard on the face of the plat for lots that are corner lots,
including Lots 2, 50, 42, 40, 29, 22, and 4.

23. Staff recommends depicting nearby floodplain limits on the plat, in accordance with
§15-7.0502.E and §15-7.0603.G.

Sign Plan

24.1f a subdivision monument sign is proposed in the future, it requires a separate
application and review and approval by the Plan Commission.

Engineering Staff Comments

1. Show the coordinates of the monuments (Northing & Easting).

2. Show the utility easement (electric, gas, communications, etc).

3 Must indicate who delineated the wetland (Wetland Delineator Certified by the State
of Wisconsin) and when it was delineated.

[Note that engineering plans must be provided directly to the Engineering Department as
a separate submuttal |

Police Department Staff Comments

The Franklin Police Department has no issues or concerns with this project.



Inspection Services Department Staff Comments

Inspection Services has no comments on the subject proposal at this time.

Milwaukee County
See attached.

Franklin Public School District

This item has been routed to the Franklin Public School District. Public School
comments are pending. Any comments from the School District must be resolved prior to
recording of the final plat.






Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, W1 Excel Project # 2132660

For Property located within the Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision,
Franklin, Wisconsin

The area of the natural resource special exception is within Outlot 2 of the Pleasant
View Reserve Subdivision, developed by Veridian Homes, located south of
Marquette Avenue between South 51 Street and South 49" Street being a part of
Section 11, T 5N, R 21E in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Table of Contents

» Narrative . . Section 1

» Natural Resource Speaal Exception ... Section 2

» Mitigation . Section 3
Figures

FIGURE 1 - Wetland Impact Areas & Mitigation Area Map
FIGURE 2 - Mitigation Plan for Wetland and Buffer Areas
FIGURE 3 - Proposed Seed Mixes

Appendix

Appendix A - City of Franklin Natural Resource Exception Question and Answer Form
Appendix B - Wetland Report



Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, WI Excel Project # 2132660

1. Narrative:

The proposed natural resource special exception is located within lands owned by
Veridian Homes 1n the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. The area has
been preliminary platted and approved as the Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision. The
special exception will be located within Outlot 2 of the subdivision.

The outlot area 1s bordered by multi-family residential to the west and south; a public
park (Pleasant View Neighborhood Park) and a public school (Pleasant View Elementary
School) are to the east of the property. The area contains active and fallow agricultural
farmland and shrubby/wooded areas.

Agricultural farmland has been the historic use of the property.

Wetland delineations, existing conditions topographic surveys, and field investigation
surveys were completed on the property.

A wetland delineation and field investigation survey dated September 25, 2020 was
completed on the property by Ben LaCount, a Wisconsin Assured Wetland Delineator
with Evergreen Consultants, LLC.

A wetland complex was 1dentified within the boundary of the property. The wetland 18
1dentified as “Wetland 1” in the wetland delineation report dated September 25, 2020
and completed by Evergreen Consultants, LLC. Wetland 1 is a degraded forested-
shrub/scrub-wet meadow wetland infested with reed canary grass and cattail; the
wetland 1s located within a depression and waterway/drainage swale. The
waterway/drainage swale was determined to be non-navigable by the Wisconsin DNR
(WDNR) 1n October of 2016.

Wetland area 1 asidentified above has been marked 1n the field with wetland boundary
flags and 1s shown with the buffer and setbacks on Figure 1. The wetland buffers as
defined by UDO are undisturbed land within 30’ landward of the delineated boundary
of any wetland and parallel to the delineated wetland boundary. The wetland buffer
area within the site boundaries 1s 2.32 acres. The wetland setback according to the
UDO 1s all landward areas defined by the minimum required horizontal setback
distance of fifty feet from a dehneated wetland boundary (or 20’ from the buffer area).

An existing conditions topographic field survey using a robotic total station was
completed by Excel Engineering, Inc. on September 17% of 2020.

Additional supporting information reviewed and utihzed included data obtamed from
the Milwaukee County Geographic Information System (GIS) interactive website,
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Surface Water Data Viewer Inventory, U.S.
Department of Agriculture (USDA) Web Soil Survey, and aerial photography coverage.

No floodplains/floodways exist on the property.



Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, WI Excel Project # 2132660

2. The Natural Resource Special Exception:

A 10" wide path 1s proposed that would connect the Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision
and the City of Franklin’s Pleasant View Neighborhood Park to the east. The path 1s
necessary to create access to and from the park. The path location crosses the existing
wetland area, Wetland 1 as delineated by Evergreen Consultants, that 1s between the
subdivision and the city park area. The request is to fill and impact 1,431 sq.ft. of
wetland area and 1,817 sq.ft. of wetland buffer area. See attached Figure 1 that shows
the impacted areas. The wetland fill area also includes one culvert to allow drainage
and ecological passage through the wetland crossing. The Natural Resource Special
Exception details and reasoning is outhned in the City of Franklin NRSE Question and
Answer Form (Appendix A).

3. Mitigation:

Per the City of Franklin’s UDO, mitigation 1s required for impacts to wetland and
wetland buffer areas. The mitigation required 1s 1.5 times the wetland disturbed area
and 1.5 times the wetland buffer disturbed area.

The proposed wetland disturbance 1s 1,431 sf, which will require 2,147 sf of mitigated
wetland area. The wetland mitigation area will be created along a 8’ wide strip along
the existing wetland boundary. The area will be graded flat to develop and contain
wetland hydrology. Existing soils will be utihzed for the wetland mitigation. Discharge
from the proposed stormwater management pond will also help to hydrate the new
wetland area. The wetland mutigation area will resemble the existing wetland, with
similar native vegetation species. A low profile moist meadow seed mix at 3.25 PLS
Ibs/acre and annual ryegrass at 15 Ibs/acre 1s proposed. The proposed wetland buffer
disturbance 1s 1,817 sf, which will require 2,726 sf of mitigated wetland buffer area.
the buffer area will be seeded with tallgrass prairie for medium soils at 13.25 PLS
Ibs/acre and annual ryegrass at 15lbs/acre over existing soils. Restoration and created
wetland setback areas will be seeded with shortgrass prairie for medium soils at 13.25
PLS lbs/acre and annual ryegrass at 15lbs/acre. Reference Figure 3 for the proposed
seed mixes.

The mitigation areas will require five years of momtoring and a maintenance per City
standards. Conservation easements are required around the mitigated areas. The
easements will be provided by Veridian Homes 1in conjunction with the final plat.

See Figures 1 and 2 that show the unpact areas and the proposed mitigated areas.



Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, W1 Excel Project # 2132660

FIGURE 1
WETLAND IMPACT AREAS & MITIGATION AREA MAP






Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, WI Excel Project # 2132660

FIGURE 2
MITIGATION PLAN FOR WETLAND AND BUFFER ARFAS






Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, W1 Excel Project # 2132660

FIGURE 3
Proposed Seed Mixes


















Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, WI Excel Project # 2132660

APPENDIX A
CITY OF FRANKLIN NATURAL RESOURCE EXCEPTION
QUESTION AND ANSWER FORM




Natural Resource Special Exception Question and Answer Form.

Questions to be answered by the Applicant

[tems on this application to be provided in writing by the Applicant shall include the following, as
set forth by Section 15-9 0110C. of the UDO-

A

1)

Indication of the section(s) of the UDO for which a Special Exception is requested.
15-10.0208 15-4 0101
15-3.0322
15-11.0103

Statement regarding the Special Exception requested, giving distances and dimensions
where appropriate.

The request is to impact 1,431 sq ft. of wetland area and 2,147 sq ft. of buffer
area for a proposed asphalt path crossing. See attached exhibit showing the impacted
areas.  The wetland fill area also includes one culvert to allow drainage through the
wetland.

Statement of the reason(s) for the request.

A 10’ wide path to connect the Pleasant Prairie Reserve Subdivision and the City
of Franklin’s Pleasant View Neighborhood Park 1s proposed. The path is necessary to
create access to and from the park. The path location 1s through an existing wetland area
that 1s contiguous between the subdivision and the city park area.

Statement of the reasons why the particular request is an appropriate case for a Special
Exception, together with any proposed conditions or safeguards, and the reasons why the
proposed Special Exception 1s in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the
Ordmance In addition, the statement shall address any exceptional, extraordmary, or
unusual circumstances or conditions applying to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or
intended use that do not apply generally to other properties or uses in the same district,
mcluding a practicable alternative analysis as follows

Background and Purpose of the Project.

(a) Describe the project and 1its purpose in detaill Include any pertinent construction
plans
The City of Franklin has requested access to the city park from the subdivision
A 10’ wide path 1s proposed to create access between the Pleasant View Reserve
Subdivision and the City’s Pleasant View Neighborhood Park The path will be
paved with asphalt. Per the City’s request the path will also be used as a
secondary access route to the park as the park is located on a dead end street
The wetland crossing area of the path will include concrete culverts to allow
drainage from the north to pass through the wetland area to the south The fill in

Page | |

City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



(b)

(c)

the wetland and buffer area will be limited to the asphalt path and the required
side slope area needed to fill over the culverts.

State whether the project is an expansion of an existing work or new
construction.

This will be new construction and will be completed as a part of the Pleasant
View Reserve Phase 2 residential subdivision construction

State why the project must be located in or adjacent to the stream or other
navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback to
achieve its purpose.

This is the only access area to the city park from the subdivision. The path
crossing is at the narrowest part of the wetland A path location and crossing

within this vicinity was previously approved via preliminary plats

2) Possible Alternatives.

(@)

(®)

()

State all of the possible ways the project may proceed without affecting the
stream or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or
wetland setback as proposed.

1 A boardwalk was considered to span the wetland and buffer arca However,
the boardwalk would need to be rated for emergency vehicle traffic loads. A
boardwalk created for vehicle loads is structurally limited for footings to
avoid wetland impact and decking and is cost prohibitive.

2 A bridge would need a 45’ long span to cross and not impact the wetland, or
over 105’ to span the wetland and buffer areas. A bridge with the required
spans to cross the wetland areas would be cost prohibitive.

3. No access to the park from the subdivision

State how the project may be redesigned for the site without affecting the stream
or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland
setback

There 1s no other way to gain access to the city park area from the subdivision
without affecting wetland areas. The wetland area is continuous along the east
side of the property between the subdivision and park lands.

State how the project may be made smaller while still meeting the project’s
needs

The side slopes of the path to the wetland and buffer areas could be designed to
be steeper to make a smaller impact to the wetland areas. However, steeper

Page |2

City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



slopes are more apt to erosion and are harder to maintain, and thus could have
more of an impact to waters of the state

(d) State what geographic areas were searched for alternative sites.
The original proposed wetland crossing area was further north, the wetland
crossing at that location was wider and would impact more of the wetland area.
The path was lengthened, and the crossing was relocated to the south to the
narrowest portion of the wetland.

(e) State whether there are other, non-stream, or other non-navigable water, non-
shore buffer, non-wetland, non-wetland buffer, and/or non-wetland setback sites
available for development in the area.

There are no other on-site areas available to access the city park area from the
subdivision without impacting a wetland area.

Page | 3
City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



3)

4)

®

State what will occur if the project does not proceed.
There will not be access to the city park from the subdivision.

Comparison of Alternatives.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

State the specific costs of each of the possible alternatives set forth under sub 2 ,
above as compared to the original proposal and consider and document the cost
of the resource loss to the community.

Asphalt path/culverts cost: =$18,500

Boardwalk cost: $80 sf =1050sf x80= * $84,000

Bridge cost: $200 sf = 1050sf x200=$210,000

* pricing does not reflect current inflated material costs in the market.

State any logstical reasons limiting any of the possible alternatives set forth
under sub. 2 , above

Construction access would be needed from both sides of the wetland for the
boardwalk and bridge construction

State any technological reasons limiting any of the possible alternatives set forth
under sub. 2 , above
The maintenance associated with a boardwalk or bridge Bridge inspections

State any other reasons limiting any of the possible alternatives set forth under
sub. 2., above

Responsible party for the maimntenance and inspections of the boardwalk or
bridge

Choice of Project Plan.

State why the project should proceed instead of any of the possible alternatives listed
under sub 2., above, which would avoid stream or other navigable water, shore buffer,
wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback impacts

The proposed asphalt path is cost effective for the access to the park The other

alternatives are expensive and would require maintenance and inspections. The proposed

path is safer with no guardrails needed The path would be easier to maintain for snow

removal with the contiguous asphalt pavement Also. the area to be filled is not within a

high quality wetland, the wetland is a degraded forested-shrub-wet meadow infested area

with reed canary grass and cattail.

Page | 4

City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



5)

6)

Stream or Other Navigable Water, Shore Buffer, Wetland, Wetland Buffer, and
Wetland Setback Description.

Describe in detail the stream or other navigable water shore buffer, wetland, wetland
buffer, and/or wetland setback at the site which will be affected, including the
topography, plants, wildlife, hydrology, soils and any other salient information pertaining
to the stream or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or
wetland setback.

The wetland area is degraded forested-shrub-wet meadow infested area with reed canary
grass and caftail. The area is within a shallow ditch which is a drainage way for runoff
from the north The tree species 1n the wetland is American Elm. Invasive species such
as Buckthorn and canary reed grass are dominate Agricultural cropped areas and fallow
field occupy the wetland buffer and setback areas around the wetland.

Stream or Other Navigable Water, Shore Buffer, Wetland, Wetland Buffer, and
Wetland Setback Impacts.

a) Diversity of flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered species. XI Not Applicable O Applicable
b) Storm and flood water storage. XI Not Applicable O Applicable
¢) Hydrologic functions [ Not Applicable [ Applicable
d) Water quality protection including filtration and storage of sediments, nutrients
or toxic substances I Not Applicable [ Applicable
e) Shoreline protection against erosion (I Not Applicable [ Applicable
f) Habitat for aquatic organisms Not Applicable [ Apphicable
g) Habitat for wildlife. [ Not Applicable X Applicable
h) Human use functional value [XI Not Applicable O Applicable
1) Groundwater recharge/discharge protection
Not Applicable [J Applicable
I} Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value
XI Not Applicable [J Applicable
k) Specify any State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or
species of special concern. B4 Not Applicable O Applicable
1) Existence within a Shoreland I Not Applicable [ Applicable
m) Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or within an

Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planming Commission from time to time.

X Not Applicable [ Applicable

Describe 1n detail any impacts to the above functional values of the stream or other
navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback

The fill area of the wetland area will result 1n the loss of some area for wildlife habitat
The buffer and wetland areas are recently or currently cropped for agricultural land, so

Page | 5

City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



there will be no loss of wildlife area in these areas. The mitigation area will replace
cropped area with added wildlife area for a net increase.

7) Water Quality Protection.

Describe how the project protects the public interest in the waters of the State of
Wisconsin

The project will protect the waters of the state with erosion protection including silt fence
at the disturbance perimeter, and erosion matting with the seeding of the disturbed area.

Page | 6
City of Franklin Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



Pleasant View Reserve Natural Resource Special Exception
Franklin, WI Excel Project # 2132660

APPENDIX B
WETLAND REPORT































e e S B

S

IIzmnE?. 133NS

0p87r0T

l UIBWAN 50T

NOILNYLSNOD Y04 LON

| SELYA ANYNINN3Yd

E wosnou

ANYISIH M3AIA LNVSVYId
NV1d NOILJ310¥d SIDHNOSTY VAN LVN

CETES IM ‘NITINVYS @ INNIAY ILLINDYVIN M B 13341S ISTS S

NOUYWNOINI 13708

WY HIINIONTTIDNT M.
0096-926 {626) :3u0ud
5E6VS 1M *1 0 puos

314g 1073083 00T

uejd Jo31ag e shem|y

o83 ¢ 5121 v

HLJON - NY1d HOLINS

V< 39N9O14 e

¥NOLNGD GNNO¥D DNUSKI
HILLAD TNV BYND DNLSHD

Twwd DRUITI3 GNNONIIONN ONLSIKS
3N E¥D ONOONDXIIND SNUSIX3

N ALIIRN QYZHH3A0 SNILSIX
ANVEGAH ONY 3NN NILYM ONUSKE

:]

7]
7]

a
JONLS HNINIYHD SNILSIXD
iy 03000

aNNO3 Jaid NGB

ann0g wvE v/t

annad INIRNNOA

s

T3 SNON2ANGD
I3 $N0RQIDIL

M AND 4w T0A
04

WASI0d AL TT0YD

9yar 9w (ves Nao) Sloun
999r (yawy Uis 3svd) 1S 1020
ouvy (o) y3uv

VIVU 3IK T350d0%

0 = 3V

& = 107 ¥3INOD 30U

0 = 30
08 = INO¥I LTLTE
usy ALISNIO L3N
s ALISN3O SSOND
000 ‘OlLvd 3IVdS N3d0
INT AOVALIS INONA ¥ 06 HLOW 1071 KPAINM
45 000" W3NY L0 WOAINIK

NOISIA 18NS
WNOILNJANOD. 38N Q3LLINYId
NOISIAIGENS TvLLNIUISIY

9-y
9y
(S340V 099'8S) J'S GTO'PRY’ = VIdV

wisuoosiAn ‘AuN0D SOINEMIY
‘upiises 4 4o 1D sed 12 obuey
'WON G dSUMOL | uoyos
10773 35 8 P VL MS PUE 3 MN
U} 0 ued pue »/L N OW O p/
NS 94 jo ued pue 663 "N duy
Avaing poypoD JO € BDIRG 3O MR

“NOTYRIO0INT II15

380 03500¥e
ININOZ 0380ei0¥d
“DNINOZ DNILSIXD

VIYY ALE3S0Ud

NOWJINDSI0 M

1

1nun

WiSI03 INOHATIAL
OIS ONLSX3

dsxbsefen [Q¥OS0

DIV

onun owun
it

Tr'6L

A

q 7

i
}3Y
j\/
/|
[
i

/
3
)
4 B

N

85Ly
.97 ¥0.008

e

7 S
ATz MSrLrLBE

»agrenn ]

M.Z5.40.008 3 J ;
) =
= : R 3
-z e AV gy AOCY —t + X7z E
3nN3av NOSIEV M ! o Ty L. bl
— NS A § SET  \Lo€E7 3.2¢ 1KLON

o st T zm
TIIIE W6Y S

f
]
|
,
!
f


































A Notch Above the Rest, LLC

WOODLAND NATURAL RESOURCE PROTECTION

Woodlands and Forests (mature and young)} are defined in Division 15- 11.0100 of the
UDO and are to be measured and graphically indicated on the "Natural Resource
Protection Plan" to indicate all woodland and forest areas on the property to be
developed. The definitions to determine woodland resources required for protection
are made as follows:

Woodland, Mature: An area or stand of trees whose total combined canopy covers an
area of one (1) acre or more and at least fifty (50) percent of which is composed of
canopies of trees having a diameter at breast height (DBH) of at least ten (10) inches; or
any grove consisting of eight (8) or more individual trees having a DBH of at least twelve
(12) inches whose combined canopies cover at least fifty (SO) percent of the area
encompassed by the grove. However, no trees planted and grown for commercial
purposes should be considered mature woodland.

Woodland, Young: An area or stand of trees whose total combined canopy covers an
area of ane-half (0.50) acre or more and at least fifty (50) percent of which is composed
of canopies of trees having a diameter at breast height (DBH) of at least three (3) inches.

However, no trees planted and grown for commercial purposes shall be considered
young woodland.

QUALIFIED PROFESSIONAL REVIEW

A field survey of tress for the parcel located South of West Minnesota Avenue to Marquette
Avenue, South 49 Street to South 51 Street was completed on September 16, 2017 and
December 18, 2018 by Jason Collins, a Certified Arborist

Two areas where identified for woodland verification using aerial photos and on site field
surveying as required by the city ordinance. Woodland areas meeting the UDO defimition
are required to be shown on the Natural Resource Protection Plan.

WOODLAND ANALYSIS AND INSPECTION DETERMINATION

The following factors were used to determine any areas that would require woodland
delineation and protection for depiction on the site plan and Natural Resource Protection
Plan-

s Ariel photos and on-site review for the presence of trees or woodland areas

» Genus or tree type located on the parcel to be developed

1740 S CRAFTSMAN DR., NEW BERLIN, WI, 53146
T (414) 916-6781 E JASONCOLLINS8474@ATT NET



» Tree size or wooded area meeting the ordinance definition
= The health condition of trees or any woodland if present
¢ The general health condition of the understory vegetation

Site Conditions: The site was visited during both leaf on and leaf off conditions. Trees
meeting the size requirements did not have sufficient canopy cover to qualify as a grove No
mature or young woodlands were present that meet the requirements for protection. Many
of the larger trees where either in complete decline or declining due to Emerald Ash Borer,
Dutch Elm Disease and condition of the area. The majority of the brush area had sparse
declining trees and consisting mostly of common non-native and invasive buckthorn, honey
suckle and a few declining apple trees and a few smaller conifer trees that would not be
native plant species to the area.

The many down trees had been decaying for some time. Two larger willow trees and a
few box elder trees could possibly be protected if outside of the lot grading area but
add little to no value as a natural resource. Around the edge at the site there is a
significant amount of edge brush piles from past dumping as well as some windblown
debris. A second area on the south edge of the property had some possible young
woodland qualities but also did not meet the size requirements under city ordinance.
Even at stretching the determination, the 50% impact allowed for young woodlands
would leave an area that would not provide a significant natural resource under the
intent for resource protection.

Conclusion: Due to the low quality, inconsistent canopy cover, insufficient size and
species identified on- site, it is my professional opinion that no groves, young or mature
woodlands exist on the property, which meet the woodland definitions within the city's
ordinance. Therefore, the brush outlines indicated on the plans are for informational
purposes only and indicate the non-farmed areas containing some level of vegetated
growth with sparse trees and non-native trees and brush.

ason Collins, Certified Arborist, WI-0726-A
Notch Above the Rest, LLC

Note The developer states they are agreeable to the protection of any existing vegetation or
quality trees that would benefit the parcel and if the city’s forester determines such need Prior
to site grading protective fencing could be installed as requested by city staff



March 14, 2019

Mr. Rick Przybyla

This letterserves asa follow up to my 2017 assessment of the woody plant communities ona property
at 7501 S 49* Street, Franklin, Wl {Tax Key: 7889981001)

Referencing the photo of the property below, neitherthe green encircled area, northe tree line outlined
inred constitute ayoung woodland as defined by the City of Franklin The green encircled 1 2-acre
“woody area” was cleared of invasive Tatarian honeysuckle and Common buckthorn shrubs (most less
than 3” diameter) toreveal many dead Green ash trees, dead and dying American elmtrees, and afew
apple treesthat collectively have a canopy coverage of approximately 10% - well below 50% to
constitute ayoungwoodland. Inlooking at historicaerial photographs thisareaappearedtobe
previously cultivated asanapple orchard and was not historically awoodland area. PerCity of Franklin
guidelines, remnant commercially grown apple trees would not be counted in determining young
woodland

Similarly, the canopy of the (red encircled) woody area along the propertyline has a preponderance of
invasive Common buckthorn and Tatanan honeysuckle less than 3" diameter The scattered mature
trees onthis property line /crop field edge are primarilydead or dying Green Ash and Americanelm.
Existing live treesthat exceed 3" diameter comprise much less than 50% canopy Therefore, thisareais
alsonot young woodland as defined in Franklin’s guidelines.

} concur with Franklin’s efforts to preserve the community’s remaining natural woodlands but in my
opinion the above-mentioned areas are of low ecological value, and furthermore fail to meetthe
definition of youngwoodland.,

Please let me know If you need any furtherclarification on thismatter.

Respectfully,
//w-j/w

Tom Zagar
ISA Certified Arbonst
WI-0541A






Pleasant View Development

Tom Riha <TRiha@franklinwi gov>
Mon 3/4/2019 11 24 AM

To: Joel Dietl <JDietl@franklinwi gov>
Cc: 'Rick Przybyla’ <nckprzybyla@hotmail com>

Hi Joel,

I had a chance to measure the spruce trees off 49t St. on 3/4/19. | found that the trees don’t meet
the size or quantity necessary to qualify as a grove. Only 3 of the spruce trees measured over 12in
The UDO states 8 or more over 12 are necessary In regards to the other trees on the property { will
stick with my original findings that no mature or young woodlands exist on the property. The
fragmentation and small area doesn’t meet the criteria for canopy coverage

Please let me know if you need any further information from me.

Tom Riha
City Forester
ISA- Certified Arborist/Municipal Specialist

@ Frankiin Logo Final email w text






State of Wisconsin Scett Walker, Governor

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL Cathy Stepp, Secretary
%ESgUgcgs ce Cent Telephone 608-266-2621
aukesha Service Center _888_036_ WISOONSH

141 NW Barstow, Room 180 o iree 1-888-936-7463 | o opmamnasesovces
Waukesha, WI 53188 ccess via relav - 711

October 3, 2016

Rick Przybyla

9244 W. Grandview Ct INF-SE-41-03710

Frankiin W[ 53132

Subject. Navigabllity Determination

Dear Mr. Przybyla.

This letter follows your request to the Department of Natural Resources (Department) to conduct a
navigability determination for a waterway which flows through your property with a tax key number
7889981001, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County. Department staff visited the property on
September 7", 2016 and determined the waterway to be non-navigable, _

In Wisconsin, the Supreme Court has defined a navigable waterway as one which has a defined
bed and banks and carries enough water to float a canoe or other watercraft during high periods
of water. Based on this definition, the waterway is non-navigable. While the waterway did have
defined bed and bank much of it was either too narrow or not deep enough to float a watercraft.
My assessment of the waterway included reviewing historic Department documentation and
database records, USGS topographic maps and aerial photographs. The field investigation was
conducted on September 7th, 2016, using standard Department protocol regarding the
assessment of physical and biological characteristics.

The waterway In question onginates in a wetland complex, flows south through a tree line and
under Evergreen Ct. See the attached air photo for the location of the non-navigable waterway

Please contact me If you have any questions

Sincerely,

\%a Duddtr macsier

-

Geri Radermacher
Water Management Specialist

Cc City of Franklin
ACOE
Mike Doble, Lynch & Assoclates

dnr wi gov Q

wisconsin gov Naturally WISCONSIN Finedon

Recycled
aper



Non-Navigable tributary to Root River. Site visit 09/07/2016






State of Wisconsin

2017 Assembly Bill 547

Date of enactment: March 28, 2018
Date of publication*: March 29, 2018

2017 WISCONSIN ACT 183

AN ACT t repeal 281 36 (31) (a) 4 and 281 36 (3s), fo renumber and amend 23 321 (1) and 23 321 (5), to amend
20370 (9) (bmy), 23 0917 (4) (c) 3,23 321 (4) (a) 3, 281 36 (3b) (b), 281 36 (3m) (a), 281 36 (3n) (d) 1,281 36 (3r)
(a) (intro ), 281 36 (4) (utle), 281 36 (6) (a) (intro ), 281 36 (9) (a) (intro ) and 281 36 (13m), and to create 15 347
(22),23 099, 23 321 (1) (am), 23 321 (2) (d), 23 321 (4) (a) 4, 23 321 (5) (b), 281 12 (2), 281 36 (3r) (am), 281 36
(4n), 281 36 (12m) and 281 37 of the statutes, relating to: the regulation and study of wetlands, grants for wetland

projects, and making an appropriation

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in
senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SEcTION 1. 15 347 (22) of the statutes 1s created to
read

15 347 (22) WETLAND STUDY COUNCIL. (a) There 1s
created 1n the department of natural resources a wetland
study council consisting of the following members,
appointed for staggered 6—year terms

1 One member who 1s a representative of a statewide
organization representing the business community

2 One member who 1s a representative of a statewide
organization representing waterfowl interests

3 One member who 1s a representative of a statewide
organization representing real estate and development
Interests

4 One member who 1s a representative of a statewide
organization representing municipal imnterests

5 One member who 1s a representative of a statewide
organization representing rural and agricultural interests

6 One member who 1s a representative of a statewide
land conservation group with a specific mterest in wet-
lands

7 One member who 1s a statewide wetland delin-
eator

8 One member who 1s a statewide wetland consul-
tant

9 One member who 15 a department of natural
resources biologist or hydrologist and who 1s a wetland
expert, appointed by the secretary of natural resources

(b) The wetland study council shall research and
develop recommendations on all of the following

1 The implementation and effectiveness of state-
wide wetland mitigation programs

2 Program elements that would be necessary for the
department of natural resources to implement 1if the
department assumes from the federal government the
authornty to administer the state’s own individual and
general permit program for the discharge of dredged or
fill material into the navigable waters of the state under
s 281 12 (2)

3 Issues related to the analysis of practicable alterna-
tives that avoid and minimize the adverse impacts of a
discharge into a wetland on wetland functional values

* Section 991 11 WISCONSIN STATUTES  Effective date of acts * Every act and every portion of an act enacted by the legislature over the governor’s
partial veto which does not expressly prescribe the ime when 1t takes effect shall take effect on the day after its date of publication’









2017 Wisconsin Act 183

area, as defined by the department by rule, as the dis-
charge

SECTION 19. 281 36 (3s) of the statutes 1s repealed

SECTION 20. 28136 (4) (title) of the statutes 1s
amended to read

281 36 (4) (utle) EXEMPTIONS, CERTAIN ACTIVITIES

SECTION 21. 281 36 (4n) of the statutes 1s created to
read

281 36 (4n) EXEMPTIONS, CERTAIN NONFEDERAL WET-
LANDS AND ARTIFICIAL WETLANDS (a) In this subsection

1 “Artficial wetland” means a landscape feature
where hydrophitic vegetation may be present as a result
of human modification to the landscape or hydrology and
for which the department has no defimitive evidence
showing a prior wetland or stream history that existed
before August 1, 1991, but does not mnclude any of the
following

a A wetland that serves as a fish spawning area or a
passage to a fish spawning area

b A wetland created as a result of a mitigation
requirement under sub (3r)

2 “Defimtive evidence” means documentary evi-
dence such as any of the following

a Maps

b Aerial photographs

¢ Surveys that use a scale of not more than 100 feet
per inch

d Wetland delineations

3 “Rare and high quality wetland” means a wetland
that 1s directly adjacent or contiguous to a class I or class
II trout stream or that consists of 75 percent or more of
any of the following wetland types
Alder thicket
Calcareous fen
Coniferous swamp
Coniferous bog
Floodplain forest
Hardwood swamp
Interdunal wetland
Open bog
Ridge and swail complex
Deep marsh
Sedge meadow
“Sewerage system” has the meaning given in s
28101 (14)

S “Urban area” means any of the following

a An incorporated area

b An area within one—half mile of an incorporated
area

¢ An area 1n a town that 1s served by a sewerage sys-
tem

(b) Subject to par (e), the permitting requirement
under sub (3b) does not apply to any discharge nto a
nonfederal wetland that occurs 1n an urban area and to
which all of the following apply

AERS - DTO0 0O OO0 O

—4 —

2017 Assembly Bill 547

1 The discharge does not affect more than one acre
of wetland per parcel

2 The discharge does not affect a rare and high qual-
1ty wetland

3 The development related to the discharge 1s carried
out n comphiance with any applicable storm water man-
agement zoning ordmance enacted under s 59 693,
60 627, 61 354, or 62 234 or storm water discharge per-
mit 1ssued under s 283 33

(c) Subject to par (e), the permitting requirement
under sub (3b) does not apply to any discharge into a
nonfederal wetland that occurs outside an urban area and
to which all of the following apply

1 The discharge does not affect more than 3 acres of
wetland per parcel

2 The discharge does not affect a rare and high qual-
ity wetland

3 The development related to the discharge 1s a struc-
ture, such as a building, driveway, or road, with an agri-
cultural purpose

(d) Subject to par (e), the permitting requirement
under sub (3b) does not apply to any discharge into an
artificial wetland

(e) 1 A person who proposes a project that may affect
a wetland or landscape feature under par (b), (c), or (d)
shall notify the department no fewer than 15 working
days before mmnating the project The notice shall
mclude one of the following to show that the wetland or
landscape feature 1s eligible for the relevant exemption

a A statement 1ssued by a professional who has
vestigated the wetland and who 1s qualified to give such
an oprmon

b A wetland delineation prepared by a qualified pro-
fessional showng the exact location and boundaries of
the wetland

2 Except as provided 1n subd 3, if the department
rece1ves the notice and information required under subd
1, the department shall presume that the wetland or land-
scape feature 1s eligible for the exemption unless the
department, within 15 working days after receiving noti-
fication of the proposed project under subd 1, notifies
the person that one of the following conditions applies

a The eligibility requirements are not met

b The location and boundaries of the wetland 1denti-
fied 1n a wetland delineation included with the noufica-
tion under subd 1 are not accurate

¢ With respect to an exemption under par (d) only,
the department determines that the landscape feature 1s
providing significant functions that either protect adja-
cent or downstream property or infrastructure from
flooding or significantly improve the water quality of an
adjacent or downstream water body

3 If the department receives the notice and informa-
tion required under subd 1 but 1s unable to determine
based on that information whether the eligibility require-






2017 Wisconsin Act 183

subsection at the end of each quarter as funds are avail-
able

(5) (a) If an application under sub (4) 1s approved,
the grantee and the department, 1n consultation, shall
identify all department permits required for the grantee
to conduct the project The department shall warve all
permit fees for the grantee 1n relation to department per-
muts required to conduct the project

(b) Notwithstanding timelines otherwise established
for individual permits, within 60 days of recerving the
grantee’s application for an individual permut that 1s
required to conduct the project, the department shall ren-
der a decision 1ssuing, denying, or modifying the permut,
and the department shall adjust all other deadlines relat-
mg to the review of the application accordingly

(7) (a) The department shall pay out a grant under the
mitigation program quarterly unless the department
determines that more frequent payments are necessary to
fulfill the objectives of the grant program The depart-
ment shall withhold the final payment until the grantee
certifies that the project 1s complete

(b) If the grantee fails to certify that the project 1s
complete by the date mndicated for completion mn 1ts appli-
cation, the department shall use the remamning unpaid
grant amount to erther complete the project or contract
with or 1ssue a grant to another nonprofit organization to
complete the project An organization that fails to certify
completion of a project by the date indicated 1n 1ts appli-
cation for completion 1s not eligible for a new grant under
the mitigation program for 2 grant cycles

(¢) The department may agree to a modified deadline
for the project if unusual or unforeseen circumstances
cause a delay If the department agrees to a modified
deadline, the consequences under par (b) apply only if
the grantee fails to certify that a project 1s complete by the
date indicated m that agreement

(8) Before 6 months have elapsed after the 5th anmi-
versary of the department’s first 1ssuance of a request for
proposals under sub (4), the department shall submut to
the legislature under s 13 172 (2) a report analyzing the
effectiveness of the first 5 years of the mitigation pro-
gram and making recommendations for changes to the
program

SECTION 27. Nonstatutory provisions.

(1) FEDERAL REVIEW OF MITIGATION PROJECTS The
department of natural resources may submit a request to
the U S army corps of engmeers that the U S army corps
of engineers move up all deadlines relating to 1ts review
and approval of wetland mitigation project proposals
under the 1n lieu fee subprogram under section 281 36
(3r) of the statutes so that the tume 1t takes for the U S

-6 -

2017 Assembly Bill 547

army corps of engineers to approve such a proposal 1s
shortened The department of natural resources may sub-
mit a request to the US army corps of engineers to
approve a modification to the Wisconsin Wetland Con-
servation Trust program instrument n order to imple-
ment the mitigation grant program established under sec-
tion 281 37 of the statutes

(2) APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS OF WETLAND STUDY
COUNCIL The governor shall appoint the members of the
wetland study council under section 15 347 (22) (a) 1 to
8 of the statutes and the secretary of natural resources
shall appoimnt the member of the wetland study council
under section 15 347 (22) (a) 9 of the statutes no later
than 6 months after the effective date of this subsection

(3) INITIAL TERMS FOR WETLAND STUDY COUNCIL MEM-
BERS  Notwithstanding section 15347 (22) of the
statutes, of the members of the wetland study council
who are appointed as imitial members, 3 members shall
serve for a 2—year term and 3 members shall serve for a
4—year term

SecTION 28. Initial applicability.

(1) NONFEDERAL WETLAND DELINEATIONS

(a) Except as provided 1n paragraph (b), the renum-
bering and amendment of section 23 321 (1) and (5) of
the statutes and the creation of section 23 321 (1) (am)
and (5) (b) of the statutes first apply to a wetland 1dentifi-
cation provided by the department of natural resources
under section 23 321 (2) (b) of the statutes and a wetland
confirmation provided by the department of natural
resources under section 23 321 (2) (¢) of the statutes for
a nonfederal wetland on January 1, 2003

(b) The renumbering and amendment of section
23 321 (1) and (5) of the statutes and the creation of sec-
tion 23 321 (1) (am) and (5) (b} of the statutes first apply
to a wetland identification and wetland confirmation
under paragraph (a) even 1f the wetland 1dentification or
wetland confirmation expired prior to the effective date
of this paragraph unless a more recent wetland identifica-
tion or wetland confirmation was provided by the depart-
ment of natural resources showing a wetland on the par-
cel and a discharge was carried out 1n the wetland in
compliance with a permit under section 281 36 of the
statutes prior to the effective date of this paragraph

SEcTION 29. Effective dates. Thus act takes effect on
the day after publication, except as follows

(1) PERMIT EXEMPTIONS FOR CERTAIN NONFEDERAL
WETLANDS AND ARTIFICIAL WETLANDS The treatment of
section 281 36 (3b) (b), (3m) (a), (3n) (d) 1, (3n) (a)
(intro ) and (am), (4) (title), (4n), (6) (a) (intro ), and (9)
(a) (intro ) of the statutes takes effect on July 1, 2018




DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, ST. PAUL DISTRICT
180 FIFTH STREET EAST, SUITE 700
ST. PAUL, MN 55101-1678

October 27, 2020

Regulatory File No. 2020-01931-MHK

Shyann Banker

Evergreen Consultants LLC
2918 Van Hoof Road

Green Bay, Wisconsin 54313

Dear Ms. Banker

This letter regards an approved jurisdictional determination for the property located at 7475
S. 49" Street In the City of Franklin. The site 1s in Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 21 East,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin The review area for our jurisdictional determination for Wetland 1
and 2 1s identified on the enclosed figures labeled, 2020-01931-MHK Figure 1 and 2.

The review area contains no waters of the United States subject to Corps of Engineers
(Corps) junsdiction. Therefore, you are not required to obtain Department of the Army
authorization to discharge dredged or fill matenal within this area. The rationale for this
determination 1s provided in the enclosed Approved Jurisdictional Determination form. This
determination 1s only valid for the review area described. You are also cautioned that the area of
waters described on the enclosed Jurisdictional Determination form is approximate and is not
based on a precise delineation of aquatic resources.

If you object to this approved jurisdictional determination, you may request an administrative
appeal under Corps regulations at 33 CFR 331. Enclosed you will find a Notification of Appeal
Process (NAP) fact sheet and Request for Appeal (RFA) form. If you request to appeal this
determination, you must submit a completed RFA form to the Mississippi Valley Division Office
at the address shown on the form.

In order for an RFA to be accepted by the Corps, the Corps must determine that it is
complete, that it meets the critena for appeal under 33 CFR 331.5, and that it has been received
by the Division Office within 60 days of the date of the enclosed NAP. It I1s not necessary to
submit an RFA form to the division office If you do not object to the determination in this letter.

This approved jurisdictional determination may be relied upon for five years from the date of
this letter However, the Corps reserves the right to review and revise the determination in
response to changing site conditions, information that was not considered during our initial
review, or off-site activities that could indirectly alter the extent of wetlands and other resources
on-site. This determination may be renewed at the end of the five year period provided you
submit a written request and our staff are able to venfy that the imits established during the
original determination are still accurate.

If you have any questions, please contact me in our Brookfield office at (651) 290-5733 or
Marie . H.Kopka@usace.army.mil. In any correspondence or inquiries, please refer to the
Regulatory file number shown above.

Sincerely,

Tp b K.

Marie H. Kopka
Lead Project Manager



Regulatory Branch (File No. 2020-01931-MHK)

Enclosures

Cc Ryan Pappas, Wisconsin DNR
Ben LaCount, Evergreen

Page 2 of 2


















NOTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS AND

REQUEST FOR APPEAL
Applicant: Evergreen Consultants LLC (Shyann Banke})File No.: 2020-01931-MHK | Date: October 27, 2020
Attached 15 See Section below
INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission) A
PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Pernut or Letter of permission) B
PERMIT DENIAL C
X APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION D

PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION E
SECTION I - The following 1dentifies your rights and options regarding an adnmmistrative appeal of the above decision Additional

information may be found at http //usace army.mil/net/functions/cw/cecwolreg or Corps regulations at 33 CFR Part 331
A INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT You may accept or object to the permit

e ACCEPT Ifyoureceived a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return 1t to the district engineer for final
authorization If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work 1s authorized Your
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit 1n its entirety, and waive all rights
to appeal the permut, including 1ts terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permut

¢ OBIJECT Ifyouobjectto the permut (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you may request that
the permit be modified accordingly You must complete Section II of this form and return the form to the district engineer
Your objections must be recerved by the district engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice, or you will forfeit your night
to appeal the permit in the future Upon receipt of your letter, the district engineer will evaluate your objections and may (a)
modify the permit to address all of your concerns, (b) modify the permit to address some of your objections, or (¢) not modify
the permit having determined that the permit should be 1ssued as previously written  After evaluating your objections, the
district engineer will send you a proffered permut for your reconsideration, as indicated in Section B below

B PROFFERED PERMIT You may accept or appeal the permit

e ACCEPT Ifyoureceived a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final
authorization If you recerved a Letter of Permussion (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work 1s authorized Your
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights
to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit.

¢ APPEAL If you choose to decline the proffered permut (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you
may appeal the declined permit under the Corps of Engineers Admunistrative Appeal Process by completing Section II of this
form and sending the form to the division engineer This form must be received by the division engineer within 60 days of the
date of this notice

C PERMIT DENIAL You may appeal the demal of a permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by
completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer Thus form must be received by the division
engtneer within 60 days of the date of this notice

D APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION You may accept or appeal the approved JD or provide new information

¢ ACCEPT You do not need to notify the Corps to accept an approved JD Failure to notify the Corps within 60 days of the
date of this notice, means that you accept the approved JD m its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the approved JD

e APPEAL If you disagree with the approved JD, you may appeal the approved JD under the Corps of Engineers Administrative
Appeal Process by completing Section IT of this form and sending the form to the division engineer Thus form must be recerved
by the division engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice

E PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION You do not need to respond to the Corps regarding the preliminary
JD The Preliminary JD 1s not appealable If you wish, you may request an approved JD (which may be appealed), by contacting
the Corps district for further instruction Also you may provide new information for further consideration by the Corps to reevaluate
the JD




SECTION II - REQUEST FOR APPEAL or OBJECTIONS TO AN INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT

REASONS FOR APPEAL OR OBJECTIONS (Describe your reasons for appealing the decision or your objections to an imitial
proffered permut 1n clear concise statements You may attach additional information to this form to clanfy where your reasons or
objections are addressed in the administrative record )

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION The appeal 1s limited to a review of the administrative record, the Corps memorandum for the
record of the appeal conference or meeting, and any supplemental information that the review officer has determined 1s needed to
clarify the administrative record Neither the appellant nor the Corps may add new information or analyses to the record However,
you may provide additional information to clanfy the location of information that 1s already 1n the administrative record

POINT OF CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS OR INFORMATION

If you have questions regarding this decision and/or the appeal If you only have questions regarding the appeal process you may
process you may contact also contact the Division Engineer through

Marie Kopka Administrative Appeals Review Officer

U S Army Corps of Engineers Mississipp1 Valley Division

250 Sunnyslope Road, Suite 296 P O Box 80 (1400 Walnut Street)

Brookfield, Wisconsin 53005 Vicksburg, MS 39181-0080

601-634-5820 FAX 601-634-5816
651-290-5733

RIGHT OF ENTRY Your signature below grants the right of entry to Corps of Engineers personnel, and any government
consultants, to conduct investigations of the project site during the course of the appeal process You will be provided a 15 day
notice of any site investigation, and will have the opportunity to participate 1n all site investigations

Date Telephone number

Signature of appellant or agent
















CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON OUTLOT 2,
AND LOTS 26, 32, 33, 34, AND 35 OF
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE

EXHIBIT A—1 NE COR - SE 1/4

SEC 11-5-21
| BRASS CAPPED
MONUMENT FOUND

N LINE — SE 1/4 — SEC 11-5-21

N8747 45 E 261813 (OVERALL)
| wowaRQUETTE AVENUE. /. IR
1 1309 06

271 84

LOT 26

EASEMENT ON LOTS 26, 32, 33, 34
AND 35 IS PERMITTED PER UDO
STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT OF
WETLAND SETBACKS (15-4.0102.1)

/DEVELOPMENT WITHIN CONSERVATION

\(@
fL69

P.0.B.

\

\
\

o
Q

UNPLATTED LANDS

PROPOSED 50°
CONSERVATION ~
EASEMENT

WETLAND

\—E LINE OF THE W 1/2 OF THE—/

37

SE 1/4 OF SEC 11-5-21

e e e St

‘\________________________‘

\

L1

WETLAND

QUTLOT 2
8// ,/ - |
\I/ ,
9/ /
\(9/ ! "
€. 6%
P

NORTH

1 ? ! 100 Camelot Drive
100 0 100 200 X Fond Du Lac, Wi 54935
; )
1"= 100 ARCHITECTS » ENGINEERS » SURVEYORS www EXCELENGINEER com

SCALE FEET Always a Better Plan JOB NO. 2044840




CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON OUTLOT 2,
AND LOTS 26, 32, 33, 34, AND 35 OF
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
EXHIBIT A-2

ouTLOT 2 =
~/ ; UNPLATTED LANDS
N
91 /
/ /
/ /i
PROPOSED 50’ 50 /
CONSERVATION T/ﬁ’ ]
EASEMENT 2 /
/ /
! -~
/ ,/ PROPOSED WETLAND ,/ b
A\
/ /’/ MITIGATION AREA L \
/ .~ \
3 /
’~Ol I/ R \
T VARENYE: T
/ ; . Ve
, ' // /3 \ - :
l [ - /7= N
0 1 e /o -
B, ! < /7> -~
! , | N (3~
| \ I L Siuo N
<\ i | o~y
5 . ~
- | / R
I . ) [~
&’%: , / I \
- ! / w
I | / / £
I / /’\') O
b O BATMIRS, | 2
TRAL [CROSSIS & % lf
! ] ~
| [ ‘o 53¢
o] : . 50_.\=—PROPOSED 50’ y =
7 , ‘ <. CONSERVATION 54
| ; \2 EASEMENT w
o I WETLAND ) |
0 / , |
—y !
i ‘ [ OUTLOT 1
/ ‘ ] CSM NO 6540
/ / |

100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935

Phone (920) 926-9800
www EXCELENGINEER com

ARCHITECTS  ENGINEERS ¢ SURVEYORS

. Always a Better Plan JOB NO. 2044840




CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON OUTLOT 2,
AND LOTS 26, 32, 33, 34, AND 35 OF
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
EXHIBIT A-3

/ : ! OUTLOT 2
g e

/
/ I’ I
of [
\I// /l " I 8
/ , ,/ II =
</ : :

4 PARCEL 2
v CSM NO 6725

l PROPOSED 30" !
PROPOSED 50| &M N\, \ CONSERVATION
CONSERVATION EASEMENT \utor 2\ ) ; LoT 3
O N © 0T 2. EVERGREEN PARK ESTATES
79\ N EVERGREEN PARK i
N\ ¢ %, ESTATES
N
L40
@ |
o
N :
1 i H R
o -
LOT e
8 é EVERGRI»;_E_N"TDAR]K ESTATES i P
2 5
: : N 4 _
2 5 / o
g 3 , V4 /
. s ; ’ o
z & { PROPOSED 30
g i | CONSERVATION ) /
z E EASEMENT % y
— i —— S A
- T —— L34 ¢
W. EVERGREEN STREET P /
- —_— OUTLOT 1
—_— e EVERGREEN PARK ESTATES
N

LOT 4

EVERGREEN PARK

ESTATES // ‘
&

) , ' .
0 100 100 Camelot Drive
100 200 Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
1"= 100 ARCHITECTS o ENGINEERS @ SURVEYORS www EXCELENGINEER.com

SCALE FEET Always a Better Plan JOB NO. 2044840




CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON OUTLOT 2,
AND LOTS 26, 32, 33, 34, AND 35 OF
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
EXHIBIT A—4

CONSERVATION EASEMENT CURVE TABLE

Curve Table

Curve | Arc Length | Radwus | Chord Bearing | Chord Length Delta Tangent In | Tangent Out

C1 81 30' 12000 | S68°0340 W 7975 0384857 | S872808 W | S483911 W

CONSERVATION EASEMENT LINE TABLE

Line Table Line Table

Line # Directian Length Line # Direction Length
L1 |s000032 w| 78313 136 |N234407 w| 3685
L2 | NS60242 w| 6718 L37 | Nn10o138 E | 8225
L3 | N69'54'54"W | 3765 L38 | Not4647 E | 50 69’
L4 | N13'35'01 W | 4558 L39 | N1650'05"W | 56 98
L5 |No024'58 W | 851 L40 |Nso'se’2s™w | 30 23
L6 | SB2:0411"w | 1158 141 |N483418 W | 1956
L7 |ssostros w| 476 142 | N2as513 W | 5976
L8 |s225402w | 1672 143 | N2g's309"W | 4945
L9 |s330208 w| 5700 L44 | NO417 29°E | 77 20
Lo |s70423aw| 726 L45 | N27'18 S7°E | 5502
L | s2711928 E | 298 146 | N243613€E | 5444
L12 | so09's1'56 W | 8298 L47 | N241057 E | 6074
113 |s244557 w | 6866 148 | N194ga2 € | 6839
L4 |s3819'50 w| 903 L49 | n110s24 € | 8842
15 |sos43osw| 1773 150 | NOB4504 E | 4779
L16 | S16M155E | 3660 151 | NO52001 E | 7352
L17 | s215730 € | 3154 152 | NO12120 € | 6457
118 | 5035754 w | 6341 L53 | N00'S310 E | 5988
L9 | si6'5620"w | 77 09 154 | N2634s4mw | 1717
120 | s11°07'04 w | 9011 155 | NO34217E | 8250
L21 | S185702 W | 74 44 Ls6 | N1200131 E | 8688
122 | st11846 W | 3728 157 | N132654€ | 52 30"
123 | NB95923 W | 2040 L58 | N140127 E | 8073
24 |S28'4055 w | 5252 Ls9 | Naoos11 E | 2232
L25 | S332334E | 10691 L60 | N182119 E | 6005
126 |s022908 W | 4759 L6t | N184502E | 3774
127 |S332237 W | 1434 L62 | N48'52 22"E | 4997
128 | S143942 E | 4252 163 | N6518'04°E | 5485°
L29 | S030210 € | 4092 L64 | Ns62916 E | 8717
L30 | s0816%02 E | 2247 165 | N612222E | 659
L31 | $133517E | 5810 66 | N260913E | 717
L32 |so04309 w| 2367 L67 | Not4414 € | 27700
L33 | S4873912 W | 2063 L68 | N604632 E | 7593
L34 | 5872807 W | 26 62 169 |s000032 w| 2292 oo e 035
L35 |N423430 W | 1829 e e R LENGINEER com

Always a Better Plan JOB NO. 2044840




CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON OUTLOT 2, AND LOTS
26, 32, 33, 34, AND 35 OF PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE
EXHIBIT A-5

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT

That part of Outlot 2, and part of Lots 26, 32, 33, 34, and 35 of Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision, being part of the
Northwest 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin being more particularly described as follows

Beginning at the Northeast corner of Outlot 2 of said Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision, thence South 00°-00'-32" West
along the East hine of said Qutlot 2, a distance of 783 13 feet, thence North 56°-02'-42" West, a distance of 67 18 feet, thence
North 69°-54'-54" West, a distance of 37 65 feet, thence North 13°-35’-01" West, a distance of 45 58 feet, thence North
00°-24'-58" West, a distance of 8 51 feet, thence South 82°-04'-11" West, a distance of 11 58 feet, thence South 50°-51'-04"
West, a distance of 4 76 feet, thence South 22°-54'-02" West, a distance of 16 72 feet, thence South 33°-02'-08" West, a
distance of 57 00 feet, thence South 70°-42'-34" West, a distance of 7 26 feet, thence South 27°-19'-28" East, a distance of

2 98 feet, thence South 09°-51'-56" West, a distance of 82 98 feet, thence South 24°-45'-57" West, a distance of 68 66 feet,
thence South 38°-19'-59" West, a distance of 9 03 feet, thence South 05°-43'-03" West, a distance of 17 73 feet, thence South
16°-11'-55" East, a distance of 36 60 feet, thence South 21°-57'-30" East, a distance of 31 54 feet, thence South 03°-57'-54"
West, a distance of 63 41 feet, thence South 16°-56'-20" West, a distance of 77 09 feet, thence South 11°-07'-04" West, a
distance of 90 11 feet, thence South 18°-57'-02" West, a distance of 74 44 feet, thence South 11°-18'-46" West, a distance of
37 28 feet to a Southerly line of said Outlot 2, thence North 89°-59'-23" West along a South line of said Outlot 2, a distance
of 20 40 feet to an Easterly ine of said Outlot 2, thence South 28°-40'-55" West along an East line of said Qutlot 2, a distance
of 52 52 feet, thence South 33°-23'-34" East along an East line of said Outlot 2, a distance of 106 91 feet, thence South
02°-29'-08" West along an East line of said Outlot 2, a distance of 47 59 feet, thence South 33°-22'-37" West along an East
line of said Outlot 2, a distance of 14 34 feet, thence South 14°-39'-42" East along an East line of said Outlot 2, a distance of
42 52 feet, thence South 03°-02'-10" East along an East line of said QOutlot 2, a distance of 40 92 feet, thence South
08°-16'-02" East along an East line of said Outlot 2, a distance of 22 47 feet, thence South 13°-35'-17" East along an East line
of said Outlot 2, a distance of 58 10 feet, thence South 00°-43'-09" West along an East line of said Outlot 2, a distance of

23 67 feet to the Southeast corner of said Outlot 2, said point being on the Northerly nght-of-way line of W Evergreen
Street, thence South 48°-39'-12" West along said Northerly line, a distance of 20 63 feet, thence Southwesterly 81 30 feet
along said Northerly line on a curve to the nght having a radius of 120 00 feet, the chord of said curve bears South
68°-03'-40" West, a chord distance of 79 75 feet, thence South 87°-28'-07" West along said Northerly line, a distance of

26 62 feet to the Southwest corner of said Outlot 2, thence North 42°-34'-39" West along a West line of said Outlot 2, a
distance of 18 29 feet, thence North 23°-44'-07" West along a West line of said Outlot 2, a distance of 36 85 feet, thence
North 10°-01'-38" East along a West line of said Outlot 2, a distance of 82 25 feet, thence North 01°-46'-47" East along a
West line of said Outlot 2, a distance of 50 69 feet, thence North 16°-50'-05" West along a West line of said Outlot 2, a
distance of 56 98 feet to a Southerly line of said Outlot 2, thence North 89°-59'-25" West along a South line of said Outlot 2,
a distance of 30 23 feet, thence North 48°-34'-18" West, a distance of 19 56 feet, thence North 44°-55'-13" West, a distance
of 59 76 feet, thence North 28°-53'-09" West, a distance of 49 45 feet, thence North 04°-17'-29" East, a distance of 77 20 feet,
thence North 27°-18'-57" East, a distance of 55 02 feet, thence North 24°-36'-13" East, a distance of 54 44 feet, thence North
24°-10'-57" East, a distance of 60 74 feet, thence North 19°-48'-42" East, a distance of 68 39 feet, thence North 11°-05'-24"
East, a distance of 88 42 feet, thence North 08°-45'-04" East, a distance of 47 79 feet, thence North 05°-20'-01" East, a
distance of 73 52 feet, thence North 01°-21'-20" East, a distance of 64 57 feet, thence North 00°-53'-10" East, a distance of
59 88 feet, thence North 26°-34'-54" West, a distance of 17 17 feet, thence North 03°-42’-17" East, a distance of 82 50 feet,
thence North 12°-01'-31" East, a distance of 86 88 feet, thence North 13°-26'-54" East, a distance of 52 31 feet, thence North
14°-01'-27" East, a distance of 80 73 feet, thence North 40°-06’-11" East, a distance of 22 32 feet, thence North 18°-21'-19"
East, a distance of 60 05 feet, thence North 18°-45'-02" East, a distance of 37 74 feet, thence North 48°-52'-22" East, a
distance of 49 97 feet, thence North 65°-18-04" East, a distance of 54 85 feet, thence North 86°-29'-16" East, a distance of
87 17 feet, thence North 61°-22'-22" East, a distance of 6 59 feet, thence North 26°-09'-13" East, a distance of 7 17 feet,
thence North 01°-44'-14" East, a distance of 277 00 feet, thence North 60°-46'-32" East, a distance of 75 93 feet, thence
South 00°-00'-32" West, a distance of 22 92 feet to the point of beginning

¢
&

100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, W1 54935
Phone (920} 926-9800

ARCHITECTS & ENGINEERS # SURVEYORS www EXCELENGINEER com

Always a Better Plan JOB NO. 2044840




7 o 5 B
~ s § N I T o o] mowm] o | Ssemen [wer | wor | @
ag |* <o 56 2 10uno (dvD SSY¥E /M NINNNOW N SsI0V ON [ I ! [ I , [=]
rg o S B, T e oo | Y T R ) e P ) |
58 , g, Q0L/S1/5 0w Lo oW 1w NN a3 NowoTe GNNO4 Idid NOM v I Vo i
M N SO ” 14/87 0% DNIHOI3M
fe & A 250 9 g w0 v ¢ oNnos avERY v/ O iab et e X et ® FavL 3ANND VIIY ONVILIM
>l A Derme > 3 by Jom o0 H iy (oot ws | o _tow [rtien] _war | oo [vme] _tow [ w |
b P 8 - omm R K 5 13/87 0T ¥ ONI9IM : . e o .
i | g i Fo 3% i o T B 0 ie aNno. WVERI v/ PR AN AR M [ srmons | Sorovms [womidon| v | awees |oocw| mw [ oo |
2 TEH R 4 208, M.GY.L9LES - - S F S D R A L A N B
& TTo v 5 NI 09 £09T5 AL | 905 | Waoedis |00
) v 4500 Ed v ks P
g . sy o 4 &3 Spey e, sls 2 WOSSE.TON Sz oL | miZo.ssON | 0oaRt
5 3 Snor e s P 5101 BN g ws [ e, ] oo wer [ o wi] Satsasen sie| som oo
g 107 ¥ B 2 3.97.50H0N | a0l e [ 3zomvacs | s T B i 000y
.| * 3} K e viso, o = 'y L’ I W Wt wors | v P L) T oo
9 m‘ 3 7// L AN 2T G s .58 ¢ w0 w e ] Qe o o o or
cfs g Ty & § 4 Fn 3.9% ¥0.00N w o | wwess | o s o o
H 818 a 3t - wses | I Jazs oror £
3 <% & \om s | g g s | o s ses | et 255 | mesnto X
H o s Iud o1 owvaRI0
[ L o o ez | Tooseas | R w0
-y 2 0022z 3.57.LYLEN oo L DO P PR i
2 Se ™ B ,00°0Z1L Sackon | oot Zow [ msaizss | s 3. soxos 0020 s | 0002
84 by
3% 3 rorr g 3,95 ¥0.00N u Stz |_w s s ears | vt
% o, 2 WSS & 3. vozaN | 51 0S5 ZE0RN s00| 60 80T
a oy oo | 5 Zy'6L Voaeoen | o Karwaen i | vt =
L 7 ! % P U ETIK At evom pT T T
K B TR -
v exco P e LA 4 m o 1‘h§=‘aﬂiu 5 85 4¥l 202D, PN [ ve1 +L5..00N a00,7290N | 20 UNI
’ wr B 4% rtoan] RO | Rere et wan | Soou
b O 5 TEENE gl - < oy el SEER L~"3,9v v0.00N
W B¢ &% o8 010! 2 T INNIAY THTD HINMD, 2508909 | 201 Ao _LLZIN RSIECHIN | OORI
G 3 Wi Ble | glo ¢ o sy ey WO 2 et 3 ] ot wosz,_won | o0ut
. Hl U_ | e By s p B smm N WALELEIN | 061 ALOODRIDN | Y HL0D AN | o
o PP il pues E S T o 15 noznn_.u.&“. ouL8 TR T | o P ] ) A N T
L c b — &
96'6C% u‘mq,.uwu.hm 50'99 m.»: - ,mqmm.«‘ oy 1 s & \.;.nc.hc.nmm 7B WD aN ISR W Y0UNTON | AVGLENES | BGSE60 | Dwu UL
F3 0701 0N 0 T INNIAY m»»m P X! . 45 vOl4 v, vl = [A5LENLS | W ve 0T oe0¥ I
i - ‘ul\‘zqﬁ&fm“ﬂﬁ,“_z?«wwpoom oy e o ey Lo A o s e oo ww v
Lurm- - 1K o ) - 0= Jow._88).
L AR M .\m - (avn=go-p13) . i 30Oy | s, LN | o 00TYCE | 058G HLE 0500 o0
T J
/TN SILIOSVR [ e sy LG s
i swovorco | alo | Bl 63 W |[_vsasson| o W0.0RION | TR0, IN |2 (SO0 | oW X
dwmewa S [ o8 AT | varass | w0 oo
Mg | 5F [ peme Vo e | st oo
= i = Tr vdwn XD et
#,21,00.88 oo b et easoe | svi Cr
1334 _ mws o i [agmn] Tz ) T T
= ; = — [ g Tnee s sowes | et ot Tatam|_ww | st |
002 06 3 ] A4 g 2 . we | oS S G T
; & 2 s | e P E T ww | _wa | ow
i o ST ST 0 Zuwmnmww e \ ATV 3 00vTH ] LTI X P T P wo | w | ®
N3I0 3AV). SINSWINTSYIR BVIIORY ]
% 0y Ve, x»uaxn»z)ux uuxzn —uﬂuk(uz;uu_c . ” TRT RIIFTIN .. \os | ot M UESELIN 5 0550 o019 800L ¢RE w
OL 3U¥A N338 3AVH SINININASYIN BYINN T EAY: & %m. . 108] 61 OV RRR0D. 1902 #.505% ON | 000FY | 290Z | ¢
0.5 £L005 40 INYIE ¥ S¥F MELUYAD [ g w0t | e R EE R
SYIULNON I 0 INI iSIM WL LZOKIVN) o 3% 3405700N | o LT T ToLADD | 5819 | AZvatUN |00FY[ SOT3 | w
IN0Z_ OGS 'NAUSAS IUYNICHO0D INId VLS L *
NISNOISM 3+L 0L DIINZNILTW LNIOd ILNON < ) H 3, avwon| o AR kel I T BN | 00C | &0 | v
112 * ) 3 PO e ASoRS | IR | TRV T )
3 sy oueo | g% Py Y 2 Sy EE | a0 Cr AN | v viaoa | wm | T.teessne | aoeec | _oowr | 1 |
2 230 Leuro E % 1 I
SPMORY ALY 4 NNV NG 5o B g I ivows | o | rse o] _sce | ndtws [sw | ywer | o |
THL ONV NITXNYAS 40 4000 31 AR QALYIAOIH NE] El o Vil Vo, | 00| 10w g | Dwsewr sives | e | Ibwn ooy | g |
AHHYID 31 WA NON MOV 0V 0 1334 1 e
001 NIIW GILYI0Y §i IANISIH MIA ANYSYII T iR ) |
(SNOI ¥301 0750d08d H0d » ® REE, |3 [stey sezo . -
£ 13315 335) SINIAND00 L YHYIS ¥3id QAUVINC — .o«b_mﬂ m (148 B mm NOISAIGENS 3ANISTY MUA LNVSYITY
70 0L SININISY3 I0VNIVHA/NINIS WHOLS 2 o w g 29'8€2  3.2€.16.L8N 000 EAN
- NISNODSH  ALNMQY VM IR NIDINVES 40 ALY
{SNOUDINISIY ONY SNOL ¥O0) U3S0dONd L X MEMIA X 3 Lsvi 12 30NV ;xou Mmkfmlaﬂ» NOUD3S 0 2/ 3
H04 ¥ ¥ € 133HS 335) 'SINAMNCQO 3IYHYAIS 3 m i
¥3d OLVIH0 30 OL SONVAUIM ONNOHY SININISV —_ —— g et Suiea
ATING GN, HovELL3S ONYUIN 05 0750d0H g B 2 Sg| Vo SHLON ISMUZILO SSIIN
anv "1on0y O, $344na ONVAUSK O 07504044 B B s ' 8 v YOVALIS ONIGINE DIkl "
INGISYS NOUVANISNOD 08 G3SOdONd § o oo o ke ome (B8R 8 e 20 w3 *
IOk 3 @ SO DAL _ 2 A g 2 m z.%l\l
g K 7]
HES o arataeter i M F N |_||W e
: ) w g ne s - )
N_. & % 1orafive JEa o -
) sy awel o 4 4 % 3, v ——
P Qs mare § s mx L
i S YOS 3 ) M « TN
= o ey s - g, | LIAN A s an
w ] N 308 EE s W A
I bt & ot | weeanioN| @ e
D 3 i o | oanen W
ol mevses) w N s H ww [ v | o ® %
y Slg st | 8§ Fu S e T I (B 7 s
R n H | L W I o /A Al
rorr} waEmE c g g frenivialad |
. it =
3 S A Mm% Vi
[ % .
v T [EE g -+ J w e
Py 44 Wb N800 3,96.L4.LBN wil L%,
iVl £OSH 3.02 500N i
w3 Tun i sV T [mmanan —
S OLFINA. 9578 M. Ip.8R.I N woesseen| | @
65 £2.910=7 & bl L
ey 10 L£=HD . , ] P P
Sasas. TN —- 00.L.00N gp SP0or Husha -7 14 OS LE0P89 L
- B b % Y80 0% g
T B et vy SIUDV 099'8€
o T hen w0
PR ek .
T st i ‘mon ST GALEV AN 5 VWY viOL 0 5 LT AT e (e
KOV SR ] JdVYN NOILVOOT %ot v ‘wnr “siva ginssi
..... i Pzt Sirlovove W
- v, % 5t S amihon UOBISIUIIPY J0 1GaluIEdaq
T e
/ O'd
NISNOJSIM  ALNNOD IIANVMIN

1A __‘mmuzm S 40 | h.mxm\__

NIIYMNYYS 40 ALID 3HL N 1SY3 1Z 3ONVY HLYON € dIHSNMOL
MN JHL ONY #/L 3N 3HL 40 +/1 MS 3HL 40 1¥vd ¥ ONE3E 1Y

MN JHL 40 l¥¥d ANV '¥#/L 3N 3BL 40 /1 MS 3HL 40 LyV

LI NOUOIS 40 #/1 35 3HL 40 +/1 MS ONY +/1
1L NOWD3IS 40 /1 35 3HL 40 v/1L MS ONY ¥/t
d ONv £8Z6 'ON dvW A3AYNS Q31411830 40 Z 100

INHISTH MIIN LNVSVI'Id

T \ T paunany
StmS S T 9EC 'S Aq papraoid se "SIBS ST

(2) pum (1)1 T'9EC PU® OT'OET ‘91 9ET §1°9FT 03§
o1 )92d591 Uzt 1t(d ST O SwOROAGO O AT AL,




16'90

Zeer
srne

#.28,00.005

L FLPZS L

o 131 15K 00IDS NHNVALY 1O
SONVY QAP

£
=
v

0

§ 95 0
R /u
&

s

¥

TOM][si3aHs s Jo 2 h.m_xm\__

ER YA
2578 1M.55.07.828:
L7 ¥8Z M, $2,65.68N

samv wvo

05 19D
i

5/ L17) SIwy (S0
I ek

& 1o

g 3

b
&

16N 20NG 404 Wy

RaLE LN

S0

1334 EL 5QNODIS- TYH O1 UILNJADD ONY ONOOJS (SIBYIN 3k QL
= 0 0vm 1330 SAvy. SINISUNSVIN WARONY. v 4005 ¥ 10 HLO3HONAN S3OMIDS3H WU YN 40 INIALIVAI WENGOSW
s — IND S3YYIN JHL OL 30vA N3J@ JAYH SINIAJHNSYIA AYING Tiv ONY NITANYYS S0 1D 3HL A6 QILYINDIY
5 0 4 ANYVYNO D1 YEIA-NON 3AILDY N¥ 4O 1334
-0z 0 o < _BLELODS 0 NIVID ¥ SV 3LuvAD 001 Nt GAVI0T Si NI AN SN 3T T
Y3} LHON 3HL 30 INP IS34 I (LZGIOYN) INOZ HAMOS "MALSAS
3 ILYNIGHO0D 3NV 3LVLS NISNODSM 3HL 01 03INIYIIFY INIOd 130N (SNOV ¥DU' 03500 HOJ ¥ ®
1 § 13348 335) S NIANDOO AvHVeIS ¥3c QILVID
b 38 OL SLININISYI 3DVNIVHO/YIMIS MYOLS T
o e (SNOWYI01 03ISOOHd
WLVIS Y o WISEOUINS SISy BO2 » ¥ £ IS IS) "SININND0Q ILYAVJIS
£G,8.850=0 o MV NI 43d 0IV3ED 30 OL SONYUIM ONNOHY SINIWISYS
LG8 299z vIoT LTIAG ON. XOVOL3S ONY1 3R .05 Q35040H:
SLBLEHY anv “QN0L N KILIAE TNYILI 0f QISCdoNY
M.0P.£0.895280 M.£0,82.L85 o ST — — NARISY3 NOI YANISNGD 0 GSGH0HS
00°0Z1 = 4 —_ -
208 18=1 (s wiom a2 SO -
T3351% , N33009dAT M
£9°0Z  M.Z165.89S Gl Il*\
£L9ET  M.60 C¥.00S- M, BE ¥E.TYN
58'9¢
M.LOYP.EEN 5
i
5228 E
T W 3,85 10.0IN E 5
IR IS R 2 ’
— TT*TI¥zz 3,208 808 .
260% 3.0420.505 69'0S__3.L7i8%.1ON W
: 0% .86'S5 M.S0,05.9IN
ST HTHECHIS £C 1T M S2,65.68N
PEPL MGELLETS p
DY N S N txﬂ:n. .._.—Qeu—_mm.ﬁ»u
T 10 CLVLRY iy RI30RIAS 161 a
TloT / dp
v 7 B33
851y M.50.65.208 / s e o

Al
TN
o
e
e
1 fov

3.S£,00.00N

g

91921

W il

N QALY dNe

WAYD U NV ¥ N HEGE 4T
KON ALV

001/ /T OBV 1S JIwA HIWO

NISNOJSIM  ALNNOD 33INNYMIT W
NPOYNVES 40 ALID 3HL NI LSY3 LT 3ONVY HLYON § dIHSNMOL
MN 3HL ONY $/1 3N 3HL 40 /1 MS 3HL 40 L¥vd ¥V ONIZE ¥

T e T

s

e

(Tvana) 53z M.9950005
ER P

~

|

L3NS ISIS 'S

(0¥ SSVHH /M LNINONOW 3N SS30V ON memw
*,9%.9) ONM
presaeiiice i T e
WPCROTS | WHSOOOS | PR | bwes | Wzost w5 [woor | awec
T S o A T oo . ovareon | seacats] _oow | See W [eooa | oo | o3
.05 ATLON | ML G0N | ST6e00 W | wwbeasen | eoow | wro | e
onos wem v 0 s LTSN g R R TR T
T PR ) 0 oom [ w | R |
TgNIST v, N | mALOLSON | e zr 0| oL 200 w o
R e e oL | oot
R o | w0
LS. 905 | 10 AT | 36007, 95| 991 LOLTS | DOLF 150 06 09 0o 0L 00Ty o3
oes0on | dor Teer || e o | @ | w
3 waw |4 w0 e [ 0L] Wt | o
Sdiseows | wee | siw | motwn | wou | wo | w
SARSeEN | tofor | weuEbeo] | fot | asieaus | oo | e | s
3, xosos, 5| coma|  won | meesis [Gouri| seos | wa
[ D) Il T ol o B )
SRR | Wi | pegatea | v & [
R A
[Wstasomm | moord s | ongn 10| £59
L R 2520008 | #0002 | 10¥EE10 o
S | aczusn | wot AT . LN
v | o | m Zeien| meztTon
AIC ] OGN | 901 O DN I
Kooz | wesen | o STTo | AL 15| e KOG | e
5t | Sozsten] vey 9005 |Mvs,_os] 51 [ P-0005100 | Wovowiow | va0v4%0 &
Covse]  wai] 161 [ecse | muosesos | ot WONYIYN | WHSZLNES | SRS | 0800
o o | MOGEE | By [PFecsnss | mos, T i | ovo
T I
o T | Rt Vo omieEs T
(0 Liey I agosnos] ov 3060905 | 1,00T0LLN | LISNEO | TeEE
(] o [#.rosmios] <» AODSION | COLIN | WLIs0RZ|  soew
o | o WO | AILRTE rroln T
oo | ] wn [oevavess | | o DD
0 O I ST TR
[ AoreRN | v o G
e | eesson | m o T = o
o |szses | oy | Trw [meeann | o 30 w e
DR VIV | Avouesds | % s ~ =
| s | o AN e R
[ X [ [ 3.LSAEATE | B G [
even | ASonain | ve Gl N P S w
m GLCLO0N | A, OLCWCON | L9V 900 | 1982 ©
] T e W
w UG | Ry GWON | 200 | 810 | mEvREON | < ©®
w o] m T T I O D ]
he 05| o P T D X ©
. los | o 2.8%, 05 | L8y BN [ Ry v3.000 SRRy 23
£ ws | o 3ST.LR005 | L&v AN [ LOVAL W LA il 1]
L] 0000008 | 0 L v b, | o o [wown sy [bween_owp | swenw | i o | s
T | dvwon | o1 K3 )
T8 | o erars | o | o
W s | Sevgeun ] oo
b CRI o NOISIAKIENS 3AN3S3N MIA  NYSYIY
o N a0 Twos
STAVL IN  VIHY ONVILIM SNODSIM  ALNNOD JAMOVATIN

(e

QION_ 35MEIHIL S5ITNA
MIVBLIS DNIOTING TWiddAs
3015 M, $LEEGH) 021
T N ZLTA] §
s e ALESH| R
or .nm! ) B0 | M LEEEN
¥ O
. :
06°SE | MBI LZEN
ou ‘Buez ol ooon ||
T wasihs | &

13 OS LE0'89 L
S3YDV 099 8€
vIYV WLOL

11 NOILD3S 40 +/ 3S 3HL 40 v/1L MS ONV v/
1LNOILD3S 4O /1 35 3HL 40 #/1L MS ONY ¥/1

MN 3HL 40 L¥vd ONY '¢/1 3N 3HL 40 #/1L MS 3HL JO L¥vd OGNV €£8Z6 "ON dVW A3AYNS Q3JIL¥30 40 T 107

INHISTH MIIN LNVSVIid

NV 40 ALID LSY3 2 JONYY
HLYON S dI4SNMOL  NOWDAS 10 ¢/

s ws
LY
WIn?
s 5y, t%
I
|
R N §
”
,
%
- '
] @
m
N 5 '
—1 T %
p

dVA NOILVOOT

20z 'CZ N 3UYQ QISAIY
Z0Z ‘v INDF VO 13NSSH

UoNeI ISRy J0 1owniedaq)

T paymaD

S St T19ET  AQ paptaoid se “SiTIg Sig
() pum ( )IT'9ET PUY OTOET 91 9ET S19ET 938
011034851 1P 104 w1 O SuOR2A(G0 OU BT A,




i
1334 e 1 owvum \ 2 soune
) 00 = "~
! . ™| ae
ooz Y ) 00 M e OM0/c1/ TVD 15T A ¥uw0 T
2 L — £, ness - SRV QLN :
s B e s 0 o v i
o ounmes auw anoos S N L/ T\ N e ol iz
P 1005 v 30 2 ToomiNs w0, LSIIN Ty w2 - 3 ‘ S oSy g
01 Javn N30 TAvH SININIURSVIR YN T I= 1o -] P B o Mmm o N
W68 005 J0 ONMYID ¥ SVI_ HILIVID | -t g 2 ol 16208 _M.SV.LY. 2 ¥
LSYIHLHO! 40 3N 1SIW I (26 10VN) sEwE A &y /. 52
INOZ HLNOS 'MIUSAS ILYNIGHOOD IWV1d ALYIS o Teiesen 8
it o0 s avors m a3,
A 21
| | miT . b »o _lggp
: S Sn e R AT £ £816T
g ey o, A \™ oo T [ N
s iy NS A § i
g b - % W\ 5 am F
& ¥ s T o0 it A H
i ! Jrig N - NG wan E piyon pazioIow Jo $adkL Ao
% = ot B 101 & S\ 3 fUT 10 Wl UL e SfA2I010U SIBBNG MNP IPGOLMOUS DL 9
3 8 _ 1 5 N
m O L \ \ oo | 00LTE 3.5v.LvLL8 conerban porgom
I g & s & V & 3,95 ¥0,00N roidAy 10u 10 Aiodoud poio9IId BUI 01 ONNE 10U UONOIOBIA AT 1Rl §
# Hd T < F win D ~ N R @
7 et o107 vl A 7560 Qo 16 ‘BeaIt  yst
o high = 2 kY 3 < gh 5|pUD1E U OHEISPUB| JOYI0 JO A1SEM pITA 103 O PN 30U ING ‘Bu Pl
o @ "B o S¥.L9.L8R 10AGBS10M [EHOI0W AUS Jo U1 150dop Jo Buidwnp ‘Bui)) Aus 1enpuo) b
e 85 Lvl
o o Mes i By | ~3,9% vo.00n 80 POSEOSIP 40 PO )0 [CAOWD: Ty 0} 105K VDI 1960
%2100 i€ « L I IV 1M NN, 40 JeAowini Jo Bu 13 AUT BUIPABU JIUUBL AU Ui UDI [PUG? [LaniBU
& = o0 o P Jo put| oy Jo AudeiBados oyl ABUDY2 Jo [P Ul '9pLIE EPAIP AET £
NYURGD S0 IWRNIVN NISNGSM %101 & ‘on| a1 pue
? e 0L BZ Lss] ‘aBeuio/p |rinyau jo 96YI0jg Bul 2330 J0Y10 Jo SBRUEIP [BIRIRY JO SBEXSOIG
I \ . SR e,..&l ;’ g | 1042 o \. " S¥ e L01uP 40 |EASWE A\ '5943u0q 140G SO 6UIPRo; PG PUT VAIUE
% ] Y IANIAY EIVE — - o ©1 PRI 10U 1ng ‘BuipNjul Pur jqnd o4} 46 TUIWUDIIALD DY) O Auadold
E L — \émia ' "2 8 00S 082 3,5%.i%.LEN = e Pi2a10.6 Ot 0 O{TA 52INCS) 94 93UGYuB OF PapUaU Buiag PanoJddE o8
g ..;wflsaa 4 e — g Avw 5t 5UIWEASIAWI UoNS 130)3 Aew B SAURBE PUD "SI 1UD ‘SuoSad
: o S .% won P 5| T e e s oo pue 1 o et
g . oLianoudun oy "ohogs
& L 1UEUIAGY BUIBLEIIMION "SSDJUN SUOWOAGIAUI AUD DAPW IO TRISWDD ¢
J e
%:.e_é.m,.ﬁ = Lk TN s s 10 sBuplng Aue 50 9 o)
- o
Ml 00885 099 3 g “
’ ¥, = nnv) 38820008 10U |leys puep
4@ gl 5..”&_:54 z 4ons Jo Jouwd 21 i 43 U0 PoIEoR Lol 1udL D303 USIIEAIGHUDD 0¢_ LM
< ] e SNOUDTLSIY NIWISY3 NOLVASTSNGS
_ S | o o |&
b 2
w
e | — "B
. g N wowosiow
m i . %m.s_ 1oy wed 199] sa £ 141 J0 W1 § POIED0] ‘Soul] yans US stuid
E ey} 0 Buiural oui| 2 pue s 1461 ADjje o 1000 BudASIMUI poasadosd o
- | at ) ~te 6ui xa (2) o Auw 4q Esa_ 030d5 JOABUT  OLI Ut ¢ SOPRIB-GIN3 UAW
© e 2 Ein au1 yBnoly; our|d Gy1 3AGR 109} (0L} UP PUE 190} {§ 2) JJEY=0UO DUR oM JO
£l - g sz WB10y 0y UKOMIOA 1DLAS(E AUR UI PB} 1WIDd 0g (Us ‘UouTI0BoA 10 Bunyied
l.h A d mm e ] S0IRTININS SC 4DNS 'SUODNJISGO [BNSIA ON 'O} Wiad UONaNI sGQ ON~
(] — H * jut STTONVIHL NOBTA
v
S <
2 AT NE 2954 10 oUSADD J010m B DiowiKoIddL
N = D 11M B35 PUT{IOM 243 Ul P31 (X0 J010M 328 4ns GRS 10 O OYL 1y
jnn
i .
—_— gt ., 020¢ 7 7GuwoIdoS Uo
SAEAY NCSIEVI | _to8cz 32606000 | UBIINUG) UDDIBiond 4G POIEIUOP 7w 101d SIYT UG UMOUS SIUT PUE1TA
IANIAY NOSIEVA M Py SNV I
3 R kit anuBAY SNONBICI M Wo) 0 M Z 10" 03 SS00aN
A | - g MG 710" Wod WONS  § S O PAMOE 55203y ON ANUGAY DHORBITA
§ o S TGO N o ) 3 . " AMPUR 10018 15 § § 4109 S1USI 2II5DY MIIA 1UBSRA(g 48 1Id 9y Jo 2 107
m = S QAT - _ § TV
z 3
I
A s ) fap ous Aq 9Baeu eands
3w _ 3 TSNS )
H 3 ] ¥ I £ se PA139((03 PUR UCNEESSE Pins oy [oJ Xe ) 1sur*Be pode(d 0 Avw
y 130U Aq poanaul
3 _ L g § susuodx] ased.nd popusiui  ©1 0 pies 0,010, 40 12das 1aadsur
H i P
=4 O NY 5 m ! L @ ©1 J0PJ0 Ul S10]1NG 1594y uodn JA1D ©1 (ALIQISUDdS I 94y 10U 1nG) 1461
’ Kl o} ay1 A a1 01 DB UDREIOSTY JOUMGIWS DY UHUEIH JO Al O3 AQ
u g N " |
= L3 & g puscudde $59jun pn igiyosd  30[iN0 pis U Bu(y o BuipnJB ‘BuIp|Ng Aue jo
£ | = H uoitanuisusY 1sodind popual W 01 50 05 UOI IPUS3 FAINLSGOUN
- " 8 * e 31 JING PIES UITIUIDW J0Ys UONTIBOSSY SI0UMGOWOH oL ASudnbuIfop jo
g Fowm T, £ ) uosEn 4Q UOISIAIPGNS B U1 16] AUE 4O JAUMG 4} 3BT PINOUS UIPUR. JO
165wy 2 2y A3 34 40 AIUNOD SIMNEM| 1§ UOAD D3 U SIUDLISSSSE [E1dads J0 533} Au Joy
vior Gl - M 219e1] 96 10U [[Pys UIpUBS )0 113 943 PUB AIUNG) dANEM)IA 1Y) PUB lofine
T 341 J dIys10UMS [BUONDES OJGERIABUN LD DADY l2yS JouMma 10] [ony
L. A ] 4 PUT UCIICITOSSY SL0UMODID]. DADSIY MOIA UDSEOJd AU} AG POUIRIUIEL
o o § 20 [£US PUR POUME S.b AIDSIY MIIA UDSDOJd JO Sid 93 1O Z 8 | SI0NO-
J— T £8'001 3,95.4.LON Freiior]
oS A W £0'St 3,02 91.00N
L1 W bW ko ek
UK aseg é;zs.ﬂn( . SNV DIV N
S WL - 9528 M, 17.8%.9IN
LBLLT9107
w oo -L045 HY,
LS 1M,.00,L6.80N 80
M .60,
Ted 3 _Nmmmm) o 0008 1=y —_—
§ i 02 221 e s
noo S SR LIV H LZ0Z 'TZ AINF "3LY0 OISR
H \zo v ‘w73 'va ainssi
- wk%,_ UONENSIIILpY J0 waunwdag
TI0D N WD ior -~
NS
/ \ G\u.o.n
NISNOJSIM ALNNOD IINNVMTIN ’ - .
NIDINVYZ 40 ALID 3HL NI LSV3 1T 3ONvY HIYON S JIHSNMOL L NOWO3IS 40 +/1 35 3HL 40 /L MS ONV /1 0T T payned
MN 3HL OGNV #/1 3N 3HL 40 $/1 MS 3HL 40 L¥vd ¥ ONI3E TV L1 NOILO3S 40 #/L 3S IHL 40 #/1L MS ONV #/L
MN 3HL 40 L¥vd ONY ‘b/1L 3N 3HL 30 #/1 MS 3HL 30 L¥Vd ONV C8Z6 'ON dvW A3AYNS U3LALY¥3D 40 Z 107 g SN ZI'9EC  AQpopiaod 5B simS 1
2) puv (1)1T'9€Z PUW OT'9ET ‘91'9ET 'S 9EC 998

| od oA ][ s133Hs § 40 ¢ 1a3KS __ m\— mm mamm gm\\— |N 2 v\ma v\m ﬂl oL e e




EL R ‘SUNGDT$- 1VH UL TILNGNOT ONY ONOITS ISAVIN 3+ 01
— o 00 = J0vR NI IAYY SININNSYIA BVINONY Ty 100 ¥ AU KL ISHOND

", NG LSTUYIN 4L OL IQVA NIIG IAYH SINFAGANSYIA WYIN IV

o o M.ELELOTS 40 DNINYID ¥ SYI_ HILAVIIO
SYAMIHON IHL 30 INM ISIM 3 (£Z61OYN) INOZ MINDS AILSAS
AUYNGHOOD INVIG YIS NISNODSW 3¢ Of GIONIMIZH INCH HLMON

BIVISS WPy NIIROFNT SAVIET
£S.grego=y ' OM® v s
SLBL=HD .29'9C
MOvC009S gy M.L08Z.L8S o

.00'0Z1 ¥
.0g 18=7

Gp9ervD; o8 00
N0 IITYT NI A S

£907 M. T 8585
L9TT M, 60,500

T e WS Hp—
~ 33915 NIJHOYIT A
6281 \I.Fll

.68 PE.2ON
.58'9¢

) M.LOpP.EIN! aung? Hhamnwon T Sopowian pazioIoW Jo AR aulo

- 2z Mw.ﬁm!”ﬁ ﬁ Aur 1o sapyan wies e sapAdiciow  1B6MQ ounp sajigowmous medg 9
o om pva- gz arongh . 3oL HSEELS L . woreBan pufion
[YHUTE NIIUEYIAS Susyspgemont 631641 104 16 Avsodeud POI3RIGL DU O} FAIRU 10U UoIimaBaa Aue uejg
- X 5ug9p 40 ‘oBeqieD sause

2 et mogain s i e ks vt 1. e o1 b o g SUPBS
262 2N ECHIS FEEIT M SLEgERN Ionaosum [oisio Aue jo Su 5dap 40 Budung ‘Bull Aua brpuey v
PEY ML LTS )

20" SAersy
o SV SRSk M|

86 LP  M.F0.62.205

5301 PoseOStp J0 FESP O [PAOWSI 3u) o) 103%0 ‘une1obon

Jo [erowni 20 6u N3 Aut BuIPNPUI JDUUB AUT Ui UG PUO3 [BIREU 51
\ L-H3Un0 GRYU3A 05 QIS0LOHY 1o pup) 34 jo AydeiGodan oy DBuTY 4 |lp AU "apeiB IEPC P ‘DI0ATIXY €

&N\ «\ﬁwﬁﬁ.su o GO SN W J,ﬁ{». 41 oy pue

/\ rano: ox, T <0 E ‘9BuIesp [EIMEU Jo 9503a0[G BUI IND3G 010 6 IBRUIEIP [DINieu 4o 9BEXICT

e v o8 Q0D PR Jo |CAGWEL D4 SOYPUDG 1itid ‘SuonEls BuIPI PIIG PUT (TG

_ @1 AW 10U ING ‘BuIpnPU PUE J11Gnd 34} JO IWIILGIALD 3y} 0} Auadoid

-gin ox,

16°90 3, ¥LLLLCS:
25T§ 1M, 55,00.825
£P'Y8T M.2.65.68N

P19910.0 31 4O IN[OA DINOSD DY) TIUBYUD ©1 PP BuIDq PACIAD O
99 AW ST UDWOADIWI 43NS 190/0 Aew  s@ S9IIUBE puUE 311 1UD uOS.9d
9410 43NS JO IJIAPE 241 WO ‘UIAUTLH JO ALID AYY O [PUNED UOWWED
a1 Aq poncudde Ajsnoimaid pue Ajtal (3005 tuawnAgIdwW 043 ‘9AOGE
1URUIACD U PURISIIMION 'SSOUN 'SIUOWACIHW AUR IARW IO 1IN WSS ¢

amani Aup o sBuIpling Autt 7301d 46 MU} UOD

~
—
S~
~
~
~
~
e

10u jeys pue)
oS jo 1DUMO U IR 14s UG PoIAp BANY DGR UONTAISUOD U1 IM
SNOLIDIEIET8 INJWISV NOLVAYISNOD

E

Zsy oos

v T30 [

/
\\\ \\\\ SSbE i

Ed

3
3

uondesiowI
a4y woiy 199) (0) Al 141 JO WNLIUIW © PaIEd0] 'SAUN| Y2Ns UO S1uIod
Guiurof oujf & pue sou) Ae-j0-1uB1 Adjlo 0100 BU 20501l pasadasd Jo
Bunsixo (2) o Aue 49 Powio) Baeds JRINBUTI  BY) UILLIM SIPEIG.RIND UEOW
a4l UBnoan oue(d Byl 3A0qE 133} (0L) UL PUR 130} (5 2) JIRY-0UC PuE oM Jo
yBIay 9y} UIIMIDG 11 151P Aur U1 Pa3 Iwad og fleys 'uenciaBaa Jo Bued
SOIMINL 5B YNS 'SUONINASGS [EASIA ON PAY LG 3UO INA1SGQ ON-_
STIONVIEL NOISIA

\ \ 237 HST

I | \ / s

w1 TS ;
i o, \C%\/ SRR it

HIAD ONYUIM 05 035000u4 Nl m Wo ¥

‘ 2454 Jo uoueAalo satem uBiy djewxosdde
NORVANTEMD 08 B30 g wows UD UM D240 PUB[IOM 3L U1 ROY XA 10M IRJINS ADAINS |0 DWW V=
53 GonN wisine
T4 GT30uNd

0202 ¢ 9quaidas ue 511

3.5€.00.00N

Zroi o f o
W0 GYUN 08 TN URINSUG UDTIBION] AQ BOITIUIOR Q0M 10d 4T UO UMOUS SIU PUE] M~
g SONVILIM
et LRI Lo
=4 - fn BAIIG Z10° WO WIS IS § § O POMOJIR SSDIDY ON ‘SNUDAY annbIT
\ \ _ MO WO N b1 MPUTIODNS 'S 4100 SIUCI DALSDY MAIA IURSESg JO YOI BUY o 2 107
SRR e i
_ SV oL m <2 S5
/ / Sovlon GS6oon i <M
~ N S BT 3= 12 oy AQ 96.8u> [ero0ds
N~ / SN, & ® poI29|j03 PUP UOHENOSST PIRs Jo) [|03 K81 34 suiobe poseid og At
~\ / P 1e)ine pies Jo uoNeIotsD: s Iedal ‘uonsadsul Pies Jo} AVD ays AG pai nou
m ~ / sosuadx  sodind PApUn s 51 01 IGANG PiEs 040189 Jo edl 129dsUI
I\ YLy - o1 J3pJ6 Ul Sia[InG 9504; uodn Jo1ud 01 (A GISUGHSS) 3 10U 1nG) 1461
g — S 241 A113 941 01 S1UDIB UGIIOIOSSY SJOUMGOWO} 4L UIHUTS 4O A1 D oW1 g
¢ a4 b poraudde charan IS oG s i Sl 2o Eupesh Bupling Aue 1o
< .- S QL Uonanasuo3 9s0dind POPUSIUI SI UITIUIEW 01 SE O UONIPUOD PAIINAISGOUN
~ e U1 $10] N0 PIBS UIBIUIBW 745 UOINERESSY JOUMARUOH Du] AOUORBUIIP jo
- JR—— Uos094 AG UGISIARGNS U Ui 19] AUR JO JOUMS D) SE3DG PINGUS LIAUELY JO
@ TS F 415 341 40 AIUNGY 2NN UEAD DY U LDLUSSISSE (019085 0 500; Aue 10
> \ 219011 89 10U [[eyS UIpUEL JO A DY BuE AILNGD JANEMIK 1441 PUR S1GIND
> Y} 6 dIysI0UMO [BUGHIRS SIQRPIAIPUN LT DALY TS JOUMO {0] [ERRIAIBUN
| (avemcio) \ g \280 PUE UCIIEIOSSY SOUMODWS  JAIDSOY MAIA URSED]g 04 AQ POUICIUIBW
T o g \ a3 Mﬂﬁﬁ_ Ho.mhé HINRC P 99 [Eys pup PIUMG IR TAIDSAY MDIA URSE]q JO 1ol aY1 j0 3R MIOpinD-
Py g a0k : 5101UN0
N
LOWISID DTS ATV WO SITON
SRR ORIV
~ owum /
ne
m“ e O02/G1/C OLYO 15 oMY HIWD
@ - - BURY QAL IGNE
Be \ 1202 'TZ AP S3LVQ 0ISIATY
3 tzoz 'r NP 31¥Q QINSSI
MM uoTIRNSILILDY JO WawLedSqQ
NISNOOSIM ALNNOD 3INNVMTH
NIINVYS 40 ALID 3HL N 1S¥3 1Z 3ONVY HLMON S oIHSNMOL |1 NOWO3S 40 +/1 35 3HL 40 #/1 MS ONV v/t [ T ey
MN 3HL ONY #/1 3N 3HL 40 $/1 MS 3HL 40 L¥vd ¥V ONI3E TIv 1L NOWD3S 40 v/1 35 3HL 30 #/1 MS ANV ¥/t
MN 3HL 40 L¥vd GNY '#/1 3N 3HL 40 #/1 MS 3HL 4O 1¥vd GNV £8Z6 'ON dvW A3AYNS Q3IL¥30 40 Z 107 amg 1M T 96T 'S Aq papacid St mmS T
()P (1)IT9ET P OTIET ‘91 9ET §1'9ELT 599§

7oA |[SL33HS S 40 ¥ L33HS ; m\— mm m mm § m\\_ |N 2 v\m V\m 4& o oadsal i i S O TR0 0 2 24




T
ez NS
=DNI; 1
SRR ._muxm
et

unig ey ¢ ey @QAV

0086'926'026
SE6YS W 'O¥1 10 ONO4
40 107IMYD_ 00t € 295 W ‘NOSIQYN
“ONI “ONINIINIONI 130X3 40 INMOL 'S 1089
NITIDTM NYAY M "Ad WA

R ryie ] “HIIOTIATT 7 TINRO

0z* pagmia)

‘NEIS SIM Z1 9EZ 'S AQ POPIAGKI SR 'SIMS SIM,
2) PU® (1)1T'9ET PUe OT'9EL "91'9ET 'S 1'9ET "095
011930521 (Im Jerd SID O3 SUONIVIGO oL drw Jay],

504163 UOISSIUWO?) A
I Rauney —"3ygnq AmoN

#1Jauine sy AG "uaneI>esse Bunueq pies

4O POOR O 50123110 4aNS 0 uownu i BuioBa.0) oY) pRINGoXD KOl 10U
PIEPIMOUIDE FUE 'UOHLI20SSE BUpIUe PIBS O UDPISA G3IA JOIUDS 43NS 5G
91 MOUS D14l 01 pue 1DWINAISU BuIBBD/S) du) POINIIN Oy UEIDT DY 9 O}
MU Dl 01 USHIGIGSSE BUDDG PIWLITY DAOGE DY JO ASMOUSSS  UaydDls
—0z Jo hop W1 D 2,050 Swe> Afussiag

55t 40 ALNNOD
(NISNOJSIM 40 31V1S

10PIS04q 9DIA JONDS PmOUSOS  uDydals

VN Juog paegssy

—oz 10 B T 5143 usuosEM
10 JUDPISDIG A3IA JOIIS 81 DysmOusOS  waydoss Aq pauBis 9 o)
$1UBSDUE 35041 FISNUD SOY Y'N ARG POIISOSEY PIES 9l JORI0uM Ml U]

MEYUD SOUMO
2A0GE 941 01 1UDSUO2 AGDIDY 520P PUT Jerd SIL UO PIGLOSIP PUEY AU O
Buiddews pue BuipIAIP ‘BUIADAINS U1 01 UBSUGD AGD.IY S0P ‘PuE| PIGUISID
2A0GR D1 JO 96eBLIO WISUODSIAN JO DITIS AUL JO SmE| A1 Jo am 1h Aq

puE 19pun Burisixa pue PaziueBio AIp UoNEIOdioD ¢ 'y N AUy PIEOsSY

FISVDINOW ILVHOdE0 40 LNISNCD

‘9d “T0A __ SI33HS G 40 S 133HS

WopD Ay DsMojosyA | Lipucs

0z Jo Aop Iys paeq

poacsdde s1 1ejd Swa i0j0I0d 02 Jo kep
141 4 € 30U UBAG IALY [LACIHLE JO) SUDI IPUGS DY) [|B 18Y) PUB UIPEBL 40 AL D W10
15UNG3 UOWWOD Bui AG POIAORE UG NIOSD DUl 4O AdSD B 51 BuIBBJ0) U1 18y Aiod Aqaian

oA WSSO Y ududais

02

Jodep 5141 UG [Puno uGwIAGY oy Aq Afleuar 1pua PAACJLAE AQRIDY $I UISUOSIAN
“UUL4 O A31D U Ut NOISIAIIBNS 3AYISIY MIIA LNVSVI1d 40 01d 0u 143 ‘Poajosay

ON NOLLN1OS3¥ TISNNOD NOWWOD TWAOYddY NITINVY4 40 ALID

UISUB3sIA 'IUND3 3INEM JINSDDJ 'UBlIN PiADG

NOISINIGBNS JATSTY MAIA LNVSY3Td J0 30]d 343 Ul Papnpaus sputj oy

Bunsoyo 16 fop 541 4O 50 SIUDWISSDSST [DI3DEs IO 5OXEY PIOCUN OU

PUE 52]05 XB} POLIDIPTIUA OU MOUS T3 AW U1 SPIO301 O3 30k AJ0D AQAIDY OF “DIANDMIIA
10 1N 843 J0 J2iNs0as Bunat pup ‘par jonb ‘BoIa0[ AINP 8y BUIAG 'Walin3 PIAL]

ALVOLILLYED S, u3ENSYIUL ALNNCD

praid jo Ay inunsans | ‘Bioquozioy Inmg

NOISInGENS

IANISIY MIIA INVSYITd jo1eid ay) wi popnpul spuR| aui jo Aue vo oz —

Jo hep SI43 0 5€ S1UDWSSISSE [eIds PIEAUR JO SIXEL PIETUN OU DAE 210U} 20 Aw

U SPAGID B} Ui UTPI0IZE Ut eyl AjILIT> AGDJDY OP "UISUODSIAL ‘AIUNOY BDANCA “WIPIUEIH
10 A 3yl jo Joanseas ] Ay bunse put "paipent ‘pa1uiodde Anp ays Buiea ‘BJaquazioy ey

ILYOLILY3D SUTYNSYIYL ALD

s0nd3 UOIsSIuwLO) AN
3i1ang AlRioN

W Aiunod

awes
43 pABPAMOUAE Pup JuaWN) sui BuIcBaIS) By} PAINGIXA UM (s)ucs.ad ay)
D4 01 UMOUY DW 0} 37 "NAd HA POWEU JACGE DY) JO (S}I3IC PaWEU SAOGT

aoe JoATp T 143 DW 210)aG DTS Al[Tuosidg

§S 40 ALNNOD

NISNODSIM 40 31VLS

Ag

51 "4Ad HA

—gg T johep U s
“uasIpEp 10 Aurdwos AN|IG: AL PIES JO 1031 O [E31 jO
4q poubis aq 0} 5junsa/d DSDYY PASNED SEY 31 "HAd HA JO24DUM SSaUNM Ul

e jo 3 g
SHOA 4G JO IupUIIEADQ AIUNG D 0ANEMI 2
UotessIuIWpY 0 udwwedag

uonsalge
10 eAGaddE o, 5a15UDBE BuUMAIIO) W1 01 BT WGNS 7G 03 SIIMRIS UISUOISIAA
219525 10 0 9525 AQ Pounbos 51 Joid SIh 16y ALD3 JaGUN, S20P 3 A 1A

100 143 UB POIUYSOALD ST POIEIIPIR PuT PRUHEW PORINE ‘PIAOAINS

£q 1 Jeje 514} UG POG 50P PUD] Y} POSNDS AUTEWD ANIGEY POYY PIES oyl
AJL03 AGOJ0U S0P TUMO ST 'UISUCISIAN O ITIS DU} JO SME] OY3 JO BN} 1A AQ
pue Jopun Buitsixd pue pozeBio AInp Auedwos Aubae pouWI € ‘311 HAd 1A

NOLVIIQIQ 3O 3LVDI41LE3D S.HINMO

o100y $31 40d |7 40 suBisse put 03500905
DY 30 Jo jOudq 3y 1 2Nl PuC uodn Bulpuiq 3G [IEYS  IWBEED O B B

201uL45 J© IUDFUSS UDI} JM INOYIM 5OUDU!
NG} uBY3 20w Aq PaJDI[E 24 1eu [[DYs Aladiosd PORIARGNS By} jo DREIB DY 'SOI (1303 43NS
AUD joO UBHD[IDISUI I3 'SORRIO 4O 1UTSUCS UTNUM IO DI NOUM 5BV JUDWIOSES
. PAAIEW 50U) ) Ui A1,0d02d Y3 J0A 10 URHN Ul JO 531 15D} $3DIUTIS IS
s sBUI|INg PO Uiaiay 51 {61 5y) O uensind Dt AUE & POACWD)
5 ABWI Y314 $100) 10 YShug 'S32) AUN 03 JG 531 [P0 A| DJGO3 PUB DUOYGD[a} G 'SON||T
508 [pameu ‘5ol
2y o1 AidHe 10U SO0p JOAIMOY 'UONEASIS Sy FIUBBR 1241 JO 5aDIUeSD DY AQ A 4ans
o1 Joug BuiSXD UONIPUOS 91 0} *2|qIssad A|GDUDSeR: 5i Se AUDAU $0 “Auddaid By} ‘PaIGIS)
ARy O} DENED 10 DJ01S3; 1 aasBe SODYEID DY) 52508 YaNs [T o) ALddosd PAR NGRS
21 uodn 42103 03 1BI aU3 PUE 'WaAI LIy SIUBI BU1 OF 1UIPIUI PAINDI AGRUTSDD.

G ARW 5 5100) PUR YSAUG 'SIDS UMOR IN3 J0 W) 03 JyBu Dys osje 'sio] luadelpe uo

10 'UGDIIY} $IWDUDACIEWI DAIIS O 10| 4PED J0 BIENS DY) YITOUDG PUD LIGYImM 550436 ‘uodn
SuONRIBULED D2ABS [[EISUI O3 1YBI DY 4 M Joy30Be) ‘Dieald Jo yand Jayioym ‘skape pue
5300.15 40} 1ejd DY) w0 PoICuBIsop ALdaid DY) PUD 5BDIY UBLUDSE3 AVIAN, SO paouBISIp
1ed BUI UO SRR 3501 Lrydim uMOys Aiadesd ayy uadn pue Bugje 'sse.de JDpUN JoAC

U1 2 ‘PDSN 3G 0309134 ATW JO MOU $I 3LIES B3 57 SI50EIN UDNS 4G S31 1130} AL D}G05
PUE uoYdD[D} 'sE6 [AneU 'ABIOUD 21 120[a PUR AYIUIIDID JO UBKNG) 1P PUB UOK ST
PUNCABIDPUN PUE PEAISAD Yy UODALUOS Ul POSR 531 198} 'DWI O SU WoJ 538180
puE UiEew  (odo) 210000 {ITISU 130 LUO ©) 'SuUBISST PUE 5I0SSEINS DAUADASD 1Dy}

g
'UGNRJOIOS UISUGIIA B ‘UISUSISI 17 LYV 5B 550ulLng Butep DNI 138 NISNODSIM.

PuCD1U0I0 DT 'YOININY-CIN WNYL33dS

Weso $a16:0u7 O SC S5OUISNG BUIOP UONEI00>
UISUOISIAR “D1 SV NISNODSIM PUE ANVANOD 43MOd (813313 NISNODSIM

o1 1o1ei5 ' IT WA 1A
4G poWRIB AGOIaY  B3IAIIS SUORENUNWWO? PuE SE (2AN1EU 3t 1900 Jo} WAWASTD Uy

D118 SNOISIAOYG LN3WISVI ALNLLA

NISNQJSIM  ALNNQD 33ANYMTIA

NIIYNYYS 40 ALID 3HL NI LSV3 1T 3ONYY HLYON © JIHSNMOL Ll NOWD3S 40 ¥/1 3S 3HL 40 v/1 MS ONY +/1
MN 3HL OGNV /1 3N 3HL 40 #/1 MS 3HL 40 L¥vd V ONI38 T 1L NOWO3S 4O +/1 35 3HL 40 v/L MS ONv +/1
MN 3HL JO LYVd ONV '#/L 3N 3HL 30 #/1 MS 3HL 40 L¥vd ONV £826 'ON oYW AIAYNS 0313ILY3D 40 T 107

INHISTH MIIN LNVSVIId

1202 Tz AMY “ILVC O3sA
0z 'y INDF71vO 03NSSH

SEBVS Ul UODIIM '] NP PUOy
Sup ‘Butiaouibu3 (933

woa  WiBUDAIXAGM uehs
£y32-5 ON 54 "U02bpn uehy

wes a3 Buiddews put BuiPIAIP ‘Buikanins Ul WUELY J Al S 0y pUE ARG MNEMIIA
/0 D3UBUIRIO UBISIPGNS DY) PUT 115 S ‘D2 JANdBY 4O SUTISIACI Ul Uit POBWO3 ANy DATY. 18y

opew josioy
Gl IAIPGNS DY) PUE PBADAINS PUB| Bu) JO SD1IEEUACE JOLIIXD DY) [[D JO UGKEIU: SAide 13D 103 D S Y3NS 1BU,

559 QoW PUD[jO O TOVEYL
5000 gg9 §¢ BuluDIUG pur BuuuIBEq 40 1U/GE B4 81199} 00 4O IIURISIP © WOl UDXd ALiDISIM PiEs BuSIe 15P:
20 g5+ § (UON 2DUPD 'Z 301 PIES JO DUI| UHON Dyl JO UOISUDIXS AUDISIM D41 O1 7y 20 £ 10 a3UDY B RIO P O
1S9M 002 £~ BO WMON 54899 DAIND PIBS JO PIOY3 DY 103) 0O 05 JO SNIpeJ B Buiary 1BY 2y o3 aans ¢ Buole 12D}
02 £ AUDISIMYLION 35UdU: 13 95 2§ JO IIUBISID B “5IM  ¥=,B.9L UISON D2UD) 309) E0 51 4O DIUEISIP B g
101 pIEs JO 91 1504, © GUOIR 1583 ,02-9 .00 WION BOUOY3 .2 107 PIS JO JIUJ3 ISOM B O1 1994 8 00 JO 9dueIsip
£ 2307715 O DU S @ BUOIP 1ST3 L95e,2 I, L8 WIHON 35UAUS Z 107 PIDS JO J0W03 153 T 01103, 9 BIE jO
23U IP € Z 107 PITS JG W1 1SIM € BUGIE 1583 .20~9 .00 (LON 23UBy) 7 107 PIES O JOUID SOM © O1 330 /5 BEZ
4O SUBISIP B °Z 10T PIBS JO BN I5IA B BUOIE ISEI 28+ 5.2 YUON 93U 'Z 107 PIES JO Jowio3 DM € 04100
286V JO DIUDISIP O ‘DUy| 150M PIos BUSIR 3503 6 £ .00 4 JON B3UBYY Z 107 PIDS 4O JDUIOD 1SIMYINGS BY1 B) 10D}
02 28 40 92URISIP D 'DUI| UINGS PIDS BUOID 1SOM S b= HINOS 3OUBYY £G2G6 'ON WSD PITS JO 230740 aul] yinos
D41 03 192 G5 ZV( JO HIUDISIP € ‘SpUD] PIVS }O D] 1583 23 BuO|D 1583 5y~ O-,00 ULON U3 9LIEOECH ON
uaWIN30g 4ad pag JEIp SPUR| 10 0UIGD 150BYINGS Y3 O 130} 2¥EL JO IOUEISIE £ ‘589 ‘N NSD PIOS jO aul] YLON
D1 BUSID ISIM Sim.2 b, 28 WINOS IDUIYY ‘SBY 'ON WSD FIDS JC JaUCD 1SDDYIIGN DY) O) 133 00'QZ ) 4O DIUD} 1P
©'SHY ON WSD PIOS JO dur| 1583 41 BuCIe 1583 .9p- 10,00 YUON 33UDY} 'SEY ON WS IS jO J0UI03 15EIYIN0S
243 01300 00 227 JO IDUBISIP £ 'UGISUDIX ALDISIA  PUE BUI UINOS PIBS BUGID 1583 Sy- be.L§ YLON DUl
SOZE¥ ON IWAWING0Q 5T 131 JO SROAC) J0 JaisIBaY AIUNOD DINTAIA SY) Ut PIBICIDS §89 ON IISD IO DUl UINGS
41 JO UISUBIXD ALDISIM Y] 01309 £B° £ JO DIUCISIP B U] LOpA PIES BUOT 1503 ,91-,10-,00 YION I3UdW) iy
JSEDYINGS PIDS JO DUI 1SIA BUI O} 193; L6 208 JO DIUBISIP & 'DUJ| LINGS PIOS BUDIE IOM Sp=2y- .8 YINGS DIUDUY
b/L15RIYINGS PIBS JO 2/ 1STA DUI JO 500 § YUON DY JO Aull HINOS AU} ©1 100} /g 92’k JO DIUDISIP T UOISUIND
AUIYMON 51 PUB '62E51840 ‘ON NOWINGE S0 231 4O SPaBg 4o 131 (BDY AINGS BOANDMIN DY) Ul PIRIGDD)
529 'ON dew AdAIN pal o3 jo aul] 1503 1 BUoI 1583 §E-,00-.00 YMON D3UDY) | 30T PIES J8 JOUISD J5aMYUSN
24303 190) £F LE JOODUDISIP B 307 PINS 4O TUY YUON I3 BUOID 1SOA 52-,65°.68 YUON DdUDLY 307 pios.
10 JOUIC 1SEOYLION DY) 01 DD GE'S 4O JIUEISIP ® 107 PIES j0 DU SE3 UL BUSIL ISOM §0-,05- I HISON duDy
130) 69 05 JO BIUCISIP € | 107 PISS 4O M| 1583 UB BUOIT I50T L4p= I~ L0 UWON IDUIY 1D) 52 28 4O dauLISP
© | 107 PILS 8 Dul] 1583 UE BUIE 15€3 ,BF- 10-,0 WMON 35UdUI 190} 56 9F JO FUSISIP B 107 PIES 4O DU
e BUOIE 35IM 20+ Y. 2 HHON D3UDUY 100} 62 0 IIUDISIP € | 107 PIBS JO AUl 15€3 UE BUSIC 150M L65bE J2¥
HON 99UBY3 ‘UDI 1RGNS $21E153 Uy UDDJBIDA] PIBS JO 107 JO ADUIOD SEDUINGS DY O} 190 29 §2 4O PIUEISIP
© ‘Oul| AUOYUON BIes BUSIE 159M .20+, 82-.8 HINGS DIUBYY 1130} §/ B JO IDUPISIE BIOY3 € ISIM 0= 50° 89
INGS SILOG TAIND PIES JO PIOUD T4 1004 0Q'0Z 4O SAIPDJ @ BuiARy 1YBI 3y} O3 PAIND € UG DUJ| A[DULON
piEs Buo|E 300} OF B ADISOMUINGS D3UDY 193] £3°0 JO SURISIP B 'oul| AUOLLON PIDS BUOIC 150 .2 6E- By
IN0S 354341 19002220 N 1UAINGG 3d 10045 UDDIBIDAT A O OUl| ABmejo-3UBI ALIOYLION k) us Buiag yuiod
PICS "7 107 P15 0 JDUIGD SIMUINCS DI ) 199 2§ £ 4O SIUBISIP B Z 101 PIES JO OUI| 59 © BUDI 15AA .60+  1~.00
YIAGS AJUDYL 100) 018G 4O IUTISIP O Z 30T PIDS JO DUI| I5OM B BUDIE 1583 L SE- £ MINOS D3VAW 19y 4 22
JOI3UTIS P © 2107 PIAE Jo aU)| 50p 0 BUCD 5032091 O WINOS 3UaU1 Adj ZEQY JO TAUTISIE B ¢ 107 pics
10 u1] 150 € Buole 1573 01 20 £0 YiNOS 9IUDYY 13D} 25 Zy O DIUBISIE B ‘7 107 PIOS jO OU 1sIM © Buoie 1se]
L20-GE b1 HINOS D0UDLY 193} bE b JO OUBISIP & 2307 PIES 10 ul 1M © BUDIT 59M 2§~ 22+ EE YINOS 33U
190 65 b JO DIUBISIP B 'Z 107 PI°8 O D1 150Mm @ BUD|C SOM §0-62-,20 YINOS AIUDYI 130} L6 9T 4O IAUM 1P T ¢
107 PIES Jo W) 1590 2 BUO|D 1503 be £2 £F WINGS 93UDUS 193] 2 25 /O DOUDISIP @ 2 101 PIES J AUl 1504 © Guoje
IM 55-,0p-.82 WINGS A3UNY 'Z 107 PITS JO JOUIO 1SIMULION DUI 03 138 EL'YEZ 4O SURISIP O 'VOISIAIBGNS 5DITISE
3Jeg uaD/BI0AT PIES 4O Z 307 PUD £ 107 PICS 40 || YLON AU} BUID 1SDM £2-,6568 YUON IIUDYY IWEYEL0
AN LBWAIOQ 5P D3O 5P J 10} 1BaY AWUNGS IIANEMI DI Ul PARIGDRI UDI PGS SDIPIS] AiCd UNJIBIIAT
10 10 jO JOUIOD 1SCIYION DUI O 00} p pZ§' JO DIUDISIP 80U 1803 PIES BUOIE ISOM ZE-,00-.00 UiNes
25UDU1 iy ISDIHINGS PISE O 2/ 35O DY} JO DUl 1523 Ayl 0 303 S6'GE JO NIUDIEIP © 'DNUDAY INDADIBI M PIES
18 21| UINGS AU} BUOI 1ST3 Sbe,/be, /B YUON 32UDYS INUDAY DUINBIBIN M PITS JO J2UI0D SIMUINCS 7W) B} 100
5099 J0 95U | € 'ANUIAY SUBNLITIY A PIES JO DU 50p 0y BUOIE ST ZE-,00-.00 YINOS DIUDW ‘5002220
ON WUawIR>0(] Jod ANUDAY NBIE A JO JIUIO? 1SIMYMON D) O3 192} 00 BZZ JO 2UCISIP T W01 .uIIXD Ajsdisey
1 puT £826 ON eI ADAING Pa1 1LI0D PIES JO | 107 JO IUI| HINOS a1 BUOIE 15C3 Sim.zve 8 YLION 92UDUL 2 101
pies J0 JoUJ03 1SEAUINDS IY) 01 19} 0O D2} JO IDUTI 1P & Z 107 PIEs JO U] 5¥3 UT BUOIE 1A LG¥- ¥0-,00 LINOS
20UBL1 "2 107 PIES JO 10UIC3 1583 UE O1199] 07 J0 MDUEISID € 2 101 Pies Jo 9l 1503 Ue BUOIR 1SIM L 00~ 88
Yanog a5UaY) ‘2 107 PIES Jo JoUI0D 1589 UE 01109) B4'Z0F JO IIURISIP © 7 107 PIS j0 2ull 153 ue Bucle 159Mm
.6Y ¥0-,00 YaNCS 92UIYL 'Z 10T PIES JO 10UI02 ISET UT 03 133) py 6§ SO IDURISIP T Z 107 IR Jo 3l 15¢3 ue Buofe
503 ,0y-,00--48 YUON 92UU1 'Z 107 PIES JO JUICD SE3 UL O) 199) £ 07§ JO IIUEISIP £ 'Z 10T PIEs JOo il ©F up
BUOIT 159 € ¥0-.00 HINDS 93uDY 2 107 PIES JO J9UIO3 15EIUON D1 OF 199} Ly GLZ JO IURISID © 2 10T PIES JO
u yuoN 2y Buole 1583 Lz~ £5-.£8 YUON BuUINUUO? 22uay) ‘BuLIBaq jo 1iod a1 Buiea uod pier ¢ 107 Pies
10 1DUA03 1SIMULON T4} O1 199} 0F 665 JO 9IUE3 1P T VOISUIIXD AUIISIM PIES BUO[E 153 2 £5-.L8 YUON 22uow
2107 pies jo 2l YUON 341 JO UDISUDIXD AUIISIAR ) OF 199) /6 ZE9" JO IIUFISIP € b/ 1STIGION PIOS O dun
189M 941 BUOIE 159M .6 €1 L0D UANOS 1DUILI*/ 15TILLION PIES JO JDUI0 1SIMYLON a1 e Bu Judwwio))

smojlo) se pquUasIp Alie|noiLied Bsous Buidq uISUOISI

AN 2AREMIN WIPUT. JO AUD DU Ul 1583 2 IBUTY YLON § dIuSumMO) L UORS JO /L ISEAUINOS a3 JO

Y/ 159MUINGS PUT 7/ 1SDMULION DU PUE /L ISCOUUON D41 JO b/ 1SIMUINOS 9y Jo Lied BUIRG e 3/ 1509LINOS

1O ¥/ SIMUINOS PUE p/  SAMUHION DU JO Lied PUE 'p/L ISTIYLON 341 O v/ 15IMUINOS 341 Jo ud puT

261650 | ON WaWN20Q Se 0202 LZ J9GUWIRA] VO AIUNGY DDANEMI 10} 3450 SPADQ JO J0ISIBAY Ul Papiods

‘£826 ON dew ADAINS POt 19 JO 2 101 "UBIdY PAGLISAP PuE] JO (22150 © padduw PuE PapIP ‘PIAIAINS DATY
"m0]2G Pajsi| SJOUMO Y JO LON3ANP DY) AP IN YT AJIHad AQasay JOAIAING puET [PUCISSDI04d UaaIBlIAM UAY

FIVOULIYD SHYOATAUNS










l HIBWAN HOF |

S

WIBNNN 133HS

[Ugiggld

NOILINYLSNOD Y04 LON

K20z ¥ AN
4202 ‘24 ‘934
0202 ‘81 "030

S3LVT AUYNIWN 284

ZETES IM NIDINVYS @ INNIAVY ALLINDUVIN M B 133HLS ISTS S

NOILVAYOINI £D3F0¥d

s YN

NV1d NOLLD310Yd SA2UN0SIY TVHNLVYN

ANYISIY M3IA LNVSVId

SHoaAMNS o

JE

ueld 431339 e shem|y

g5+

g

SMONT 8 5131 1wy

X7

HLION  NVId HOLINS

V¢ 3dN0l4

ANND4 30l KoM
aNno3 YYO3 /T

NN INIAONOR

o

T3 SNAUIINGD

334 snonavda

T 409 W T0d AL

HNOLNGD ONDOXD INLSIX3 Ed

SO TNV BHND N S

TWYD DWLDTI GNAOHONIONN INILSIX) Jod run

I SVD ONNGHDYIONN INUSKT WisI0Y AL TIBVD

3NN AL LA OY3INM3AO ONUSIXD —_— UINHOIENYHL JML0T3
vgh v a0 Wave onisg S wisdoa owioT
OHNYR GNY KIS ANPLNVS ONUSIKY e 15 e PO——

TIOHNYA GHY HIMIS WHOLS INUSIX3
IONI4 T NIAOM DNILSKD

Nois anusIX

—— 15—
m———— VA ToRYIS MY

JONRS OO0 ONUSIRD e ¥0B NI AVA HILVA
NI NTINVID DRUSIKT oo LTI G INUSKI
VIV GIO0M  Maaan” NSV @IVD ONNON VUKD
TR
XA W (30vds N3dO) §107 nO
990 (vauy 15 3sva) 35 1930
ave V) vau
VIVO 3§ d350d0%d
OF  avay
&~ 107 d3NNos 308
o = 308
0f  Nows S¥OVEL3s
sz ALSNIO LIN
262 ALISNI S50U9

Q00 Ol vy 3DVS N3dO
INITHOVALIS LNOYS ¥ 06
45 000"

HLOW 07 WOAININ
YAV 10T WNRININ

-NOISIAIIENS.
TYNQUNIANDD, IEQ QaLLMNId

NOISINGENS 1v1 NIVISTY 35N 03504049

9=y ONINOZ  0350c0¥d
9-y FONINGZ DNILSIXS
(S3uDv 099'8€) 4 6T0'¥B3 = VIUY VIYY ALY3GONd

“UISUODSIAN "AIUNOD DOXREMIN

‘Ui jo AID 15E7 17 s6uey

UMIN G dUSUADL | UOHODS

10 %11 3G 0 o 1L MS P b1 MN
o) jo wed pue o/l 3N YO p1

S DU jo wed PU 6759 ON deW

ADAING POYNDD JO € 10DIB JO UEY  NOUINISIY YOI

“NOTYRGOINT IS

saectEafen [OROS O

|

TS ALeY S

N NE=
N R0’
V. \A\ a0z

00N
$5:28

RIS BNIIN

4 R
4» o
L
sl
s somamm0e ot
/Mﬁuuw:m HIOE S

B

o -
"1 gIiY Lo L9'BTT 3,27 IGLEN

)

f
]
[
,
4
[
[
f
I

MH :
L

“ g sEIL
L LR M.3¥ $0.005
o ‘ g P A
gt N v £ .‘
* ey )
) > o0 ' 4 M ’ ; 3 - i
CNNF XN 4|/A// ALl L\ - 7 R NCTT T IVNT & 1.4
S SN T ( f Ml w f
h £ T~/ R ! : w
"’ .,ﬁ i A0 24 NS — N A 7 P ‘ H
s 7 / = : ity 408 R, wunw,himz J |
/ , _ == / T g5 i i
' < z | /7.9 vooos |
Z L. i
5 "
) A M
T il |
= ! |
- o \
’ _
= '
{ 1 .
) _
m |
si ﬂ
: a
; e
'
&2
I
o £
59'L08, __am
#.25.40.008 K
'
:
|
|
.
‘






Blank Page



APPROVAL ;| REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
LR COUNCIL ACTION August 17, 2021

REPORTS AND RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION ITEM NUMBER

RECOMMENDATIONS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH
VH PVR LLC FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION PHASE G.8
1 LOCATED ON S. 51ST STREET AND W. o
MARQUETTE AVENUE

BACKGROUND

Pursuant to the approval of Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision Phase 1, it is necessary to enter into a

subdivision development agreement with an estimated cost of unfinished improvements to the developer of
$205,399.40.

ANALYSIS
The infrastructure and services required are those to complete development.

The final plat for Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision is scheduled to come before Common Council at the
August 17, 2021, meeting.

Approval of this subdivision development agreement will meet said conditions.

OPTIONS
It is recommended that the Common Council approve the enclosed standard form of the subdivision
development agreement with specific items contained in Exhibit “E” attached.

FISCAL NOTE
The Bond includes the cost of improvements with contingencies. The Bond will remain in effect until the
improvements are completed and approved by the developer.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2021- a resolution authorizing the Mayor and the City Clerk to sign
the subdivision development agreement upon review and acceptance by City Attorney.

Department of Engineering GEM




STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE A
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH
VH PVR LLC FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Franklin to provide an orderly planned
development known as Pleasant View Subdivision Phase 1 generally located on the northeast
quadrant of S. 51% Street and W. Marquette Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the developer of the subdivision is willing to complete the installation of the
improvements provided for in the Development Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the
Development Agreement on behalf of the City with the developer of the subdivision.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to record the Subdivision
Development Agreement with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council on the day of
, 2021 by Alderman

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the day of
,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

Engineering/ GEM



[April 2019 updated version]

CITY OF FRANKLIN

WISCONSIN

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION
PHASE 1

August 2021



SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT (THIS “Agreement”) made and entered mto this day of _
2021, by and between VHPVRLLC , a [lmted hability company],
heremafter called the "Subdivider" as party of the first part, and the City of Franklm, a municipal
corporation of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, party of the second part, hereinafter called the "City"

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Subdivider deswres to improve and develop certain lands located 1n the City as
described on attached Exhibit "A" (the "Subdivision"), and for that purpose cause the installation of
certamn public improvements, heremafter described in this Agreement and the exhibits hereto (the
“Improvements”), and

WHEREAS, §§ 236 13(2)(am), 236 13(2)(b), 236 13(2)(c), 236 13(2)(d) and 236 13(2m) of the
Wisconsin Statutes and Division 15-9 0300 Land Division Procedures and Admumistration of the Unified
Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin Municipal Code, provide that as a condition of approving
the Subdivision, the governing body of a municipality may require that the Subdivider make and install,
or have made and have installed, any public improvements reasonably necessary, that designated facilities
be provided as a condition of approving the planned Subdivision development, that necessary alterations
to existing public utilities be made, and that the Subdivider provide a Financial Guarantee approved by
the City Attorney guaranteeing that the Subdivider will make and nstall, or have made and installed,
those improvements within a reasonable time, and

WHEREAS, the public works schedule and budget of the City does not now mclude the
Improvements for the Subdivision and normally there would be a considerable delay in the mstallation of
the Improvements unless this Agreement 1s entered mto by the parties, and

WHEREAS, the City believes that the orderly planned development of the Subdivision will best
promote the health, safety and general welfare of the community, and hence 1s willing to approve the
Subdivision provided the Subdivider proceed with the mstallation of the Improvements 1n and as may be
required for the Subdivision, on the terms and conditions set forth m this Agreement and the extubits
attached hereto

NOW, THEREFORE, n consideration of the payment of One Dollar ($1 00) and other good and
valuable consideration to each in hand paid by the other, receipt of which 1s hereby acknowledged and in

consideration of the mutual covenants herein contamed, the parties agree

1 The legal description of the Subdivision 1s set forth on attached Exhibit “A”

2 The mmprovements aforementioned shall be as described i Exhibit “B” except as noted
in Exhibit “E”
3 The Subdivider shall prepare plans and specifications for the aforesaid Improvements,

under direction of the City Engineer, and to be approved by the City Engineer After
recerving the City’s approval thereof, the Subdivider shall take bids, and award contracts
(the ‘Improvements Contracts”) for and mstall all of the improvements in accordance
with standard engineering and public works practices, and the applicable statutes of the State of



Wisconsin The Improvements shall be based on the construction specifications stated tn
attached Exhibit “F”

The full cost of the Improvements will mclude all labor, equipment, material,
engmeering, surveying, mspection and overhead costs necessary or mcidental to
completing the Improvements (collectively the "Improvements Costs") Payment for the
Improvements Costs will be made by the Subdivider perodically as the Improvements
are completed as provided n the Improvements Contracts The total estimated cost of the
Improvements 1s Two Hundred Five Thousand, Three Hundred Ninety Nine and 40/100
Dollars as itemzed m attached Exhibit "D"

To assure compliance with all of Subdivider’s obligations under this Agreement, prior to
the 1ssuance of any building permuts, the Subdivider shall file with the City a Fmancial
Guarantee (the "Financial Guarantee", which may be either n the form of a Letter of
Credit or a Performance Bond and such form shall be the choice of the Subdrvider) in the
initial amount of $205,399 40, representing the estimated costs for the Improvements as
shown 1n attached Exhibit “D” Upon the written approval of the City Engmeer, the
amount of the Fiancial Guarantee may be reduced periodically as the Improvements are
paid for and approved by the City so that following each such reduction, the Financial
Guarantee equals the total amount remaming for Improvements Costs pertaining to
Improvements for which Subdivider has not paid as set forth in the Improvements
Contracts for the Improvements or which remamn unapproved by the City The Financial
Guarantee shall be 1ssued by a bank or other financial institution (the “Surety Guarantee
Issuer™) reasonably satisfactory to the City, for the City as "Beneficiary”, m a form
satisfactory to the City Attommey Failure to file the Financial Guarantee withm ten (10)
days after written demand by the City to the Subdivider shall make and render this
Agreement null and void, at the election of the City Upon acceptance by the City (as
described below) of and payment by Subdivider for all the completed Improvements, the
Financial Guarantee shall be released and surrendered by the City to the Subdivider, and
thereafter the Subdivider shall have no further obhgation to provide the Financial
Guarantee to the City under this Paragraph 5, except as set forth under Paragraph 13

below

In the event the Subdivider fails to pay the required amount for the Improvements or
services enumerated heremn within thity (30) days or per contract after being billed for
each improvement of each stage for any Improvements Costs at the time and i the
manner provided mn this Agreement, and if amounts remam unpaid after an additional
tharty (30) days written notice to Subdivider, the City may notify the Guarantee Issuer in
writing to make the said payments under the terms of the Financial Guarantee to the
Contractor, within the later of the time frame stipulated in the Financial Guarantee or five
(5) days after recerving a written demand from the City to make such payment Demand
shall be sent by registered letter with a return receipt requested, addressed to the Surety
Guarantee Issuer at the address indicated on the Financial Guarantee, with a copy to the
Subdivider, described 1n Paragraph five (5) above It 1s understood between the parties to
this Agreement, that billings for the Improvements Costs shall take place as the various
segments and sections of the Improvements are completed and certified by the City
Engineer as complying with the approved plans and applicable provisions of the Franklin
Municipal Code and Unified Development Ordmance

In addition, the City Engmeer may demand that the Financial Guarantee be extended
from time to time to provide that the Financial Guarantee be m force until such time that



all moprovements have been installed and accepted through the one (1) year guarantee
period as set forth under Paragraph 13 below, including the fourteen (14) months
following substantial completion of the Improvements and 10% hmitations also set forth
thereunder For the purposes of this Agreement, “Substantial Completion” 1s defined as
being the date that the binder course of asphalt is placed on the public roadway of the
Subdivision Demand for said extension shall be sent by registered letter with a return
receipt, with a copy to the Subdivider If said Financial Guarantee 1s not extended for a
munimum of a one (1) year period prior to expiration date of the Financial Guarantee
(subject to any then applicable of the aforementioned hmitations), the City may send
written notice to the Surety Guarantee Issuer to make payment of the remaming balance
of the Financial Guarantee to the City to be placed as an escrow deposit

The following special provisions shall apply

(a) Those special provisions as itemized on attached Exhibit "C" and attached
Exhibit "E" are hereby mcorporated by reference 1n this Agreement and made a
part hereof as if fully set forth heren

(b) The laterals mentioned i Exhibit "B" are to be mstalled before street surfacing
mentioned i Exhibit "B" 1s commenced

(c) Electric and Gas Company 1s to imstall all necessary mains before the street
surfacing mentioned in Exhibit "B" 1s commenced Also, any other underground
work by any other utilities 1s also to be completed before said street surfacing 1s
commenced

(d) To the extent necessary to accommodate public ufilities easements on the
Subdivision development, easements will be dedicated for the use of the Electric
Company, the Telephone Company and Cable Company to provide utility
services to the Subdivision All utilities shall be underground except for any
existing utility poles/lines

(e) The curb face to curb face width of the roads i the Subdivision shall be as
determined by the City Engmeer

H Fee title to all of the Improvements and binding easements upon lands on which
they are located, shall be dedicated and given by the Subdivider to the City, in
form and content as required by the City, without recourse, and free and clear of
all hens or encumbrances, with final mspection and approval of the
Improvements and accompanying title and easement documents by the City
constituting acceptance of such dedication The Improvements shall thereafter be
under the junisdiction of, the City and the City shall mamtan, at the City's
expense, all of the Improvements after completion and acceptance thereof by the
City Necessary permits shall be obtamed for all work described m this
Agreement

The Subdivider agrees that 1t shall be fully responsible for all the Improvements 1n the
Subdivision and appurtenances thereto during the peniod the Improvements are being
constructed and continuing until the Improvements are accepted by the City (the
"Construction Period") Damages that may occur to the Improvements during the
Construction Period shall be replaced or repaired by the Subdivider The Subdivider's



10

11

12

13

obligations under this Paragraph 8, as to any mmprovement, terminates upon acceptance
of that improvement by the City

The Subdivider shall take all reasonable precautions to protect persons and property of
others on or adjacent to the Subdivision from mjury or damage during the Construction
Period This duty to protect shall include the duty to provide, place and maintain at and
about the Subdivision, hights and barricades during the Construction Period

If the persons or property of others sustain loss, damage or iyury resulting directly or
indrrectly from the work of the Subdivider or its subcontractors or materialmen n therr
performance of this Agreement or from 1ts failure to comply with any of the provisions of
this Agreement or of law, the Subdivider shall mdemmfy and hold the City harmless
from any and all claims and judgments for damages, and from costs and expenses to
which the City may be subjected or which it may suffer or mcur by reason thereof,
provided, however, that the City shall provide to the Subdivider promptly, in writing,
notice of the alleged loss, damage or mjury

Except as otherwise provided n Paragraph 12 below, the Subdivider shall indemnify and
save harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees, and shall defend the same,
from and agamst any and all hability, claims, loss, damages, interest, actions, suits,
Jjudgments, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees, to whomsoever owed and by
whomsoever and whenever brought or obtamed, which in any manner results from or
arises mn connection with

(a) the neghgent or willfully wrongful performance of this Agreement by the
Subdrvider or any subcontractor retained by the Subdivider,

(b) the negligent or willfully wrongful construction of the Improvements by the
Subdivider or by any of said subcontractors,

(c) the neghgent or willfully wrongful operation of the Improvements by the
Subdivider during the Construction Period,

(d) the violation by the Subdivider or by any of said subcontractors of any applicable
law, rule, regulation, order or ordinance, or

(e) the mfringement by the Subdivider or by any of said subcontractors of any
patent, trademark, trade name or copyright

Anything n this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Subdivider shall not be
obligated to indemmfy the City or the City's officers, agents or employees (collectively
the "Indemnified Parties”) from any hability, claim, loss, damage, interest, action, suit,
judgment, cost, expenses or attorneys’ fees which arise from or as a result of the
negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified Parties

The Subdivider hereby guarantees that the Improvements will be free of defects m
material and/or workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of
the Improvements by the City To secure the Subdivider's obligations under said
guaranty upon acceptance of the Improvements by the City, the Subdivider will provide
to the City a Financial Guarantee equal to 10% of the sub-total in Exhubit “D” of the total
Improvements Costs, which Financial Guarantee shall expire one (1) year after the



14

16

Improvements have been accepted by the City or continue the existing base Financial
Guarantee mamtamning a mmimum of 10% of the sub-total in Exhubit “D” of the total
Improvements Costs for one (1) year afier the improvements have been accepted by the
City This Financial Guarantee shall be a partial continuation of, and not 1n addition to,
the Financial Guarantee described in Paragraph 5 above

(a) The Subdivider shall not commence work on the Improvements until it has obtained

all msurance coverage required under this Paragraph 14 and has filed certificates thereof
with the City

(1) COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE
INSURANCE - Coverage shall protect the Subdivider and all subcontractors
retamed by the Subdivider during the Construction Period and all persons
and property from claims for damages for personal mjury, mcluding
accidental death as well as claims for property damages, which may arise
from performing this Agreement, whether such performance be by the
Subdrvider or by any subcontractor retained by the Subdivider or by anyone
directly or mdirectly employed by either the Subdivider or any such
subcontractor The City shall be named as an additional insured on all such
msurance coverage under this Paragraph 14 (a)(1) and Paragraph 14 (a)(2)
The amounts of such msurance coverage shall be as follows-

Bodily Injury $1,000,000 Per Person
$1,000,000 Per Occurrence
$1,000,000 Aggregate

Property Damage $500,000 Per Occurrence
$500,000 Aggregate

(2) COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY AND PROPERTY
DAMAGE - Insurance coverage for the operation of owned, hired and non-
owned motor vehicles shall be in the following amounts

Bodily Injury $1,000,000 Per Person
$1,000,000 Per Occurrence

Property Damage $500,000 Per Occurrence

(b) The Subdivider shall file a certificate of msurance containing a thirty (30) day notice
of cancellation to the City prior to any cancellation or change of said msurance coverage
which coverage amounts shall not be reduced by claims not arising from this Agreement

The Subdivider shall not be released or discharged of its obligations under this
Agreement until the City has completed its final mspection of all the Improvements and
the City has 1ssued its written approval of all of the Improvements, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and Subdivider has paid all of the
Improvements Costs, at which time the Subdrvider shall have no further obligations
under thus Agreement except for the one (1) year guaranty under Paragraph 13

The Subdivider and the City hereby agree that the cost and value of the Improvements
will become an ntegral part of the value of the Subdivision and that no future lot



assessments or other types of special assessments of any kind will be made against the
Subdivision by the Subdivider or by the City for the benefit of the Subdivider, to recoup
or obtamn the reimbursement of any Improvement Costs for the Subdivider

17 Execution and performance of this Agreement shall be accepted by the City as adequate
provision for the Improvements required within the meaning of §§ 236 13(2)(a),
236 13(2)(b), 236 13(2)(c), 236 13(2)(d) and 236 13(2m) of the Wisconsin Statutes

18 Penalties for Subdivider’s failure to perform any or all parts of this Agreement shall be in
accordance with Division 15-9 0500, Violations, Penalties, and Remedies of the Unified
Development Ordinance and §1-19 Penalty provisions of the City of Franklin Municipal
Code, as amended from fime to time, 1n addition to any other remedies provided by law
or mn equity so that the City may obtamn Subdivider’s comphance with the terms of this
Agreement as necessary

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns,
excepting that the parties hereto do not otherwise intend the terms or provisions of this Agreement to be
enforceable by or provide any benefit to any person or entity other than the party of the first part and the
party of the second part Subdivider shall not convey or assign any of 1ts rights or obligations under this
contract whatsoever without the written consent of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld
upon a showing that any successor or assignee 1s ready, wilhng and able to fully perform the terms hereof
and the Subdivider remains hable hereunder This Agreement shall run with the land

[The remainder of this page 1s intentionally left blank Signatures are on the following pages |



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said party of the first part has set its hand and seal and the said
party of the second part has caused these presents to be duly executed by Stephen R Olson, Mayor, and

Sandra 1. Wesolowskiy, City Clerk, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed as of the day and year
first above written

SEALED IN PRESENCE OF _VHPVR, LLC
[Limited Liability Company]

By

Name

Title

Party of the First Part
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss
COUNTY )

Personally came before me this (day) of , 2021, the above named

of _ VHPVR,LLC and acknowledged that [she/he] executed the
foregong nstrument as such officer as the deed of saxd _limited habihity company by its authority

or

This mstrument was acknowledged before me on (date) by
(name(s) of person(s)) as

(type of authority, e g, officer, trustee, etc ) of (name of

party on behalf of whomn instrument was executed)

Notary Public, County, WI
My commission expires

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By

Name Stephen R. Olson
Title Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED
By

Name Sandra L Wesolowski
Title City Clerk

Party of the Second Part



STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)ss
COUNTY )

Personally came before me this _day of , 2021, the above named
Stephen R Olson, Mayor, and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named municipal
corporation, City of Franklm, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of said municipal
corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing nstrument as such officers as the
Deed of said municipal corporation by 1its authority and pursuant to Resolution No

, adopted by 1ts Common Council on the day of ,2021.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, W1
My commission expires

This mstrument was drafted by the City Engmeer for the City of Franklin

Form approved

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney



INDEX OF EXHIBITS
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

Exhibit A Legal Description of Subdivision

Exhibit B General Description of Required Subdivision Improvements
Exhibit C General Subdivision Requirements

Exhibit D Estimated Improvement Costs

Exhibit E Additional Subdivision Requirements

Exhibit F Construction Specifications

10



EXHIBIT "A"
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OF SUBDIVISION

Part of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No 9283, recorded in the Register of Deeds office
for Milwaukee County on December 21, 2020, as Document No 11059192 and part of the
Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4, all being part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of
Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin being more particularly described as follows

Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Northeast 1/4, thence South 00°-13°-19”
West along the West line of said Northeast 1/4, a distance of 1,632.94 feet to the Westerly
extension of the North line of said Lot 2; thence North 87°-53’-21” East along said Westerly
extension, a distance of 399 80 feet to the Northwest corner of said Lot 2, said pont being the
point of beginning; thence continuing North 87°-53°-21” East along the North line of said Lot 2,
a distance of 219 41 feet to the Northeast corner of said Lot 2; thence South 00°-04°-31" West
along an East line of said Lot 2, a distance of 520.23 feet to an East corner of said Lot 2; thence
North 88°-00’-40” East along an East line of said Lot 2, a distance of 189 44 feet to an East
corner of said Lot 2, thence South 00°-04’-49”” West along an East line of said Lot 2, a distance
of 307.68 feet to an East corner of said Lot 2; thence South 88°-00’-17” West along an East line
of said Lot 2, a distance of 170.11 feet to an East corner of said Lot 2; thence South 00°-04°-49”
West along an East line of said Lot 2, a distance of 170 00 feet to the Southeast corner of said
Lot 2, said point also falling on the proposed Northerly Right-of-Way line of West Marquette
Avenue, thence Northwesterly 52 79 feet along said Northerly line on a curve to the right having
a radius of 267 00 feet, the chord of said curve bears North 86°-32°-25” West, a chord distance
of 52 70 feet, thence North 80°-52’-35” West along said Northerly line, a distance of 276 50 feet,
thence Northwesterly 65 84 feet along said Northerly line on a curve to the left having a radius of
333 00 feet, the chord of said curve bears North 86°-32’-25” West, a chord distance of 65.73
feet; thence South 87°-47°-45” West along said Northerly line, a distance of 189.46 feet to a
West line of said Lot 2; thence North 00°-13’-19” East along said West line, a distance of 432 71
feet to a West corner of said Lot 2, thence North 87°-51°-32” East along a West hne of said Lot
2, a distance of 238 67 feet to a West corner of said Lot 2, thence North 00°-16’-02” East along a
West line of said Lot 2, a distance of 368 16 feet to a West comer of said Lot 2, thence North
87°-47°-56" East along a West line of said Lot 2, a distance of 100 87 feet to a West comer of
said Lot 2, thence North 00°-16’-20” East along a West line of said Lot 2, a distance of 15.03
feet; thence North 16°-48°-41” West, a distance of 82 56 feet, thence Northwesterly 37 20 feet
along a curve to the right having a radiwus of 130 00 feet, the chord of said curve bears North 08°-
37°-00” West, a chord distance of 37 07 feet to the Westerly extenston of the North hne of said
Lot 2, thence North 87°-53’-21" East along said Westerly extension, a distance of 30 01 feet to
the point of beginning and containing 10 665 acres (464,573 sq ft ) of land more or less

11



EXHIBIT "B"
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

GENERAL DESCRIPTION
OF
REQUIRED SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENTS

Description of improvements required to be mstalled to develop the Pleasant View Reserve Phase 1
Subdivision

*S Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded, financed and paid for by
the Subdivider in heu of special assessments

*C Denotes contract for improvements to be awarded by the City, but financed
and paid for by the Subdivider in accordance with this agreement

(NA) Denotes improvement 1s not required to be nstalled 1n the Subdivision

(1) Denotes that the City 1s to pay for a portion of the improvement, 1n
accordance with this agreement, as computed by the City Engineer.

General Description of Improvements
(refer to additional sheets for concise breakdown)

1 Grading of all lots and blocks within the Subdivision in conformance with the *S§
approved grading plan
2 Grading of the streets within the Subdivision m accordance with the established *S

street grades and the City approved street cross-section and specifications

3 Installation of concrete or asphalt permanent pavement with vertical face concrete  *S
curb and gutter in accordance with present City specifications

4 Sanitary sewer main and appurtenances mn the streets and/or easement in the *S
Subdivision, to such size and extent as determmed by the master sewer plan
and/or City Engineer, as necessary to provide adequate service for the final
Subdivision and dramage area

5 Laterals and appurtenances from sanitary sewer main to each lot line, one for each *S
lot as determmed by the City
6 Water mam and fittings 1n the streets and/or easement 1n the Subdivision, to such  *S

size and extent as determined by the master water plan and/or the City Engineer
as necessary to provide adequate service for the final Subdivision and service
area

12



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Laterals and appurtenances from water main to the street line, one for each lot, as
determined by the City Engineer together with curb stop as specified by the City

Hydrants and appurtenances provided and spaced fo adequately service the area
and as the City shall require

Paved streets with curb and gutter 1n the Subdivision to the approved grade and n
accordance with the City specifications

Concrete sidewalks 1n the Subdivision to the approved grade and 1n accordance
with the City specifications

Concrete, asphalt or chipped pedestrian walks i dedicated pedestrian ways and
easements 1 the Subdivision as approved by the City

Concrete driveways between the street hne and curb and gutter for each lot as
specified and approved by the City

Street trees

Protective fencing adjacent to pedestrian ways, etc

Engineering, planning and administration services as approved

Dramage system as determined and/or approved by the City to adequately drain
the surface water from the Subdivision and management areas in accordance with

the master drainage plan and/or approved system plan

Street lighting and appurtenances along the street right-of-way as determined by
the City

Street signage mn such locations and such size and design as determined by the

City

Title evidence on all conveyances

13

*S

*S

*S

*S

*S

(NA)

*C

(NA)

*S

*S

*C

*C

*S



II

11

GENERAL

EXHIBIT "C”
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

GENERAL SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS

A The Subdivider shall prepare a plat of the land, plans for improvements, as-built drawings
of the improvements and all other tems 1n accordance with all applicable state laws and
City ordmances and regulations

B All mmprovements shall be mstalled in accordance with all City specifications and
ordinances
C The entire Subdivision as proposed shall be recorded
LOT SIZE AND UNIT SIZE
A Lots
1 All lots shall be as shown on the final approved plat
B Umnits
1 The minimum area of any hiving unit built in the project shall be as specified n
the Franklin Municipal Code and Unified Development Ordinance n effect at the
time the permit 1s 1ssued unless otherwise specified m the agreement
WATER SYSTEM

A Availability

1 Each and every lot in the Subdivision shall be served by a water main

2 The Subdivider shall provide for the extension of the water system to abutting
properties by laying water pipe in public nght-of-way or i water easement to the
exterior lot line of the Subdivision as directed by the City Engineer

3 Laterals shall be laid to each and every lot Size shall be approved by the City
Engineer

4 Fire hydrants shall be available to the City's Fire and Public Works Departments,
and both City Departments shall have free and unhmited use of the water

B Construction

14



IV

\Y%

1 All construction shall be m accordance with the specifications of the City

2 Inspection of the work shall be at the Subdivider's expense

3 Mams and appurtenances mcluding all pipe, hydrants, gate valves, laterals and
curb stop boxes shall be mstalled

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM

A Components

Sanitary sewerage service through and withmn the Subdivision shall be provided It shalt
consist of without limrtation because of enumeration, sanitary sewer, manholes,
appurtenances, laterals, and other appurtenances

B Availability

1 Each and every building 1n the Subdivision shall be served by a sanitary sewer

2 Laterals shall be laid to the lot line of each and every lot

3 a)

b)

STORM DRAINAGE

A Components

The Subdivider shall provide for the extension of the sanitary

sewer system to abutting properties by laymg sewer pipe to the exterior
lot limes of the Subdivision as directed by the City Engineer, and
accordance with system plans as approved by Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District

In the event that adjacent property owners request sewer service prior to
the time the sewer extensions are mnstalled to the exterior boundaries of
the Subdivision as described 1n Section IV B 3 (a) above, the City 15
hereby granted the night to mstall said extensions within the Subdivision
at the expense of the Subdivider All costs for nstalling sewer systems
outside of the boundaries of the Subdivision shall be paid by the adjacent
property owners upon any spectal assessment proceedings had by the
City or warver thereof by the adjacent property owners pursuant to Wis

Stat § 66 0701 Special assessments by local ordinance, and §207 15

Special assessments, of the Municipal Code

Storm dramage through and within the Subdivision shall be provided by means of storm
sewer, culverts and ditches nstalled within the road required as per approved system
plan [t shall consist of, without Iimitation because of enumeration, sewers, culverts,
pipes, manholes, inlets, leads, open swales, retention basins and other management
facilities as determined by the City Engmeer The City, at the determination of the City
Engineer, may have the storm drainage system reviewed by a consultant engineer at the
Subdivider’s cost

15



B

C

Endwalls
1 Endwalls shall be approved by the City Engineer

2 Endwalls shall be mstalled on each and every culvert and at all open ends of
storm sewers

Outfalls and Retaming Walls

1 Qutfalls and retaming walls shall be built where required by the City Engineer

2 The aesthetic design of said structures shall be approved by the Architectural
Board

3 The structural design of said structures shall be done by a licensed Engineer or

Architect registered m the State of Wisconsin

D Responsibility of Discharged Water

1

The Subdivider shall be responsible for the storm drainage until 1t crosses the exterior
property line of the Subdivision or until 1t reaches a pomt designated by the City outside
of and adjacent to the property from which the water crosses over, under or through
artificial or natural barriers The water shall be brought to said point by an open ditch or
other means as directed by the City Engmeer

However, if the Subdivider of the Subdivision will, in the opinion of the City Engineer,
cause water problems downstream from the Subdivision which will reasonably require
special consideration, the Subdivider shall comply with such terms as the City Engineer
may require to prevent these problems Said terms shall be made part of those documents
under the section titled "Special Provisions”

VI STREETS

A

Location

| Streets shall be constructed i such a manner that the centerline of roadway shall
be centerline of right-of-way

2 Streets shall be constructed i each and every road nght-of-way platted and shall
be built to the exterior lot line of the Subdivision whenever possible except as
noted i Exhibit “E”

Names

The names of all streets shall be approved by the City Engineer
Construction

1 All streets shall be built in accordance with the specifications on file in the City
Engmeer's Office

16



All streets shall be constructed with 8” of stonebase and 4” of A/C binder course
prior to Subdivision certification  The 2” A/C surface course shall be mstalled
when 90% of the lots within the Subdivision have been built upon or at the
discretion of the City Engineer

Before the final lift of asphalt can be installed within a Subdivision the
Subdivider must make arrangements to repair damaged or failed concrete curb
and gutter, concrete walk, asphalt base course or sub-grade Also, damaged or
falled utility appurtenances must be repaired, rebwlt or replaced by the
Subdivider’s contractor prior to the mstallation of the final hift of asphalt
pavement

All associated costs with this work will be the responsibility of the Subdivider

The construction shall be mspected by the City or its agent and all fees due to
such mspection shall be paid by Subdivider

D Snow Removal and Ice Control

The responsibility for snow removal and 1ce control on all streets within the Subdivision
shall lie with the Subdivider until

vl EASEMENTS

a) The plat 1s recorded, and

b) The streets have been provisionally approved by the City

A Dramage

1

All dramage easements dedicated to the public shall be improved as follows

a) Storm sewer or open channel, unless otherwise agreed upon by the
Subdivider and the City

b) Side slopes no steeper than 4 |
c) Landscaped m accordance with the applicable City regunlations and/or
approvals condition for the Subdivision for landscaping requirements or,

m the case of storm sewer, as directed by the City Engmneer

Pedestrian

a) The pedestrian walks shall be concrete or asphalt as required by city
Engineer and shall be ten (10) feet wide

b) The edge of the walk shall be at least one (1) foot from either side of the
easement

17



VIII

PERMITS ISSUED

A Building Permuts

1 No building permuts shall be 1ssued until

a)

The santtary and storm sewer and water mains have been installed, tested
and approved

b) Dramage has been rough graded and approved
c) Streets and lots have been rough graded and approved, and curb and
gutter mstalled and the base course of asphalt pavement 1nstalled
d) The plat has been recorded.
€) All Subdivision monuments have been set
2 Building permits may be granted for model homes prior to satisfying the above

conditions, provided an agreement relating thereto has been approved by the
Common Council of the City of Frankhn

B Occupancy Permits
1 No temporary occupancy permits shall be 1ssued until
a) Streets have been paved except for the final lift of asphalt
b) The gas, telephone and electrical services have been nstalled and are n
operation

c) The water system 15 mstalled, tested and approved

d) The site 1s stabihized and all drainage facilities have been re-certified
DEED RESTRICTIONS
A A Financial Guarantee approved by the City Attorney mn the full amount of all non-

assessable 1mprovements not yet nstalled and approved as of the date of this Agreement
shall be submitted to the City before any permuts are 1ssued

B The time of completion of improvements

1 The Subdivider shall take all action necessary so as to have all the improvements

spectfied 1n this Agreement nstalled and approved by the City before

two years from the date of this agreement

2 Should the Subdivider fail to take said action by said date, it 1s agreed that the
City, at 1ts option and at the expense of the Subdivider, may cause the mstallation
of or the correction of any deficiencies in said improvements

18



X

CHARGES FOR SERVICES BY THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

A

Fee for Checking and Review

At the time of submitting the plans and specifications for the construction of the
Subdivision improvements, a fee equal to two-and-one-fourth percent (2% %) of the cost
of the unprovements as estimated by the City Engineer at the time of submission of
improvement plans and specifications, to partially cover the cost to the City of checking
and reviewing such plans and specifications provided that cost does not exceed
$250,000 00, a fee equal to one-and-three-fourth percent (134 %) of such cost, if the cost
1s 1n excess of $250,000 00, but not 1n excess of $500,000 00, and one-and-one-fourth
percent (1% %) of said cost i excess of $500,000 00 At the demand of the Subdivider
or City Engineer, the fee may be recomputed after the work 1s done mn accordance with
the actual cost of such improvements and the difference, if any, shall be paid by or
remitted to the Subdivider Evidence of cost shall be i such detail and form as required
by the City Engineer

For the services of testing labs, consulting engineers and other personnel, the Subdivider

agrees to pay the City the actual charge plus five (5%) percent for admnistration and
overhead

19



EXHIBIT "D"
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION
PHASE I

ESTIMATED IMPROVEMENT COSTS

All improvement costs, mcludng but not limited to preparation of plans, mstallation of facilities and
mspection shall be borne by the Subdivider i accordance with Paragraph (4) of this Agreement

Said costs for the project are estimated to be as follows

DESCRIPTION COSTS
Grading (including Erosion Control) $ 25,000 00
Sanitary System e
Water System e
Storm Sewer System e
o Paving (including sidewalk) 26,508 55
Street Trees (34 x $400/lot) 13,600 00
Street Lights (3) @ approximately $5,000/ea 15,000 00
Street Signs 1,622 40
Underground Electric, Gas and Telephone 62,126 85
Storm Water Management 10,000 00
SUBTOTAL $153,857 80
Engineering/Consulting Services 10,000 00
Municipal Services (7% of Subtotal) 10,770 04
Contingency Fund 30,771 56
(20% of Subtotal)
TOTAL $205,399 40

Total _Two Hundred Five Thousand, Three Hundred Nmety Nime and 40/100 Dollars

APPROVED BY Date
Glen E Morrow City Engineer

20



EXHIBIT "E"
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION
PHASE 1

ADDITIONAL SUBDIVISION
REQUIREMENTS

The Subdivider agrees that 1t shall pay to the City of Franklin for three (3) public street light
fixtures and poles as provided by WE-Energies The LED fixtures shall be oval- high lumen (143
watts) for major intersections and medium lumen (92 watts) for the mtertor of the subdivision

The poles shall be 35-foot fiberglass with 6-foot arm (position over the City street) Non-LED
lights are not permitted

The Subdivider shall make every effort to protect and retain all existing trees, shrubbery, vines
and grasses pursuant to the approved Natural Resource Protection Plan (the “NRPP”) Trees shall
be protected and preserved during construction m accordance with sound conservation practices
as outlined n §§15-8 0204A through F of the Unified Development Ordinance

The Subdivider shall cause all grading, excavations, open cuts, side slopes and other land surface
disturbances to be so mulched, seeded, sodded or otherwise protected that erosion, siltation,
sedimentation and washing are prevented m accordance with the plans and specifications

approved by the City Engineer as outlmed i §§15-8 0203H 1 through 5 of the Umified
Development Ordinance

The Subdivider agrees to pay the City for street trees planted by the City on W Marquette
Avenue, S 50% Street and S 49™ Street at the rate of $400 per tree with a planting distance
between trees of 85 feet on the average The City shall determine the planting schedule and shall
be responsible for tree mamtenance and replacement except for damage caused by the Subdivider,
the Subdivider’s sub-contractors, or the lot owners

The requirements for the mstallation of concrete driveway approaches shall be omitted from this
Agreement because the Subdivider will require that the owners of said lots mstall concrete
driveway approaches, as required by the Franklin Building Inspector

The Subdivider shall be responsible for cleaning up the debris that has blown from buildings
under construction within the Subdivision The Subdivider shall clean up all debris within forty-
eight (48) hours after receiving a notice from the City Engineer

The Subdivider shall be responsible for cleaning up the mud and durt on the roadways until such
time as the final lift of asphalt has been 1nstalled The Subdivider shall clean the roadways within
forty-eight (48) hours after recerving a notice from the City Engmeer

Prior to commencing site grading, the Subdivider shall submit for approval by the City Engineer

an erosion and silt control plan Said plan shall provide sufficient control of the site to prevent
siltation downstream from the site  The Subdivider shall maimntan the erosion and siltation

21



10

11

12

13

14

15

confrol until such time that vegetation sufficient to equal pre-existing conditions has been
established

The Subdivider shall preserve the environmental natural resource features as shown on the
Natural Resource Protection Plan and shall mstall an orange snow fence and silt fence around the
environmental natural resource features prior to land disturbing

The Subdivider shall mform the persons purchasing lots of therr obhgation to cut weeds to
conform to the City’s noxious weed ordinance

The Subdivider shall construct storm water management facilities as required 1n the Storm Water
Management Plan 1 accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the City Engineer
Maintenance of said storm water management facilities shall be the responsibility of the
Subdivider and/or owners association

The Subdivider shall create a Homeowners Association for the care and mamtenance of all
common lands, mcluding all storm water management facilities, and other green areas Said
Homeowners Association documents shall be reviewed and approved by the Franklin Plan
Commussion or as may otherwise be provided by the Umfied Development Ordinance, prior to
recording of the Fmal Plat The Subdivider 1s responsible to recertify the storm water
management facilities after the site is stabilized and prior to the conveyance to the Homeowners
Association

Homeowners Association documents shall include a Declaration of Restrictions and Covenants
specifying the preservation of the existing storm water management facilities and landscaping and
entryways Said document shall be recorded after review and approval by the City Attorney

Construction Requirements

a) Prior to any construction activity on the site, Subdivider shall prepare a gravel surfaced
parking area within the boundaries of the site

b) During construction, all vehicles and equipment shall park on the site  Parking shall not be
permitted on any external public right-of-way

¢) Prior to 1ssuance of any bullding permits other than m the case of the 1ssuance of any model
structure permits, all necessary grading and improvements shall be completed as directed by
the City Engineer

d) All traffic shall enter the site from W Marquette Avenue

The Subdivider shall provide for the connection to the existing S 49" Street and mnstall any
necessary curb and gutter and pavement

22



EXHIBIT "F"
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION
PHASE 1

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

The following specifications shall be used for the construction of the various improvements

ITEM SPECIFICATION
Storm & Sanitary Sewer STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER
AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN
WISCONSIN, most current edition
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Water Mains STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER
AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN
WISCONSIN, most current edition
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Concrete Curb & Gutter CITY OF FRANKLIN
Streets
Construction CITY OF FRANKLIN
Matenals
Asphalt CITY OF FRANKLIN
Aggregate CITY OF FRANKLIN
Concrete CITY OF FRANKLIN
Cross Section CITY OF FRANKLIN

PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION Phase 1 SDA 2021

23




Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
August 17, 2021

Reports & RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF ITEM NO.
Recommendations STORM WATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT FROM VH PVR, LLC. FOR THE

PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION G'9'

AT S.515T STREET AND W. MARQUETTE AVENUE

BACKGROUND

The City of Franklin, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), and Wisconsin
Department of Natural resources (WDNR) require storm water management facilities for any
developments which meet thresholds as defined in their individual ordinances and rules. These
facilities as designed may be for quantity and/or quality control. In the City of Franklin these are
typically wet ponds, biofiltration basins, and/or permeable pavers, although other best
management practices (BMPs) are also available. As a MMSD customer and designated by the
WDNR as a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System, the City’s Ordinance is written to not only
include City quantity requirements, but also MMSD quantity requirements, and WDNR quantity
and quality requirements. The facilities within private developments are involved in those credits.
Therefore, ongoing maintenance of private facilities is imperative.

[t is the responsibility of the development owner, or a subdivision homeowners association, to
maintain the storm water facilities in perpetuity per a prescribed Maintenance Agreement. The
enclosed agreement is for the Pleasant View Subdivision located in the vicinity of S. 51% Street
and W. Marquette Avenue.

ANALYSIS

The DNR offers standard Operation and Maintenance templates for a multitude of BMPs, and most
engineers use those to develop site-specific Maintenance Agreements. The attached Agreements
were prepared by the developers and their engineers and revised as necessary per Staff comments.

OPTIONS
Sign Maintenance Agreements.

FISCAL NOTE
All costs associated with storm water facility maintenance are to be paid by the developer, owner,
or homeowners association as stated in the individual agreement.

RECOMMENDATION
Resolution 2021- , a resolution to authorize acceptance of Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreement from VH PVR,LLC for the Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision.

Engineering Department: GEM

LAENGDOCS\CA CA Storm Water Management Agreements April 2021 docx




STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF
STORM WATER FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FROM
VH PVR,LLC FOR THE PLEASANT VIEW RESERVE SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, storm water facilities are required to meet quantity and quality standards;
and

WHEREAS, a Maintenance Agreement is developed and executed to ensure effective
maintenance and operation of private storm water facilities in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, developers have executed and submitted to the City of Franklin Storm
Water Facilities Maintenance Agreements for the Pleasant View Reserve Subdivision located
east of S. 51%' Street and north and south of W. Marquette Avenue.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to accept such Storm Water Facilities
Maintenance Agreement, and, therefore, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and
directed to execute them on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of , 2021, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of ,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

SAA



STORM WATER FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

PLEASANI VIEW RESERVF SUBDIVISION
At Approximately W Marquette Ave & S 51* Street
Tax Key No 759-998 1010 (prior to land division)

This AGRCLMENT, made and entered 1nto this day of , 2021 by
and between VH PVR, T LC, heremafter called the * Owner™, and the City of I'ranklin, hereinafter
called the * City”

WITNESSETH

WEHILREAS, the Owner 1s the owner of the following described lands situated n the City
of I rankhin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, to-wit

Being a redivision of part of Parcel 3 of Certified Survey map no 6949 and part of SW 1/4 of the
NE 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, i the City of Franklin,
Mtlwaukee County, Wisconsin

Heremafter called the “Property”
WHERLEAS, the Owner 1s developing the Property, and

WHEREAS, the Subdivision known as Plcasant View Reserve hereinafier called the “Plan”,
which 1s expressly made a pant hereof, as approved or to be approved by the city, provides for
on-site Storm Walter I'acthties withm the confines of the Property as shown on the plan attached
hereto as Exhibit “B” and more particularly described on Exhibit *A”, and

WHI'RLAS, the City and the Owner, 1ts successors and assigns (““successors and assigns”
meaning to include any homeowners’ assoctation and all owners of the property or any portion
thereof), including any homeowners association, agree that the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the City of Frankhin, require that on-site Storm Water Facilities as defined m Section
15-8 0600 Umified Development Ordinance of the City of [ranklin be constructed and
maintained on the Property, and

WIIEREAS, the City requires that on-site storm walcr management practices as shown
on the Plan be constructed and adequately mamtained by the Owner, ils successors and assigns

NOW, THEREFORE, i consideration of the foregoing premuses, the mutual covenants
contained herein, and the followng terms and conditions the parties hereto agree as follows

I The on-sitc storm water facilities shall be constructed by Owner n accordance with the
plans and specifications which are identified as part ot the storm water system plan and
crosion control plan approved by the City Fngineer and submuited as part of the as-built
drawings approved by the City Engwneer

2 The Ownger, 1ts successors and assigns, shall comply with the ordinances and regulations
winch require that the Storm Water I acihities shall be regularlv inspected and maintained
as often as conditions may require, but 1n any event at least once each year The
Operatron and Maintenance Plan and Operation and Maintenance Inspection Report
attached to this Agreement as Lxlubits ‘C” and “D’ respectively and by this reference
macle a part hercof shall be used for the purposc of the regular inspections of the Storm
Water Lacthttes The Owners, 1ts successors and assigns, shall keep the Operation and
Mamtenance Reports from past inspections, as well as a log of mamtcnance activity
ndicating the date and type of maintenance completed of the Storm Water Faciliies The
purpose of the inspections 15 to assure safc and proper functioring of the facthtics  The
nspections shall cover all storm water facihities, including but not hmited to open swales
(ditches), siorm sewers, manholes, wlets berms, outlet structures, outlet pipes pond
areas and access roads Dcficiencics shatl be noted m the Operation and Mamtenance
Report The Reports and mamtenance log shall be made avanlable to the Cuty for review

(V8]

lhe Ow ner, 11> successors and assigns, hereby grant pernussionio the City, its authonzed
agents and employees to enter upon the Property and to mspect the Storm Water
I acihiies, whenever the City decems necessary  The purposc of 1nspection 15 10 proy e
penodic review by Cuy stalf, to myestigate reported deficiencics andfor to respond 1o
citizen complamts  The City shall provide the Owner, 1ts successors and assigns, copies
of the nspection findmgs and a directive lo commence with the repairs 1 necessary

Q1



~3

Corrective actions shall be taken withim a reasonable time frame as established by the
City Engineer

The Owner, 1ts successors and assigns, shall adequately mamntain the Storm Water
Facihties including but not limited to all pipes and channels built to convey storm water
to the facility, as well as all structures, improvements, and vegetation provided to control
the quantity and quality of the storm water Adequate maintenance 1s herein defined as
keeping the Storm Water 1 acilities 1n good working condition so that these storm water
facilities are performing their design functions and are in accordance with the Stormwater
Basin Maintcnance Standards as detailed in Section 15 8.0600 of the City of Frankiin
Unified Development Ordinance, and Section 13 12 (2) of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage Distnct (MMSD) rules, and by this reference made a pait hereof

[t the Owner, 1ts successors and assigns fails to mamtain the Storm Water Faciliues n
good working condiion acceplable to the City and does not perform the required
corrective actions 1n a time as established by the City Engineer in written notice, the City
may

a) Issue a citation to the Owner, its successors and assigns Such failure constitutes a
violation of Section 15 8 0600 of the Umfied Development Ordinance of the City of
Frankhn. The penalty for such violation of Section 15 8 0600 shall be not less than
$100 nor more than $2500 for each offense, together with the costs of presecution
Each day that the violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and

b)  Perform the corrective actions identified i the juspection report and assess the
Ovwner, 1ts successors and assigns, for the cost of such work. The cost of such work
shall be specially charged apainst the Property pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66 0627 If the facilities are located on an outlot owned collectively by a
homeowners association, the City may spccially charge each member of the
homeowners association according to the ownership intcrest in the facilities located
on the property This provision shall not be construed to allow the City to crect any
structure of permanent nature on the land of the Owner outside of the easement for
the Storm Water Facihities. It 1s expressly understood and agreed that the City 1s
under no obligation to rouunely maintatn or repair said storn water management
practices and m no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such
obligation on the City

In the event the City, pursuant to this Agreement and applicable easewents performs
work of an emergency nature, or expends any fimds i performance of said work for
labor, use of equipment, supplies, materials, and the like, the Owner, 1ts successors and
assigns, shall reimburse the City upon demand, withm thurty (30) days ot receipt thercof
for all actual costs incurred by the City hereunder

This Agreement imposes no hiability of any kind whatsocver on the City and the Owner
agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liabiity m the event the Storm
Water Facilities fail to operate properly

This Agreement shall bc attached as an exhibit to any document which creates a
homeowners association that 1s responsible for maintenance of the Storm Water lacilities
and shall be recorded at the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds and shall constitute a
covenant running with the land, and shall be binding on the Owner, its admmustrators
executors, assigns, heirs and any other successors n interest, meluding any homeow ners
association and all owners of the property or any portion thereof The owner shall
provide the City with a copy of any document which creates a homeow ners association
that 15 responsible for the Storm Water Facilities

The owner, 1its successors and assigns, 15 prolnbited fromn building structures, instatling
play equipment, mstalhng plants, changing grades or performing any function that
mhibits care and mamtenance of any Storin Water Facilities

The owner, 1ts successor and assigns shall maintain, at all times, an mda idual(s) who
will senv¢ as a contact person(s)

=]
N



N WITNLSS WHI'RFOF the City and Owner have set forth their hands and seals effective the
datc first above writtcn

SLALED IN PRLSENCE OI'

VH ?\'R .r\/\/(./ Owner

By Q@—,——
Name d\ﬁs E‘\M,Wyd? MM
STATE Ol WISCONSIN)ss
Eaned COUNTY)

Personally came before me this A0 day of p@f:l , 2020 the above
named One Pklm , 10 me known to be the person who exccuted

the foregoing mstrument and acknow ledged the same m the capacity mdicated.

Wt .-Hm”,]//

G TP
S (A g,

e

7,
////”“

Sy Y
Notary Piblic, County, WIS ¥ %
. . = 14
My commission expires L( B fkc 4/,>/_ t§
= N s 4 P
CITY Ol FRANKLIN L TN
Z,
By (Scal) %, O/“V . "\’é\ S
L ', 4 \
Name Stephen R. Olson /"/"’//, ls(,()*'\\“ W
Tule Mayor i
COUNTERSIGNLD
By (Seal)
Name Sandra . Wesolowsk
Tile City Clerk
STAIL OF WISCONSIN)ss
MILW AUKLL COUNTY)
Personally came before me this day of .20, the

above named Stephen R Olson Mavor and Sandra [ Wesolowsky, City Clerk, of the above
namcd municipal corporation City of Franklin, to me known to be such Mayor and City Clerk of
sarl mumeipal corporation, and acknowledged that they had executed the foregoing instrument as
such officers as the Deed of satd mumeipal corporation by its authority and pursuant o the

Resolution 1 ile No adopted by 1ts Common Council on this day of
R

Notary Pubhe, Milwaukez County, W
My commission expires

s mstrument was drafted by the City Fngneer for the City of Franklin

Foriy approved

Jesse A Wesolowskr City Attornev

Q3

gty



LXHIBIT “A®
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Being a redivision of part of Parcel 3 of Certified Survey map no 6942 and part of SW 1/4 of the

NE 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 11, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, n the Gty of Frankln,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

Q4



EXHIBIT =B~
DEPICTION OF THE FACILITIES

-~
-
]

/



ST\ I AP PY SO pR Y —————

)

ez

GRASS SWALE (TYP

A T

»

B

»

TORMWATER, ., |

S

DEPECTION OF
FACILITIES

EXHIBIT




LXHIBIT ‘C”

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN

The owner of the property affected shall mspect and maintan the following stormwater management systems
frequently, especially after heavy ramfalls but at least on an annual basis unless otherwise specified

Inspection Schedule
Annually — All Faciliies

Heavy Ranfall ~ All Facilines
Biannually/Trequently — Mowing and Swales

Retention Basin Sediment

Every S Years

STORYIWATER
FACITITY

TYPE O} ACTION

| Lawn and Landscaped
Areas

All lawn areas shall be kept clear of any matenials tat block the flow of
stormwater  Rulls and small gulhes shall immediately be filled and seeded or have
sod placed in them  The lawn shall be kept mowed tree seeclings shall be
removed, and hiter shall be removed from landscaped areas

2 Swales

All grassed swales showing signs of eroston, scour, or channelization shall be
reparred, reinforced, and revegetated inmediately  All swales shall be repaired to
the original plan requrements  Mowing shall take place no less than twice per year
at a hetght of no less than three mches  Grasscs shall not be allowed to grow 10 a
height that permuts branching or bending  Mowng shall enly .ake place when the
_ground 1s dry and able to support machinery

3 Catch Basi’Curb Intet
Grates & Pipe Outfalls

The grate openmgs/pipe outfalls to these structures must be cleared of any clogging
or the blocking of stormwater flow from getung nto or out of the stormwater
conveyance systent of any kind

4 Retention Basins

Trash racks, standpipes, outlet structures, 1nlet and outlet pipes, shall be kept clear
of debris  Non-steucturally sound devices shall be weplaced  Floating litter and
algae shall be removed morthly All grassed areas, embarkments, and flow controt
devices showing signs of erosion shall be repaired renforced and revegetated
immediately to the onginal plan requirements  Every S years, beginning in the
summer of 2022 the elevations of the pond bottom shall be surveyed to determ ne
the permanent pool depth and sediment depth 1n the pond. When silt bas
accumulated three feet from the ongmal design depih clevation of the pond, the
pond shall be cleaned out and restorad back to the onginal design depth of a
minimum of 5 frorm the normal walcr elevation  Sediment shall be removed from
the outlet control structure sump when it reaches 17w depth  Cleanng, removal
and deposit of silt from the detention pond shall be done by means and methods
acceptable to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

5 Record of Mamtznance

The operatien and maintenance plan shall rema n onsite and be available for
mspection when requested by WDNR & City of Franktin When requested 11e
owner shall make available for inspectton all mamntenance records to the department
or agent for the life of the system

o]
EN



FXHIBII ‘D

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSPECTION REPORT

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PONDS

City of Franklin

Name of Developinent __Plcasant View Reserve — Marquette Ave Pond

Respons ble Party Name Address

Telephone No Fax No E-mail
Inspector Name Address

Telephone No Fax No E-mail
Basin I.ocation General Address Section No
Normal Pool []Yes []No

Ttems wmspected Checked Maintenance Remarks
(Pond components) (Yes/No/NA) Needed
{Yes/NoMNA)

1 Embankment and Emergency spillway
Vegetation and ground cover adeqgualc

—

Embankment ¢rosion

Ammal burrows

RS

Unauthorized plantings

W

Crackimg bulging, or shding of dam
| Upstream face

2 Downstream face

3 Ator beyend toe
Upstream

Downstream

4 Emergency spillway

Pond, toe & chumney drains {unchioning

Slope protection or riprap failures

6
7 Seeps/leaks on downstreamn face
8
9

Fmergency spillway clear of debns

10 Other (specify}

2 Riser and principal spillway
Type Reinforced concrete
Corrugated metal pipe
PVC/HDPE
Masonry

1 Low flow orifice obstructed

2 Primary outlet structure
1 Debris removal necessary

2 Corrosion control

3 Trash rack mamtenance
| Decbris removal necessary

2 Corrosion control

3 Pond bottom
Sediment or debris buwldup in low flow
Pilot channel or bottom {esmmate depth)




APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
;jv/ COUNCIL ACTION August 17,2021
REPORTS & Request to Formally Adopt the name “Corporate ITEM NUMBER
Park” for the development area within Tax
IONS
RECOMMENDATION Incremental District No. 8 (TID 8) currently known
as “Area D,” roughly bound by W. Oakwood Road, S. G, 1 O.
27 Street, W. South County Line Road and S. 42"
Street.

Site planning is underway with several developers who are preparing to break ground on their
construction projects within the next year. Developers are asking for confirmation on the name of
this park to complete brochures and other marketing collateral to target potential future tenants.

Staff is currently referring to this development as the “Corporate Park” (as can be seen on the
conceptual site map included with this action request.)

Selecting a name is also necessary to differentiate this park from our existing Business Park,
Industrial Park, and Loomis Business Park.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt the name “Corporate Park” for the development currently known as “Area D.”

Economic Development: CB




FRAMKLIN CORPORATE PARK

RAWA11FB

IHTERIOR STREEY AND UTILITY LAYOUT

CITY OF FRAMKLIN
FMILWAUKEE COLNTY, WISCONSIN

LINE

E LEGEND
& fHARE § FROJBCT LIWITS
g won e waer v PHOPOSED WA TER MAIK w E
PROMISED RANCTANY SEWER

Eg s e EXASTING VAN TES MhATM
4B g,g; EXISTING BANTARY BEWER g

» gg@:é F ) ki o EXIRIKE BANTARY FOREE NAIN
g g : FanNKiir: Sana s paara e — "
it AR O3S WER  PROROSED HEWSTREET SCALE IN FEET
b EXISTING STREET TO BE ] 1 1/4 1/2
: HECOMBTRUCTED

% —— ’
i ADATE. JUNE 9, 2021 sk T CONPETE SCALE IN MILES
idg £380 £ =] Moot & Wofes, ¥

SOURCE. o
Bﬁseﬁsp SOURCE: ﬁ R'llEkEl’f - M:iElkE

e s A trdli vtre



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
- {! /i COUNCIL ACTION August 17, 2021
REPORTS & Verbal Report on Economic Development ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS G.11.

Director of Economic Development, Calli Berg, CEcD, EDFP, will provide a verbal update on
economic development activities cuirently happening and those in the planning stages. This report will
include information on business and residential development activities. Ms. Berg will provide
opportunity for Common Council to ask questions and provide feedback, which will be incorporated
into a formal printed report to be presented to Council at an upcoming 2021 Common Council meeting.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

No action requested unless Council determines to act.

Economic Development CB




Blank Page



F4

APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE

T August 17,2021
:"hP)"".‘! i_A

Reports & EMERGENCY REPAIR/REPLACEMENT OF 54 INCH ITEM NO.

Recommendations CULVERT NEAR 7677 S. 68™ STREET

G.12.

BACKGROUND

Recently a watermain on S. 68" Street failed and caused severe damage to a 54 inch diameter
concrete culvert over a ditch in front of 7677 S. 68" Street.

ANALYSIS

Upon inspection of the damage, Staff noted severe defects for the rest of the culvert that have been
heavily stressed with the recent rain and flooding events. This culvert needs to be replaced as soon
as possible. Failure to address the situation could cause catastrophic damage to the road and
adjacent properties.

On August 10, 2021, the Board of Public Works declared that this project is an emergency. This
declaration allows the City to set aside typical bidding processes that involve preparation of
bidding documents, publications, etc.

Current construction environment makes it difficult getting quotes from contractors but Staff is
working with two contractors for quotes. This information is not available to place in the Common
Council packet but is expected to be ready for the meeting. This information with a resolution will
be available at that time for discussion.

It is noted that a large portion of this project is the responsibility of the water utility. The analysis
of costs will consider appropriate share of the utility.

OPTIONS
To be discussed at the meeting.

FISCAL NOTE

Staff is currenty studying options and will have a recommendation at the Common Council
meeting for discussion and consideration.

RECOMMENDATION
A resolution to award an emergency contract to repair a road culvert at 7677 S. 68™ Street. The
contractor, price, and appropriation to be discussed at the Common Council meeting.




Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
S !,,f COUNCIL ACTION Aug 17, 2021

REPORTS & AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-
2453, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021
RECOMMENDATIONS| ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND
TO TRANSFER $38,000 OF INFORMATION G.13
SERVICES NON-PERSONNEL COSTS TO e
PERSONNEL COSTS

ITEM NUMBER

Background

The 2021 General Fund Information Services (i.e. Information Technology) budget planned for the use
of contract services to staff supporting information services needs for the City.

The Director of Information Technology has recommended converting one of the contract services
positions to a City employee to provide that help desk support for City Information Services.

The City has been using contract services for this work. This would require a transfer of
appropriations from Non-Personnel Services to Personnel services.

Recommendation

The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2021 Budget Amendment to
transfer $38,000 of Information Service Non-Personnel Service appropriations to Personnel
appropriations in support of the proposed changes.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting an ordinance to amend Ordinance 2020-2453, an Ordinance adopting the 2021
annual budget for the General Fund to transfer $38,000 of Information Services Non-personnel
costs to Personnel costs

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY
ORDINANCE NO. 2021

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-2398, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2020 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO TRANSFER $38,000 OF
INFORMATION SERVICES NON-PERSONNEL COSTS TO PERSONNEL COSTS

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2021 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 17, 2020;

WHEREAS; the Information Services (i.e. Information Technology) Director has
recommended hiring a contract worker rather than continuing contract services; and

WHEREAS, the Information Services 2021 Budget anticipated the use of contract services
to staff supporting information services needs for the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That a 2021 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

General Fund
Information Services Non-Personnel Services Decrease $38,000
Personnel Services Increase 38,000

Section 2 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this ordinance on the

city’s web site.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of , 2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT




APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
/ COUNCIL ACTION DATE
Sy 8/17/2021
REPORTS & Authorization to Hire a Full-Time ‘Desktop and User ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS Support Administrator’ to Replace the Current On-
Premise IT Support Contractor at City Hall G.1 4.

BACKGROUND

On March 17, 2020, the Common Council voted to approve the Information Technology (IT) job
descriptions and positions for ‘Desktop and User Support Administrator’ (Pay Grade 3) and ‘Server
and Infrastructure Engineer’ (Pay Grade 8). The plan, at that time, was to recruit and hire personnel
for these positions, eliminating the need to contract for IT Support Services. Unfortunately, the
recruiting was performed at the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic and trying to find the right
candidate for an on-premise support position was extraordinarily difficult. Due to a failed
recruitment process, it was decided to delay the hiring process until after the pandemic subsided.

ANALYSIS

In February of 2021, City Hall IT contract staffing was transferred from Heartland Business Systems
to Robert Half Technology. Robert Half Technology provided a much broader availability of high-
quality candidates; offered placement-based services, allowing a contract employee too become an in-
house employee if desired by the City; and presented more attractive pricing. Robert Half
Technology has a contract explicitly allowing the direct hiring of a consultant, after they have
completed six months of temporary service, at a flat fee of $1,000. This allowed the City to fully
ascertain the fit and skill sets of the candidate well before making a hiring decision.

While this position is included under the City’s Civil Service Program, an exception is being
requested to forgo an open recruitment at this time due to the availability and willingness of a strong
candidate who has been working in the specific capacity that the candidate is being hired for.

Ryan Boos, the current contract employee, has performed the role of ‘Desktop and User Support
Administrator” since February 22,2022. Mr. Boos has performed his job functions in an exemplary
manner, and it is the recommendation of both the Director of IT and Director of Administration that
he be hired as a permanent full-time employee. Further, Mr. Boos has already successfully
completed of full City of Franklin Police Department security background check which provides the
security clearance for him to perform IT work at the Police Department when needed.

The position description to be utilized for this position is the 2020 approved job description for the
‘Desktop and User Support Administrator’, at a Pay Grade 3. The annual salary is anticipated to be
approximately $46,300, with anticipated benefits coming in at approximately $25,900, in addition to
the $1,000, one-time flat fee that would be paid to Robert half Technology. This is within the range for
the established position and well within the authorized budget for these services.




RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Common Council authorize the hiring of a full-time ‘Desktop and User
Support Administrator” to replace the current on-premises I'T Support Contractor at City Hall.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the hiring of a full-time ‘Desktop and User Support Administrator’ to replace the
current on-premises IT Support Contractor at City Hall.

Director of IT-JM/DOA-PS



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

DATE
COUNCIL ACTION
&/ 08/17/2021
REPORTS & Consideration of a Resolution Adopting the City of ITEM NUMBER
Franklin Code of Conduct for Elected and Appointed
RECOMMENDATIONS Officials and the Rules of the Common Council G. 1 5.
BACKGROUND

Based on the outcome of an investigation 1n early 2021 regarding an employee complaint, the Attorney
representing the City’s Liability Insurance Provider recommended that the City make efforts to create proper,
respectful, and eftective communication protocols and mitiate leadership improvements. To that end, over
the past six months, staff and the Council have been working very hard on creating two valuable documents.
The first, the City of Franklin Code of Conduct, 1s being recommended to ensure that all City Officials have
clear guidelines for carrying out the responsibilities they are charged with, while mamntaming high standards
of integrity, trustworthiness, honesty, and fairness; and the second, the Rules of the Common Councll, is
being recommended to promote consistency and orderly City of Franklin Meetings.

This 1item was last discussed at the August 3, 2021 Council Meeting, when Council directed staff to receive
mput from Alderman Mayer at a meeting to be held in the near future, and bring the documents back for
consideration on September 7, 2021.

ANALYSIS

Updates were made to the August 3, 2021 versions of the drafts City of Franklin Code of Conduct and the
Rules of the Common Council based on a meeting held on August 13, 2021, with Alderman Mayer and
myself.

The current versions of each of the documents are included with this item so that Council Members have
ample time to review prior to Council consideration on September 7, 2021.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Common Council establish the City of Franklin Code of Conduct for Elected and
Appointed Officials and the Rules of the Common Council and include these documents in the newly created
Council Reference Manual.

COMMON COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

No action required at this trme. Consideration of this item will be requested at the September 7, 2021 Council
Meeting.

DOA-PAS



CITY OF FRANKLIN CODE OF CONDUCT
ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS
August 17, 2021

SECTION 1: PURPOSE

It is the policy of the City of Franklin to uphold, promote, and demand the highest standards of
ethics from its elected and appointed officials. Accordingly, the Mayor; Common Council
Members; Commission/Board/Committee Members; and Appointed Officials shall maintain the
standards of personal integrity, trustworthiness, honesty, and fairness in carrying out their public
duties, avoid improprieties in their roles as public servants, comply with all applicable laws, and
shall not use their City position or authority improperly or for personal gain.

This Code of Conduct exists to ensure that all officials have clear guidelines for carrying out their
responsibilities in their relationships with each other, with the City staff, with the citizens of
Franklin, and with all other private and governmental entities. It is understood that all City
Officials aspire to maintain these standards. In the event that these shared objectives are not met,
self-correction is the goal, with enforcement occurring when necessary.

All officials recognize that an action may be legal but may also be unprofessional, inappropriate,
or perceived as a form of harassment or abuse.

This Code of Conduct works in conjunction with the City of Franklin Municipal Code and State
of Wisconsin Statutes.

SECTION 2: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE
MEMBERS CONDUCT WITH ONE ANOTHER

The Common Council and Mayor (hereinafter the "Council") have a responsibility to set policy
for the City. In doing so, certain types of conduct foster positive debate while other types do not.
The Council is responsible for treating one another as they wish to be treated. The same
expectation is in place for Commission/Board/Committee Members.

The Council, as well as Commissions/Boards/Committees, is composed of individuals with a wide
variety of backgrounds, personalities, values, opinions, and goals. Understanding the diversity
which exists, all who choose to serve in public office have the obligation to preserve and protect
the well-being of the community and its citizens. In all cases, this common goal is to be
acknowledged, and all officials must recognize that certain behavior will lead to success while
other behavior is counterproductive.

A. Use of Formal Titles

All officials will make every effort to refer to one another and City staff formally during public
meetings as Mayor, Council President, Alderperson, Board/Commission/Committee Member,
followed by the individual's last name.

B. Use of Civility and Decorum in Discussions and Debate

Difficult questions, tough challenges to a particular point of view, and criticism of ideas and
information are legitimate elements of free democracy in action. Every official has the right to
an individual opinion, without interruption, which is to be respected by the other officials.
Officials shall not be hostile, degrading, or defamatory when debating a contentious issue. Each
official is to work under the premise that all other officials are acting with appropriate motives

1



and keeping the interest of the public in mind, and are not to be criticized for differing opinions
because they believe them to be lacking in judgment or are improperly motivated.

However, this does not allow any official to make belligerent, impertinent, slanderous,
threatening, abusive, or personally disparaging comments in public meetings or during
individual encounters. Shouting, attacking, or other actions that could be construed as
threatening or demeaning will not be tolerated. If an official is personally offended by the
remarks of another official, the offended official should voice the concern promptly and
afford the other official the opportunity to either explain the comment or apologize. If that
is not successful, the offended official should call for a "point of personal privilege".

. Honor the Role of the Chair in Maintaining Order

It is the responsibility of the Mayor, as Chair of the Council, as well as
Commission/Board/Committee Chairs, to keep the discussion of all members on track during
meetings. Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members are to respect the efforts by the
Mayor/Chair to focus discussion on current agenda items. If there is disagreement about the
agenda or the Mayor’s/Chair’s actions, those objections are to be voiced respectfully and with
reason, following commonly recognized parliamentary procedure.

. Dissemination of Information

Out of courtesy to all Council Members, new information regarding appropriate City
Business/Communications will be disseminated to the Body prior to disseminating on social
media.

. Use of Electronic Devices

Respect for one another, constituents, and those appearing before the Council and
Commissions/Boards/Committees is paramount, and full attention to the matters before the
Body is the purpose of meetings. The use of electronic devices to communicate regarding City
business during meetings is prohibited since it presents an opportunity for violation of open
meetings and open records laws. Personal use (i.e. use not related to City Business) of
electronic devices is strongly discouraged and is to be reserved only for urgent situations.
However, it is acknowledged that occasional use of electronic devices occurs for business
purposes within the context of meetings and is acceptable.

Social Media

Social media presence by those officials covered under this code is to be informative in nature
and positively reflect on the community and City staff, and promote local activities. All
officials shall avoid expressing opinions or bias regarding City business or issues that may
come before the Council/Commission/Board/Committee when it may be construed that they are
acting on behalf of the City.

In the use of social media, all officials are to abide by the following:

e Refrain from making belligerent, impertinent, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or
personally disparaging comments;

¢ Ensure that they do not participate in discrimination or harassment, even if the identified
behavior is not targeting a protected class, consisting of unwelcome conduct, sexual or
otherwise, whether verbal, physical, or visual. Harassing conduct includes, but is not
limited to: slurs or negative stereotyping; bullying, threatening, intimidating or other hostile

2



acts; degrading jokes and display or circulation of graphic material that degrades or shows
hostility; and physical touching;

e Shall never demean or personally attack an employee regarding the employee's job
performance in public; and

e Arc to demonstrate their honesty and integrity, and to be an example of appropriate and
ethical conduct.

G. Newsletters by Council Members

Council Members are allowed to create newsletters; however, all Council Members must
ensure that in expressing their own opinion, they do not mislead any reader/listener into
believing that their individual opinion is that of the entire
Council/Commission/Board/Committee unless the Council/Commission/Board/Committee has
taken a vote of the Body on that specific issue and the Member’s opinion is the same as the
result of the vote of the Body on the matter.

H. Discrimination and QOther Harassment

The Council is committed to providing an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment, even if the identified behavior is not targeting a protected class. Harassment
consists of unwelcome conduct, sexual or otherwise, whether verbal, physical, or visual.
Harassing conduct includes, but is not limited to: slurs or negative stereotyping; bullying,
threatening, intimidating or other hostile acts; degrading jokes and display or circulation of
graphic material that degrades or shows hostility; and physical touching.

SECTION 3: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE
MEMBERS CONDUCT WITH CITY STAFF

Governance of the City relies on the cooperative efforts of elected officials who set policy and
City staff who implement and administer the Council's policies. Therefore, every effort is to be
made to be cooperative and show mutual respect for the contributions made by each other for the
good of the community.

The City of Franklin, through its form of government and Municipal Code, charges the Mayor as the
responsible person for all staff in the City, except as may be otherwise provided by law pursuant to
the Wisconsin Statutes.

The Common Council, upon recommendation from individual Council Members, professional staff,
and volunteer Boards/Commissions/Committees, authorizes various aspects of personnel
management including policies, pay plans, benefit plans and other related items. On Council
direction, the Mayor is charged with implementing these items while working with the executive
team. This provides for a single manager to direct our staff.

Members of the Common Council must be diligent in maintaining this “chain of command”.

Council Members shall not engage in directing employees in their tasks and/or injecting themselves
into tasks and projects. Council Members are encouraged to get to know and support the City’s 240+
employees, and treat them with respect and professionalism.

Should an individual Council Member see a deficiency, need a project or task performed, have a
special request for service, or any other directive for staff, he/she is to communicate that, in writing,
including the specific issue as well as a requested resolution, to the Mayor or Director of
Administration. (This does not include Council Members’ need for additional information needed for

3



Council agenda items or issues relevant to their districts, which is covered in the Rules of the
Common Council.) In the event that the matter is not resolved within a reasonable amount of time
after communications with the Mayor and the Director of Administration, the matter may be
discussed at a Council or Committee of the Whole Meeting at the call of two Council Members by
filing a written request with the Clerk.

All elected and appointed officials must constantly be aware of their impact on the morale and
reputation of our employees in their statements and interactions.

A. Treat Staff as Professionals

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall treat all staff as professionals.
Clear, honest communication that respects the abilities, experience, and dignity of each
individual is expected. Poor behavior toward staff is not acceptable.
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members should refer to staff by their title
followed by the individual's last name in public meetings when first introduced.

B. Never Publicly Demean or Personally Attack an Individual Employee

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall never demean or personally attack
an employee regarding the employee's job performance in public. All employee
performance issues shall be directed to the Mayor or the Director of Administration
through private correspondence or conversation.

C. Do not Supersede Administrative Authority

Unless otherwise provided in this Code, neither the Council, nor any of
Commission/Board/Committee Members, shall attempt to supersede the administration's
powers and duties. Neither the Council nor any Commission/Board/Committee Member
thereof shall give orders to any of the Department Heads or their subordinates, either
publicly or privately. Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall not attempt to
unethically influence or coerce City staff concerning either their actions or
recommendations to awarding contracts, selection of consultants, processing of
development proposals, the granting of City licenses and permits, or any other similar City
function.

Nothing in this section shall be construed, however, as prohibiting a Council Member or
Commission/Board/Committee Member in an open meeting from fully and freely
discussing with or suggesting to the Department Heads anything pertaining to City affairs
or the interests of the City. And, it is also noted that there may be limited occasions when
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members need to communicate with staff outside
public meetings, not related to questions on agenda matters.

D. Do Not Solicit Political or Business Support from Staff

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall not solicit any type of political
support, including: financial contributions, display of posters or lawn signs, name on
support list, collection of petition signatures, etc., from City staff. City staff may, as private
citizens within their constitutional rights, support political candidates, however all such
activities must be done away from the workplace and be the will of the staff member.
Photographs of uniformed City employees shall not be used in political ads.

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members should refrain from soliciting personal
business, i.e. services, patronage, etc. that are not offered to the general public, from staff.



SECTION 4: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE MEMBERS
CONDUCT TOWARDS THE PUBLIC

In Public Meetings

Making the public feel welcome is an important part of the democratic process. No signs of
partiality, prejudice, or disrespect are to be evident on the part of individual
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members toward an individual participating in a public
forum. Every effort is to be made to be fair and impartial in listening to public testimony or
input. All Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members are to demonstrate, both publicly
and privately, their honesty and integrity, and to be an example of appropriate and ethical
conduct. And, all Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members are to respect and appreciate
the public's participation, input, and opinions.

A. Be Welcoming to Speakers and Treat Them with Care and Respect

For many citizens, speaking in front of a governing body is a new and difficult experience;
under such circumstances, many are nervous. Council/Commission/Board/Committee
Members are expected to treat citizens with care and respect. (See section 2 D.) All
Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members are to commit full attention to the
speakers or any materials relevant to the topic at hand. Comments, when appropriate. and
non-verbal expressions are to be respectful and professional.

B. Be Fair and Equitable in Allocating Public Hearing Time to Individual Speakers

The Mayor/Chair will determine and announce time limits on speakers at the start of the Public
Hearing. Generally, each speaker will be allocated three minutes, with applicants, appellants, or
their designated representatives allowed additional time. If a substantial number of speakers are
anticipated, the Mayor/Chair may shorten the time limit and/or ask speakers to limit themselves
to new information and points of view not already covered by previous speakers.

Each speaker may only speak once during a Public Hearing unless the Body requests
additional clarification later in the process. After the close of the Public Hearing, no
additional public testimony will be accepted unless the Body reopens the Public Hearing
for a limited and specific purpose.

C. Ask for Clarification, but Avoid Debate and Argument with the Public

Only the Mayor/Chair (no other Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members), shall be
allowed to interrupt a speaker during a presentation if needed to clarify, keep on topic. or
similar. Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members may ask the Mayor/Chair to have the
speaker repeat or clarify if there is an audio issue, hallway noise, or other similar matter. And,
Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members may ask the Mayor/Chair for a point of order
if the speaker is off the topic, exhibiting behavior or language that the Member finds disturbing
or out of line, or if there are inaccurate statements made that the Member would like corrected.
Member questions, regarding public input, to seek, clarify, or expand information are be
directed to the Mayor/Chair.

D. Follow Parliamentary Procedure in Conducting Public Meetings

The City Attorney serves as advisory parliamentarian for the City and is available to answer
questions or interpret situations according to parliamentary procedures. Final rulings on

parliamentary procedure are made by the Mayor, subject to the appeal of and to the Council,
per Robert’s Rules of Order.



Qutside Public Meetings

A. Make No Promise or Statement on Behalf of the City or Common Council in an Unofficial
Setting

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members will frequently be asked to explain a
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Action or to provide their opinion regarding an issue as
they meet and talk with constituents in the community. It is appropriate to provide a brief
overview of City Policy and to refer the constituents to City staff or the Mayor for further
information. Overt or implicit promises of specific Council/Commission/Board/Committee
Action or promises that City staff will take some specific action shall be refrained from.

All Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members must ensure that in expressing their
own opinions, they do not mislead any listener into believing that their individual opinion is
that of the entire Council/Commission/Board/Committee unless the
Council/Commission/Board/Committee has taken a vote on that specific issue and the
Member's opinion is the same as the result of the vote of the Body on the matter. Likewise,
no Council/Commission/Board/Committee Member shall state in writing that Member's
position in a way that implies it is the position of the entire Body. A member has the right to
state a personal opinion and has the right to indicate that he/she is stating such as a member
of the Body but must always clarify that he/she is not speaking on behalf of the City or the
Common Council/Commission/Board/Committee unless specifically authorized by that
Council/Commission/Board/Committee to do so.

SECTION 5: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE
MEMBERS CONDUCT WITH PUBLIC AGENCIES

Since Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members act as a single Body during official City
Meetings, such members should curb individual communications with other agencies. Any such

interactions would simply be as a citizen, NOT as a Council/Commission/Board/Committee
Member.

All Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members must remember that, at most times, they are

perceived in public as a representative of the City and should act and speak with that responsibility in
mind.

A. Be Clear about Representing the City or Personal Interests

If a Council/Commission/Board/Committee Member appears before another governmental
agency or organization to provide a statement on an issue, the Member must clearly state

whether his or her statement reflects a personal opinion or is the official position of the
City.

All Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members must inform the applicable Body of
their involvement in an outside organization if that organization is or may become involved
in any issue within the City's jurisdiction. If an individual
Council/Commission/Board/Committee Member publicly represents or speaks on behalf of
another organization whose position differs from the City's official position on any issue, the
Member must clearly communicate the organization upon whose behalf he/she is speaking
and must withdraw from voting as a Council/Commission/Board/Committee Member upon
any action that has bearing upon the conflicting issue.



B. Representation of the City on Intergovernmental Commissions and Other Outside Entities

Council Members serving on Boards, Commissions, or Committees as a City Representative
for outside entities or agencies shall properly communicate with all other Council Members
on issues pertinent to the City.

C. Conflict of Interest

Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members are encouraged to request a Conflict of
Interest Opinion from the City Attorney if unsure whether a personal conflict exists on
specific matters.

D. Mayvor’s Role Representing the City

The Mayor is charged with representing the City, speaking on its behalf, and communicating
with the Council regarding these matters when appropriate.

SECTION 6: ELECTED OFFICIALS CONDUCT WITH
COMMISSIONS/BOARDS/COMMITTEES

A. Attendance at Commission/Board/Committee Meetings

Council Members may attend any City of Franklin Commission/Board/Committee Meeting
which is open to the public.

B. Assigned Commission/Board/Committee Duties

Council Members are assigned to Boards/Commissions/Committees to provide a line of
communication between the specific Commission/Board/Committee and the Common
Council. As such, Council Members are to fully participate in the activities and meetings of
the Commission/Board/Committee.

Regular attendance at meetings and activities is expected.

Council Members, along with City staff, shall advise the Commissions/Boards/ Committees
that they serve on regarding policies and procedures of the City, and proper conduct of
meetings.

C. Be Respectful of Diverse and Opposing Opinions

A primary role of Commissions/Boards/Committees is to represent many points of view in
the community and to provide the Council with advice based on a full spectrum of
concerns, experience, and perspectives. Council Members must be fair and respectful to all
citizens serving on Commissions/Boards/Committees without regard to their backgrounds,
residence, and political views.

D. Closed Session Participation

Out of courtesy for the Commission/Board/Committee, Council Members not on such
Commission/Board/Committee shall inform the Commission/Board/Committee Chair of
their attendance in closed session in advance of attending such closed session whenever
possible.



SECTION 7: ELECTED OFFICIALS AND COMMISSION/BOARD/COMMITTEE MEMBERS
CONDUCT WITH THE MEDIA

A. Expression of Positions on Issue

When communicating with the media, all Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members
must clearly state that their comments are the official position of themselves alone, and not
from the Council/Commission/Board/Committee unless specifically authorized by that
Council/Commission/Board/Committee. Each Council/Board/Commission/Committee
Member represents one vote of the total and until a vote on any issue is taken,
Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members' positions are merely their own.
Council/Board/Commission/Committee Members recognize that the Mayor, or his/her
designee, is the only authorized voice for the City.

B. Discussions Regarding City Staff

Council/Commission/Board/Committee Members shall not discuss personnel issues or other
matters regarding individual City staff in public or with the media. Any issues pertaining to
City staff shall only be addressed directly to the Mayor or the Director of Administration.

SECTION 8: ENFORCEMENT OF THIS CODE OF CONDUCT

A. Filing of Complaints (Excluding Ethics, which is addressed as Attachment A to this Code of
Conduct and contains separate remedies)

Any person who believes a City Official has violated a requirement, prohibition or guideline
set out herein may file a sworn complaint with the City Clerk identifying: (1) the
complainant's name, address and contact information; (2) position of the City official who is
the subject of the complaint; (3) the nature of the alleged violation, including the specific
provision of Municipal Code, Policy, Rule allegedly violated, and (4) a statement of fact
constituting the alleged violation and the dates on which, or period of time during which, the
alleged violation occurred.

The person making the complaint shall provide the following with the complaint: (1) all
documents or other materials in the complainant's possession that are relevant to the
allegation, (2) a list of all documents or other materials relevant to the allegation that are
available to the complainant but not in the complainant's possession, (3) a list of all other
documents or other materials relevant to the allegation but unavailable to the complainant,
including the location of the documents if known, and (4) a list of witnesses, what they may
know, and information to contact those witnesses.

The complaint shall include an affidavit at the end of the complaint stating that the
“information contained in the complaint is true and correct, or that the complainant has
good reason to believe and does believe that the facts alleged are true and correct and that
they constitute a violation of the Municipal Code, Policy, or Rule”. If the complaint is
based on information and belief, the complaint shall identify the basis of the information
and belief, including all sources, contact information for those sources, and how and when
the information and/or belief was conveyed to the complainant by those sources. The
complainant shall swear to the facts by oath before a notary public, or before the City Clerk.
A notary public or City Clerk shall verify the signature.

If a complaint filing is determined to be complete by the City Clerk, the City Clerk shall
forward the matter to the Mayor or the Mayor’s Designee. If the complaint filing is
determined incomplete, the City Clerk shall notify the complainant of the deficiency.



If the complaint is filed against the Mayor, the City Clerk shall submit the complaint filing
to the Council President to work with the appropriate parties to process the complaint
appropriately on behalf of the City.

B. Confidential Nature of Complaint

While complete confidentiality cannot be maintained, each complaint will be considered
judiciously and as discreetly as possible, respecting both the complainant and the accused,
throughout the investigation.

C. Time for Filing

A complaint under this Code must be filed no later than sixty (60) days from the date of
discovery of the alleged violation. However, anyone having information on which a
complaint is based is encouraged to file the complaint as soon as the information is obtained
so that immediate action may be taken by the Council, the appropriate staff member or

agency. The delay in filing a complaint may be considered in determining the sanction to be
imposed.

D. False or Frivolous Complaints

A person who knowingly makes a false, misleading, or unsubstantiated statement in a
complaint is subject to criminal prosecution for perjury and possible civil liability. If, after
reviewing a complaint, it is determined that a sworn complaint is groundless and appears to
have been filed in bad faith or for the purpose of harassment, or that intentionally false or
malicious information has been provided, the subject shall be referred to the Chief of Police for
referral to the District Attorney’s Office for prosecution under penalty of perjury or as the
District Attorney may determine. A City Official who seeks to take civil action regarding any
such complaint shall do so at his or her expense.

E. Complaint Procedure

(1) Investigation

If the complaint is complete, it will be investigated by the City through its
representative which may be the City’s Risk Provider, Outside Counsel, or other
appropriate party acting as the Investigative Officer, in a reasonable period of time.

(2) Failure to Comply

All City Officials, whether elected and appointed, are required to cooperate with any
such investigations. Failure to cooperate in an investigation, or making false
statements, could subject the Official to sanctions or removal from office/position.

(3) Recommendations

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Investigating Officer, following deliberation
in open or closed session, shall submit a report to the Council, including findings of
fact, conclusions of law, and a recommendation as to what action, if any, the Council
should consider with respect to the individual charged. The Investigating Officer shall
provide the complainant and the individual charged with a copy of the report. Either the
complainant or the person charged may file an objection to the report and shall have the
opportunity to present arguments supporting the objection to the Council.



(4) Council Action

The Council shall consider and take action on the recommendation of the Investigating
Officer within sixty (60) days after the Investigating Officer provides its findings. Upon
review of the report and following deliberation, if the Council, by motion, concludes that
there is a violation of the Code, the Council may direct mediation or impose a sanction or
penalty. The Council may adopt, reject, or modify the recommendation made by the
Investigating Officer. In resolving the complaint, the totality of the circumstances shall be
taken into consideration, including the intent of the person accused of the wrongdoing.

(5) Penalties and Sanctions Policy

1t is the intent of the Council to educate and, when necessary, discipline City Officials
who violate this Code. Discipline shall be progressive, from the least punitive to the most
punitive measures, unless the Council believes that progressive discipline does not
provide the appropriate sanction due to the gravity of the offense, or because the Council
does not believe the sanction would deter future misconduct. In all instances, the totality
of the circumstances shall be taken into consideration in resolving the matter. including
the intent of the one accused of wrongdoing.

(6) Possible Penalties and Sanctions

i. An informal censure by the Council, which would only be made as part of a motion
in a public meeting.
ii. A formal censure by the Council, which would be made by motion in a public
meeting and then published in the City newspaper.
iii. Mandatory community service. [Wis. Stat. § 62.11(3)(e)]
iv. Attendance at counseling or mediation sessions. [Wis. Stat. §62.11(3)(e)]
v. Imposition of a dollar fine of up to $500.00. [Wis. Stat. §§ 62.11(3)(a) &(¢)]
vi. Removal from Office. [Wis. Stat. § 62.11]
vii. Discipline, up to and including termination (for Appointed Officials).
viii. Any other sanction available by law.

The imposition of any of these penalties or sanctions will require an affirmative vote of
% of all Members of the Council (with six (6) voting Council Members, % is calculated
as 6 x .75 =4.5, rounded up to 5 votes)-

(7) Notice

The Mayor, or his/her designee, shall provide notice of the Council’s decision
to the person charged within ten (10) days of decision.

Acknowledgement Statement / Signature Required

By signing below, the Elected Official/Commission, Board, Committee Member/Appointed
Official agrees to the principles and rules set forth in this document and will abide by them
to the best of his/her abilities throughout his/her term of office/employment:

Official Signature Date

Official Printed Name Office Held by Official



Attachment A

ETHICS

The state ethics code applicable to local government officials is found in Wisconsin Statutes §
19.59. (This is affirmed by the CHARTER ORDINANCE change that was passed on March 1,
2005. Ordinance 2005-1835 repealed the Code of Ethics of the Municipal Code and provided

for the filing of financial disclosure statements by elected officials, candidates and other
specified officials of the City.) Many of the terms used therein are defined in Wisconsin
Statutes § 19.42.

The state ethics code establishes minimum standards of ethical conduct that prohibit local
public officials from using their public office to benefit or enrich themselves, their immediate
families, or organizations with which they are associated. Local officials must understand these
standards to avoid violations of the law. Specifically, this code prohibits local public officials
from engaging in the following conduct:

e Using their office to obtain financial gain, any type of employment including
consulting or similar roles, or anything of substantial value for the private benefit of
themselves, their immediate families, or organizations with which they are associated.

e Receiving “anything of value” if it could be reasonably expected to influence the local
public official’s vote, official action or judgement, or could reasonably be considered
as a reward for any official action or inaction.

e Taking official action substantially affecting a matter in which the official, an
immediate family member, or an organization with which the official is associated has
a substantial financial interest or using his or her office in a way that produces or
assists in the production of a substantial benefit for the official, an immediate family
member, or an organization with which the official is associated.

e Offering or providing influence in exchange for campaign contributions.

An official who is uncertain about a potential conflict with this section may want to seek
advice from the City Attorney.

The state ethics code is enforced by the local district attorney (in Milwaukee County, this is
Corporation Counsel) upon verified complaint of any person. If the district attorney fails to
commence an action within twenty (20) days after receiving such complaint or refuses to

commence an action, the person making the complaint may petition the attorney general to act
on it.

The ethics code provides civil and criminal penalties for violations. A local official who
intentionally violates any part of § 19.59, except § 19.59(1)(br), may be fined not less than
$100 nor more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than one year in the county jail or both.
In the alternative, a civil forfeiture of up to $1,000 may be imposed against a local official
for violating any part of the state ethics code. Intentional violation of § 19.59(1)(br),
offering or providing influence in exchange for campaign contributions, is a Class I felony.

11



RULES OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
August 17, 2021

These rules are established by the Common Council to promote consistency and orderly
meetings of the Common Council. The rules will be reviewed periodically, as needed, and at
the Organizational Meeting of each newly established Common Council.

These rules are established in conjunction with the ordinance authonzed through the City of
Franklin Municipal Code, Chapter 19 Council Proceedings. It is the intent of these rules to
compliment, not replace, Municipal Code.

1) MEETINGS

a.

Regular and Special Meetings of the Common Council are held per the City of
Franklin Municipal Code, §§ 19-1 A. - D., as attached hereto.

in addition to the codified criteria for Special Meetings, per the City of Franklin
Municipal Code, § 19-1 B., as attached hereto, a Special Meeting may be called
with a minimum of 6 hours’ notice for emergency business of the Common
Council. The notice shall specify the time, place, and purpose of the meeting.

2) NOTIFICATION OF ABSENCE OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

a.

Any Council Member who is unable to attend a Council Meeting shall notify the
Mayor or City Clerk in advance If he/she is unable to attend such meeting, except
in the case of an emergency. If an emergency causes a Council Member to miss a
Common Council Meeting, that Council Member shall notify the Mayor or City
Clerk as soon as practicable. Members shall be recorded as ‘present’ or ‘not
present’ on the official minutes.

it shall be noted in the official meeting minutes if a Member enters a meeting
after the meeting convenes, or leaves before the meeting adjourns.

3) SPECIAL RECOGNITION

a.

The City of Franklin will consider requests for moments of silence or other
appropriate recognition at the beginning of Common Council Meetings that
relate to persons or events of community-wide, state-wide, or national
significance involving Franklin residents. All requests shall be made to the Mayor
or presiding officer prior to the meeting and the Member making the request

shall be recognized by the Mayor or presiding officer at the appropriate point
within the agenda.

4) PRESIDING OFFICER TO MAINTAIN AND PRESERVE ORDER

d.

It shall be the duty of the Mayor or presiding officer to maintain and preserve
order during Common Council Meetings, including: keeping the discussion of
Council Members on track and relevant to the agenda items and preserving
decorum; and if any Member transgresses the rules of the Common Council, the

Mayor or presiding officer shall, on his or her own or at any Members’ request, 1



5)

call such offending Member to order. The Common Council, if appealed to, shall
decide the matter by majority vote, per the City of Franklin Municipal Code, §
19-3 A., as attached hereto.

. When a question is pending, a Member is allowed to speak against the nature of

likely consequences of the proposed measure in strong terms, but the Member
must avoid personalities and under no circumstances shall the Member attack or
guestion the motives of another Member or the entire Common Council.

Points of Order may be used to draw attention to a breach in rules, an
irregulanty in procedure, the irrelevance or continued repetition of a speaker,
the breaching of established practices, or contradiction of previous decision. The
chair shall iImmmediately acknowledge the Point of Order and rule on 1t. A Point of
Order is non-debatable, however, may be overruled by a two-thirds vote of the
Body. Points of Order which are recognized shall be recorded in the official
minutes.

RULES PERTAINING TO CONDUCT OF THE COUNCIL MEETING/MOTIONS/VOTING

ORDER - The most recent version of Roberts Rules of Order shall be used for
conduct of City of Franklin meetings. The City Attorney shall be the
Parliamentarian.

MOTIONS/VOTING - Motions and voting shall occur per the City of Franklin
Municipal Code, §§ 19-7 A. — G., as attached hereto.

MOTIONS - When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be deemed to be In
possession of the Common Council and shall be stated by the presiding officer.
WITHDRAWING MOTIONS - Withdrawing motions shall occur per the City of
Franklin Municipal Code, § 19-7 A., as attached hereto.

DIVISION OF QUESTION - Any Member may call for a division of the question
when the question is one that may be divided, per Robert’s Rules of Order.
DEBATE

i. Inthe debate, each Member has the right to speak and shall be offered
the opportunity by the Mayor or presiding officer before a Member may
speak a second, or subsequent, time.

ii. Members shall be succinct in their statements on an item and shall not
dominate debate.

iii. Members shall at all times be aware the Council meetings are a place for
debate of the item at hand and for decisions on that matter. Additional
information requested by a Member should be addressed to the
responsible Department Head prior to the Council meeting. Upon the
request of a Common Council Member for any staff member to supply
the Body such information as requested, the Member must first be
recognhized by the presiding officer for that person tospeak. (This does
not apply to deficiencies, the desire to have a project or task performed,
having a special request for service, or any other directive for staff, as
these matters are addressed in the Code of Conduct.)

iv. A Member who wishes to abstain must do so in accordance with the City
of Franklin Municipal Code, § 19-7 D., as attached hereto, and announce
the same at the start of debate due to a conflict or other basis upon 2



which to abstain, or the point in time during the debate in which the
Member determines that he/she has a conflict with the matter, and
consider leaving the room during the debate. Such abstention shall be
included in the minutes. A Member who participates in debate, but does
not voice that he/she is abstaining due to a conflict is discouraged from
abstaining from voting.

v. No officer, elected official or staff member may distribute, hold aloft, or
place on the dais for public view information not previously available to
the public, during or the day of a Common Council meeting.

CALLING THE QUESTION - Any Member wishing to terminate the debate may
move the previous question as detailed in the City of Franklin Municipal Code,

§ 19-7 C,, as attached hereto, per Robert’s Rules of Order.

MOTIONS TO TABLE SHALL INCLUDE DATE OR TIME FRAME FOR ACTION -
Motions to table shall include a specific date to be returned to the Council or
shall require return to the Council upon a specific occurrence within a specified
time frame. Except for matters which may be approved by operation of law if not
acted upon by Council, if the occurrence shall not happen within the specified
time frame, the City Clerk shall notify the Council at the end of the time frame
that the matter shall not be brought forward and make appropriate notation to
the minutes of the meeting during which the matter was laid over. Upon notice
of non-action by the City Clerk, any Council Member may request that the
matter be placed upon the next Council agenda for report or official action.
VOTE CHANGE - A Member shall only be permitted to change his/her vote up
until the point all votes are in and the Mayor reports the results of the vote; no
Member shall be permitted to change his/her vote on a matter once the Body
moves on to another item of business.

MOTION TO RECESS - Any Member or the chair may move to recess at any point
during the meeting with a majority vote with a stated time for such recess to
reconvene.

MOTION TO ADJIOURN - A motion to adjourn shall always be in order unless the
Common Council is engaged in voting, and shall be decided pursuant to Robert’s
Rules of Order.

RECONSIDERATION - Reconsiderations are allowed through the process included
in the City of Franklin Municipal Code, § 19-7 F., as attached hereto.

. USE OF UNANIMOUS CONSENT - Unanimous Consent shall only be used for

termination of debate, motions to adjourn, motions to recess and for elections
for Common Council President or Temporary Chair when there shall be only one
Member put forward for election.

6) ATTIRE, PROXY, AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS AND DEVICES

a.

ATTIRE - Common Council Meetings are to conduct official business of the City of
Franklin, therefore, business casual attire or better i1s expected out of respect for
our constituents and the Body. Except for the City’s logo, business casual attire
does not include apparel with advertising or logos of specific businesses, hats,
shorts, flip flops, clogs, or similar. However, the Council may designate certain
meetings to allow for clothing to support specific events.



b. PROXY - No Member shall be allowed to vote by proxy.

C.

ELECTRONIC DEVICES - Respect for each other, constituents, and those
appearing before the Council and Commissions/Boards/Committees is
paramount, and full attention to the matters before the Body is the purpose of
the meetings. The use of electronic devices to communicate regarding City
business during meetings is prohibited since it presents an opportunity for
violation of open meetings and open records laws. Personal use of electronic
devices is strongly discouraged and is to be reserved only for emergency
situations. Howevery, it is acknowledged that occasional use of electronic devices
occurs for business purposes within the context of meetings, and is acceptable.

7) CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Common Council Members are frequently provided information that is confidential.
The information could be relating to personnel matters, which is the responsibility of
the Mayor; development matters; legal matters; or other information.

Holding confidential information private, when appropriate, is a foundation of trust that
is very difficult to earn and easy to lose. Losing trust forever impairs a Council Member
from doing his/her job in representing their constituents.

a.

No official may use or disclose confidential information, including knowledge
imparted orally, recordings, and written documents or records, concerning the
property, government or affairs of the City gained in the course of or by reason
of such official position or activities unless the release is ordered by a court or
the informed consent of the subject, as applicable; or authorized by the legal
custodian or other proper legal authorization is given. This includes confidential
information received in a Closed Session of the governmental Body.
Inappropriate disclosure of such confidential information may subject the official
to penalties, including a fine or public censure. Other potential consequences for
violating this restriction is criminal prosecution under §946.12, Wisconsin State
Statutes, misconduct in public office, or removal from office under Chapter 17 of
the Wisconsin State Statutes for cause.

Any questions regarding confidential information, its’ restrictions, and any release of
confidential information should be privately addressed with the City Attorney.

8) GENERAL RULES OF DECORUM

No person shall personally attack a Council Member, city official, city employee or any
other person. For purposes of this section, personal attacks shall include comments
directed at a particular person or persons which pertain to any matter

that is unrelated to the performance of official duties or the conduct of city business,
are threatening, slanderous, defamatory or obscene or are of such a nature that the
comments disrupt the meeting or cause a disturbance.

No person shall make irrelevant, unduly repetitious, offensive, threatening, slanderous,
defamatory, or obscene remarks or act in such a manner as to disrupt or disturb the
orderly conduct of any meeting, including handclapping, stomping of feet, whistling,

shouting or other demonstrations.



9

Any person violating this provision shall be called to order by the Mayor or presiding
officer. If the conduct continues, the Mayor or presiding officer may order the person,
other than a Body Member, removed and the Council may make a finding of fact
whether such behavior was outside the scope and content of the Council rules and, if
applicable, whether the behavior was of a character to cause a breach of the peace.

SOCIAL MEDIA

Social media presence by those officials covered under this code is to be informative in
nature and positively reflect on the community and City staff, and promote local
activities. All officials shall avoid expressing opinions or bias regarding City business or
issues that may come before the Council/Commission/Board/Committee when it may
be construed that they are acting on behalf of the City.

In the use of social media, all officials are to abide by the following:

e Refrain from making belligerent, impertinent, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or
personally disparaging comments;

e Ensure that they do not participate in discrimination or harassment, even if the
identified behavior is not targeting a protected class, consisting of unwelcome
conduct, sexual or otherwise, whether verbal, physical, or visual. Harassing conduct
includes, but is not limited to: slurs or negative stereotyping; bullying, threatening,
intimidating or other hostile acts; degrading jokes and display or circulation of
graphic material that degrades or shows hostility; and physical touching;

e Shall never demean or personally attack an employee regarding the employee's job
performance in public; and

e Are to demonstrate their honesty and integrity, and to be an example of appropriate
and ethical conduct.

10) RULES PERTAINING TO INDIVIDUALS ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL DURING A CITIZEN

COMMENT PERIOD (NOT APPLICABLE FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS)

a. Citizen comments shall be conducted per the City of Franklin Municipal Code,

§ 19-2 B., as attached hereto, allowing any person to address the Common
Council.

b. No person shall personally attack a Councit Member, City Official, City Employee
or any other person. For purposes of this section, personal attacks shall include
comments directed at a particular person or persons which pertain to any matter
that is unrelated to the performance of official duties or the conduct of city
business, are threatening, slanderous, defamatory or obscene or are of such a
nature that the comments disrupt the meeting or cause a disturbance.

c. Questions posed by the speaker may be answered by the Mayor or presiding
officer, or referred to city staff for a future reply in a timely manner. Council
Members will refrain from commenting or attempting to answer questions
during Citizen Comment Period unless authorized by the Mayor.

d. Statements must not include endorsements of any candidates or other
electioneering; but if a citizen speaking is a candidate for office, he/she must
identify him/herself as such.

e. Speakers shall refrain from presenting unduly repetitious, offensive, threateningg



slanderous, defamatory, or obscene remarks or act in such a manner as to
disrupt or disturb the orderly conduct of any meeting.

f. Statements made by the public during Citizen Comment Period orally or in
writing become part of the meeting record via audio recording or paper
statements but will not be included in the official minutes or postings of the
meeting.

g. Written statements provided to the Common Council regarding an agenda item
or as a citizen comment must be received by the Clerk’s office at least 24 hours
prior to the start of the Common Counal Meeting. Such comments will be
provided to the Council and appropriate staff but will not be read out loud at the
meeting.

11) RULES PERTAINING TO THE TIMING OF SUBMISSIONS FOR INCLUSION ON THE
COUNCIL AGENDA AND INFORMATION REQUESTED FOR MEETINGS

a. Agenda items for submittal must follow the City of Franklin Municipal Code,
§ 19-2 A, as attached hereto.

Council Members should keep in mind that additional time may be needed to
work with staff to convert items into resolution or ordinance form or provide
clarifications as necessary; and that items submitted at the last minute may need
to be delayed until the following regular Council meeting.

Should a requested agenda item not be placed on an agenda as submitted it shall
be automatically placed on the next scheduled agenda unless withdrawn by the
submitter. The Council Action Sheet for that item shall contain a statement by
the Mayor as to the reason for the delay.

b. Council Members shall work with the Mayor or his designee to obtain any
additional information needed prior to the Common Council meeting.

12) RULES PERTAINING TO STAFF/APPLICANT PRESENTATIONS

The Mayor or presiding officer may call appropriate staff or outside party to present
additional information on any agenda item to the Common Council without notice or
restriction on time.

13) CLOSED SESSION

Closed Sessions are the legal opportunity for the Common Council to discuss matters
that, if done in an open meeting, would potentially debilitate or negatively impact
persons and/or matters otherwise protected by privileged and confidentiality provisions
under the law, the closed session being held in the interest of such persons and/or
matters and in the interest of the public. Wisconsin Statutes, § 19.85, provides the only
reasons a common council may enter closed session.

The Common Council must recognize the confidential nature of discussions held in
Closed Session and understand the importance of confidentiality of ALL conversations
and information discussed and/or distributed in a Closed Session.



Disclosing any of this information inappropriately, or prematurely in some cases, not
only will potentially harm the City, but it will forever break any trust between the person
disclosing the information and everyone else who participated in the Closed Session.
Regaining that trust may not be possible and may have ramifications for the discloser far
past the subject of one particular Closed Session.

Violating Closed Session confidentiality exposes the Common Council Member to
potential legal action as well as sanctions as outlined in Wisconsin State Statutes, City of
Franklin Ordinances, and the Code of Conduct.

As a practice, only parties with direct information on a Closed Session matter in support
of the City, will be included in any Closed Session. The Mayor will make the decision on
attendance, other than the Members. The Common Council may, on motion and
second of Members, vote to include a participant while still in open session.

All personal electronic devices are prohibited while in Closed Session.

Documents and information distributed while in Closed Session should be returned to
the distributing party unless the distributing party releases the information or the
receiving party is able to guarantee confidentiality of such documents and information.
That information remains confidential until Council action, and in some cases
indefinitely.

1499 AMENDMENT AND SUSPENSION OF RULES

a. REVIEW OF THESE RULES - These Rules will be reviewed periodically, but not less
than at the installation of each new Council.

b. AMENDMENT OF THESE RULES - These Rules may be amended, and/or new
rules adopted upon proper notice by a majority of all Members at any meeting of
the Common Council.

c. SUSPENSION OF THE RULES - A vote of two-thirds of the Members present will
suspend any Rule of the Council.



Blank Page



APPROVI-‘\J_E§ REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
A COUNCIL ACTION July 20, 2021

REPORTS & AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-
2453, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021
RECOMMENDATIONS) ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $10,000 OF G.16
APPROPRIATIONS FOR TAX REFUNDS ON U
ASSESSMENT CHALLENGES

ITEM NUMBER

Background

Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust & Sam’s Real Estate Business Trust challenged the property
assessments for tax year 2020 in Milwaukee County Circuit Court. Those claims may result In
settlements that require refunds of 2020 Real Estate or Personal Property taxes. 2020 Assessments
are used on the 2020 Tax roll to fund City operations in the 2021 Budget.

Analysis

The 2021 General Fund budget includes $2,500 of appropriations for tax refunds, which are not
sufficient to settle the City’s portion of any assessment and related tax refund settlements.

Recommendation

Staff recommends the attached proposed 2021 Budget to provide $10,000 of additional tax
refund appropriations from Restricted Contingency.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion adopting an ordinance to amend Ordinance 2020-2453, an Ordinance adopting the 2021
annual budgets for the General Fund to provide additional $10,000 of appropriations for tax
refunds on assessment challenges

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY
ORDINANCE NO. 2021

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-2453, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2021 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL
$10,000 OF APPROPRIATIONS FOR TAX REFUNDS ON ASSESSMENT CHALLENGES

WHEREAS; the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2021 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 17, 2020;

WHEREAS; Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust and Sam’s Real Estate Business Trust
have challenged their 2020 assessments in Milwaukee County Circuit Court;

WHEREAS; the Wal-Mart property is located in Tax Incremental District #3 which would
bear the entire tax refund of any settlement;

WHEREAS; the City may find it advantageous to settle the claims rather than litigate the
challenges only to incur an adverse result;

WHEREAS; the likely City portion of tax refunds exceeds the current $2,500 of 2021
appropriations; and

WHEREAS; the Common Council will consider the settlement claims in due course.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2021 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

Unclassified
Tax Refunds Increase $10,000
Restricted Contingency Decrease $10,000

Section 2 That the 2021 Budget for TID 3 be amended as follows:
Unclassified
Tax Refunds Increase $77,000

Section 3 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this ordinance on the

city’s web site.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of ,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:



Sandra .. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Blank Page



APPROVAL..

REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

w1 COUNCIL ACTION 08/17/21
REPORTS & Committee of the Whole ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS Recommendations G. 1 7.

Recommendation from the Committee of the Whole Meeting of August 16, 2021:

(a) Wholesale Public Water Supply to Franklin 2024.

(b) Kueny Architects, LLC Status Update Concerning the Department of
Public Works and Fire Needs Assessment Services Project.

(c) Discussion of an Awareness Campaign Contract with Hausch Design
Agency and Platypus Advertising and Design for a Franklin Private
Property Infiltration and Inflow (PPII) Policy/Program.

As directed

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

CITY CLERK - slw




Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

COUNCIL ACTION DATE
August 17, 2021

REPORTS AND Sam’s {{eal Estate Busznes:v Trust v City of Franklin, ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS Milwaukee County Circuit Court, Case No.
2020CV006103 and Wal-Mart Real Estate Business
Trust v City of Franklin, Milwaukee County Circuit
Court, Case No. 2020CV006148. The Common Council G, 1 8,
may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common
Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to
be adopted by the body with respect to the subject
litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein
as it deems appropriate

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal
counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to the subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19 85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the
Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to the

subject litigation, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate.

Legal Services Dept.: jw




Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

[ COUNCIL ACTION DATE
1 August 17, 2021
REPORTS AND Resolution No. 2020-7680, A Resolution Authorizing ITEM NUMBER

RECOMMENDATIONS | Certain Officials to Execute A Tax Incremental District No.
8 Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin,
JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Spec and/or
Commercial Buildings Mixed Use Development at the

south side of West Elm Road in the approximately South G. 1 9.
3500 Street block area to the west, to be bounded on the
north by West EIm Road to be extended to the west, and
South Hickory Street on the east, and to straddle South
Birch Street and West Aspen Way, all to be developed; and
Development Agreement for JHB Properties, LLC and ZS
Enterprises, LLC, Spec and/or Commercial Buildings
Mixed Use Development (Public Improvements). The
Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to
Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for market competition and
bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating
to a Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development
Agreement Between the City of Franklin, JHB Properties,
LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Spec and/or Commercial
Buildings Mixed Use Development and a Development
Agreement for JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises,
LLC, Spec andfor Commercial Buildings Mixed Use
Development (Public Improvements), and the investing of
public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto
and to effect such development, including the terms and
provisions of the development agreements for the
development of property located on the south side of West
Elm Road in the approximately 3500 block area were West
Elm Road to be extended to the west, consisting of
approximately 79.79 acres, and to reenter open session at
the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate

The Common Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-7680, A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a
Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development Agreement and a Development Agreement for Tax Incremental District
No. 8 Related Public Improvements Between the City of Franklin, JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC,
Spec and/or Commercial Buildings Mixed Use Development, on October 20, 2020.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to a Tax Incremental District No. 8 Development Agreement
Between the City of Franklin, JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Spec and/or Commercial Buildings
Mixed Use Development and a Development Agreement for JHB Properties, LLC and ZS Enterprises, LLC, Spec
and/or Commercial Buildings Mixed Use Development (Public Improvements), and the investing of public funds
and governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such development, including the terms and provisions of
the development agreements for the development of property located on the south side of West Elm Road in the
approximately 3500 block area were West Elm Road to be extended to the west, consisting of approximately 79.79
acres, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

Engineering Dept GEM, Economic Development Dept CB, Finance Dept. Paul, Dept of Administration PAS, Legal Services Dept jw




Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

DATE
: COUNCIL ACTION
e 08/17/2021
REPORTS & ITEM NUMBER

Notice of Claim submitted by Attorney John D.
RECOMMENDATIONS Gatzke, on beha!f of his clie.nt, Geralfl Cutty, for
damages sustained when involved in an auto
accident on February 5, 2021, that they are alleging G 2 0
was caused by the driver’s view being obstructed by . .
a high snow bank in the median on South 51st Street.
The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to §19.85(1)(e) and (g), Stats., to consider a
Notice of Claim submitted by Attorney John D.
Gatzke, on behalf of his client, Gerald Cutty, for
damages sustained when involved in an auto
accident on February 5, 2021, that they are alleging
was caused by the driver’s view being obstructed by
a high snow bank in the median on South 51st Street,
and may reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein
as it deems appropriate.

Notice of Claim received May 6, 2021, from Attorney John D. Gatzke, on behalf of his client, Gerald Cutty, for
damages sustained when involved in an auto accident on February 5, 2021, that they are alleging was caused
by the driver’s view being obstructed by a high snow bank in the median on South 51st Street. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to §19.85(1)(e) and (g), Stats., to consider a Notice of Claim from
Attorney John D. Gatzke, on behalf of his client, Gerald Cutty, for damages sustained when involved in an
auto accident on February 5, 2021, that they are alleging was caused by the driver’s view being obstructed by
a high snow bank in'the median on South 51st Street, and may reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Staff recommends denial of the claim pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 893.80(1g) for disallowance of the claim,
based upon and in concurrence with the insurance adjuster that the investigation determined that the City of
Franklin was not liable or negligent for this accident. Progressive Insurance, who insures the at-fault driver,
has accepted 100% liability for the accident. Therefore, in absence of negligence on the part of the City, and
because Progressive Insurance has accepted full liability for this accident, recommend that the City of Franklin
disallow this claim pursuant to the Wisconsin Statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(1g).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to §19.85(1)(e) and (g), Stats., to consider a Notice of
Claim from Attorney John D. Gatzke, on behalf of his client, Gerald Cutty, for damages sustained when
involved in an auto accident on February 5, 2021, that they are alleging was caused by the driver’s view being
obstructed by a high snow bank in the median on South 51st Street, and may reenter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Motion to deny the claim of Gerald Cutty pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 893.80(1g), based upon and in
concurrence with the insurance adjuster that the investigation revealed that the City of Franklin was not liable
or negligent for this accident as discussed in the Council Action Sheet.

DOA-PS




Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
S COUNCIL ACTION 08/17/2021
LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS

H.

See attached listing from meeting of August 17, 2021.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED




Franklin

WISCONSIN
414-425-7500
License Committee
Agenda¥*
Alderman Room
August 17, 2021 - 6:10 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call | Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions
License Applications Reviewed | Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Balistreri, Thomas D
2021-2022 Polish Center of Wisconsin
New
Operator Baraniak, Nicole
2021-2022 Iron Mike’s
New
Operator Janiszewski, Frank J
2021-2022 Xaverian Missions
New
Operator Patel, Nand U
2021-2022 Discount Cigarettes & Liquor
New
Operator Sherman, Donna L
2021-2022 Irish Cottage
New
Temporary Volition Franklin — Outdoor Movie Night
E“Z?;tuas';‘:“::: & Person in Charge: Ellen Henry, Health Dept.
Location: City Hall, 9229 W Loomis Rd.
Date of Event: 8/20/2021
Time
3. Adjournment

*Notice 1s given that a majonty of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board even
though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
s QJL COUNCIL ACTION 8/17/2021
ITEM NUMBER
Bills Vouchers and Payroll Approval I

Attached are vouchers dated August 2, 2021 through August 12, 2021 Nos 184089 through
Nos 184264 in the amount of $ 2,553,210 19 Also Included In this listing are EFT's Nos 4662 through
Nos 4670, and Water Utility vouchers totaling $ 1,002,010 14

Early release disbursements dated August 2, 2021 through August 11, 2021 in the amount of

$ 369,391 05 are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement
listing These payments have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

The net payroll dated August 13, 2021 I1s $ 427,687 75, previously estimated at $ 408,000 Payroll
deductions dated August 13, 2021 are $ 242,298 24 previously estimated at $ 239,000

The estimated payroll for August 27, 2021 1s $ 415,000 with estimated deductions and matching
payments of $ 555,000.

Attached 1s a list of property tax distributions EFT's Nos 389 through EFT Nos 392, Nos 290(S) through
Nos 292(S) and check Nos 17929 dated July 31, 2021 through August 13, 2021 in the amount of

$ 3,190,281 81 $9,200,139 24 represent settlements and $ 205 71 represents a refunds/other These
distributions have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

Approval to release payments to Bond Trust Services for debt service in the amount of $ 639,686 25

The Library Board has not approved August 2021 vouchers for payment as of this writing Approval of
the Library vouchers will be considered at the August 23, 2021 meeting Upon their approval, request Is
made to authorize the release of these payments not to exceed $ 20,000 00




COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following
o City vouchers with an ending date of August 12, 2021 in the amount of $ 2,553,210 19 and

o Payroll dated August 13, 2021 in the amount of $ 427,687 75 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 242,298 24 of City matching payments and

o Estimated payroll dated August 27, 2021 in the amount of $ 415,000 and payments of the various
payroll deductions in the amount of $ 555,000, plus City matching and

e Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of August 13, 2021 in the amount of
$3,190,281 78 and

o Payment to Bond Trust Services in the amount of $ 639,686 25 and

e Approval to release Library vouchers not to exceed $ 20,000 00

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept — KM



	Common Council Meeting Agenda Packet 1of2-8-17-2021
	Common Council Meeting Agenda Packet 2of2-8-17-2021

